Public Document Pack
Please Contact: Ellen Walker
Extension: 43455
E-mail: ellen.walker@ryedale.gov.uk
Date of Publication: 25 November 2020

COUNCIL
IMPORTANT: The Council fully recognises and respects the role and importance of
democratic meetings and is committed to protecting the health and safety of Elected
Members and Officers who participate.
This meeting will be held virtually. The meeting will take place via Microsoft Teams and
details of how to join the meeting have been provided to Members of the Council. A telephone
dial-in facility will also be available.
For the purpose of public transparency and accountability, the meeting will be live streamed
online. The live stream can be accessed here:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCZCvPUsJ0LwMJ9ukDsGf0Hw
The media will be able to report on proceedings from the live stream.

Council Summons and Agenda
You are hereby summoned to attend an Ordinary Meeting of Ryedale District Council to
be held as a virtual meeting on Thursday, 3 December 2020 at 6.30 pm in the evening for
the transaction of the following business:
Agenda

1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The Chairman to inform members of the public of the emergency evacuation procedure.

2

Apologies for absence

3

Public Question Time

4

Minutes

a

Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 10 September 2020(Pages 7 28)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on
10 September 2020.

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

continuing to do what matters for Ryedale

b

Minutes of the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 2 November 2020(Pages
29 - 40)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of Council
held on 2 November 2020.

c

Minutes of the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 5 November 2020(Pages
41 - 44)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of Council
held on 5 November 2020.

5

Urgent Business
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be dealt
with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

6

Declarations of Interest
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council are
required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is not
discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

7

Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chairman, the Leader and/or the Head of Paid
Service.

8

To Receive any Questions submitted by Members Pursuant to Council Procedure
Rule 10.2 (Questions on Notice at Full Council)

a

To Councillor Duncan, Leader of Council, from Councillor Frank
“Please can the Leader advise whether there has there been any progress in respect of
the cattle market project?”

9

To Receive a Statement from the Leader of the Council and to Receive Questions
and Give Answers on that Statement
(Pages 45 - 46)

10

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following public
Part 'B' Committee Items:

Policy and Resources Committee held on 24 September 2020

a

Update on Malton and Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity Workstream (Pages
47 - 78)

b

Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy Summary

Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 1 October 2020

(Pages 79 - 100)

c

HR Policy Revision - Officer Code of Conduct

(Pages 101 - 124)

Policy and Resources Committee held on 12 November 2020

d

To Consider the Submission to Government of the York and North Yorkshire
Devolution Asks
(Pages 125 - 130)

e

Timetable of Meetings 2021-2022

(Pages 131 - 136)

f

HR Policy Revision - Recruitment Policy

(Pages 137 - 170)

g

HR Policy Revision - Pay Policy

(Pages 171 - 192)

h

Localisation of Council Tax Support 2021/2022 Scheme

(Pages 193 - 198)

i

Treasury Management Annual Report 2019-20

(Pages 199 - 212)

j

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - Q2 2020/21

(Pages 213 - 226)

k

Ryedale's Financial Strategy 2021-25

(Pages 227 - 250)

11

Motions on Notice Submitted Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11

a

Proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold
“To provide much-needed support to businesses in Ryedale’s five market towns
following the second nationwide lockdown, this council will provide free car parking in all
Ryedale District Council car parks during December 2020. Our officers will put this into
force as soon as practicable, giving consideration throughout to public feedback, social
distancing rules and public health advice.”

Referred by Full Council on 5 December 2019 and considered by Policy and Resources
Committee on 12 November 2020

b

Proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold(Pages 251 260)
“This council tasks the Head of Paid Service to update and amend the
constitution to reflect the following:
Leader
 The Annual Council Meeting will appoint a Councillor to be the Leader of the Council
for the Municipal Year
 The Annual Council Meeting will also appoint the Leader to be a member of the
Policy & Resources Committee and to act as its Chairman
 The Leader will:
 be the Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee;
 provide overall strategic vision and direction to the council;
 coordinate the work of the council’s committees;
 work closely with the Head of Paid Service to ensure member priorities are
delivered;
 act externally as the council’s main political representative;
 and be the council’s main spokesman in the media
Deputy Leader
 The Annual Council Meeting will appoint a Councillor to be the Deputy Leader of the
Council
 The Annual Council Meeting will also appoint the Deputy Leader to be a member of
the Policy & Resources Committee and to act as its Vice Chairman

 The Deputy Leader will:
 be Vice Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee;
 work closely with and support the Leader;
 act and speak on the Leader’s behalf at meetings and in the media when
required to do so
Lead Members
 The Leader and Deputy Leader will serve as Lead Members, each with a Lead
Portfolio
 The Annual Council Meeting will appoint up to three other Lead Members, each with
a Lead Portfolio relating to areas of council policy, for the Municipal Year
 The Annual Council Meeting will agree the portfolio areas for each Lead Member
and appoint the Lead Members to be members of the Policy & Resources
Committee
 Lead Members will:
 provide political oversight and leadership of their portfolio area;
 provide collective oversight and leadership of the authority;
 act as a public spokesman for their portfolio area;
 present relevant reports, as required, to the Policy & Resources Committee and
Council;
 and be answerable to the Policy & Resources Committee and Council for
service performance in their portfolio areas
 The “Administration” of the Council, therefore, comprises the Leader, Deputy Leader
and Lead Members, who are drawn from all, or part of, the controlling group’s or
controlling coalition’s membership of the Policy & Resources Committee
Member Champions
 Subject to the ongoing review into Member Champions, the Annual Council Meeting
may appoint Member Champions responsible for promoting general themes in a
non-partisan manner.
Committees
The council will continue to operate under non-executive arrangements i.e. ‘the
committee system’, with no individual member wielding executive power.
It will have the following committees:
 Policy & Resources Committee with power to establish an Appeals SubCommittee and an Appointments Sub-Committee
 Overview & Scrutiny Committee
 Planning Committee
 Licensing Committee with power to establish a Licensing Sub-Committee
 Audit, Governance & Standards Committee to carry out the Audit Committee and
Corporate Governance Standards Committee functions currently exercised by the
Overview & Scrutiny Committee
The size of committees shall be determined each year by Annual Council.
Members may be appointed to the membership of on one or more committees of the
council, except members of Policy & Resources Committee cannot sit on Overview &
Scrutiny Committee, and vice versa.
Accountability
 The Leader will continue to present a written report to each Full Council
 In addition to questions on notice to the Chairman, Leader and Committee Chairmen
currently allowed, members may also ask a question on notice to a Lead Member on

an issue relating to their Lead Portfolio
The changes should come into effect as of the Annual Meeting of Council 2020,
when council will appoint a Chairman, Vice Chairman, Leader, Deputy Leader,
Lead Members, Committee Chairmen, Committee Vice Chairmen and (if required)
Member Champions, and allocate members to committees in accordance with
political proportionality.”

12

Revised Political Proportionality of Council

13

Appointment of a Representative to the Milton Rooms Management Committee

(Pages 261 - 268)

To appoint a new representative to the Milton Rooms Management Committee,
following Councillor Delaney’s decision to step down from this role.

14

Appointment of a Representative to the Police, Fire and Crime Panel
To appoint a new representative to the Police, Fire and Crime Panel, following
Councillor Middleton’s decision to step down from this role.

15

Exempt Information
To consider a resolution to exclude the press and public from the meeting during
consideration of the following items:
Item 16a (Shared Housing Initiative), as provided by paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of
Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as it contains information relating to
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding
that information).
Item 16b (Development Opportunities and Housing Programme), as provided by
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as it
contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information).
Item 17 (Financial Support for Continued Leisure Provision in Ryedale), as provided by
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as it
contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information).

16

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following
exempt Part 'B' Committee Items:

Policy and Resources Committee held on 24 September 2020

a

Shared Housing Initiative

(Pages 269 - 280)

b

Development Opportunities and Housing Programme

(Pages 281 - 292)

17

Financial Support for Continued Leisure Provision in Ryedale

(Pages 293 - 310)

18

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent

Stacey Burlet
Chief Executive

Agenda Item 4a
Council
Minutes of Proceedings
At the Ordinary Meeting of the District Council of Ryedale held in the Main Hall, The Milton
Rooms, Malton on Thursday 10 September 2020
Present
Councillors

Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr MBE, Clark, Cleary (Chairman), Delaney,
Docwra, Duncan, Frank (Vice-Chairman), Garbutt Moore, Goodrick, Graham,
Hope, Di Keal, King, MacKenzie, Mason, Middleton, Oxley, Potter, Raine, Raper,
Riby, Thackray, Wass and Windress

In Attendance
Stacey Burlet, Simon Copley, Christine Phillipson and Ellen Walker

Minutes

94

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Andrews, Cussons and J
Andrews.
Apologies for late arrival were received from Councillor Clark, who arrived at 6:50pm.

95

Public Question Time
There were no public questions.

96

Minutes
The minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 20 February 2020 were
presented.
Resolved
That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 20 February 2020
be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
Voting record
22 For
4 Abstentions

97

Urgent Business
There were no items of urgent business which the Chairman considered should be
dealt with as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended).

98

Council

Declarations of Interest

1

Page 7

Thursday 10 September 2020

The Chairman advised that the declarations of all member of North Yorkshire County
Council would be taken as given.

99

Announcements
The Chairman made the following announcements:
Thanks were given to the people of Ryedale, and Officers and Members of Ryedale
District Council for their work during the COVID-19 pandemic.
On behalf of the Council, the Chairman congratulated Simon Copley on his
appointment to the post of Head of Corporate Governance.
Statements of apology were received from Councillors Raper and Thackray.

100

To Receive any Questions submitted by Members Pursuant to Council Procedure
Rule 10.2 (Questions on Notice at Full Council)
To Councillor Goodrick, Chair of the Planning Committee, from Councillor Potter
To Councillor Goodrick, Chair of the Planning Committee, from Councillor Potter:
Councillor Potter submitted the following question:
“Do you agree with the points made in a letter from the cabinet member for planning
and leader of Cheshire East Council to the Secretary of State for Housing,
Robert Jenrick, after he allowed a planning appeal, despite a clear conflict with local
development plan policies and sufficient 5 year land supply. The letter claims this
decision ‘undermines the principles of effective plan making’ and will ‘likely lead to a
further scramble for developers to seek permission for other unplanned sites’.”
Councillor Goodrick, Chair of the Planning Committee, replied:
“Councillor Potter, thank you for your question. As you are aware – this is what you've
already been advised by Officers – that this question relates to planning policy, and as
such it would be best and most appropriate for this question to be directed to the
Chairman of the Policy and Resources Committee.”
Councillor Potter then asked a supplementary question:
“This item, I believe, relates to actual decisions under planning policies, not of planning
policy itself, because this was a decision made on a planning application and was
overruled by the Secretary of State for Housing. So it's not actually about planning
policy as such, this is absolutely about a planning decision. So, I would expect an
answer from the Chair of Planning, as the Chair of Policy and Resources is actually
only responsible for strategic planning in the powers that he took unto himself.”
Councillor Potter confirmed that he wished to repeat the same question and requested
a response from the Chair of Planning.
Councillor Goodrick, Chair of the Planning Committee, replied:

Council

2

Page 8

Thursday 10 September 2020

“I think I was fairly forthright in what I said. It’s quite clear. The group decided that this
is how it's best to be handled and that is where I leave it.”

101

Exempt information
Resolved
To exclude the press and public from the meeting during any consideration of the
reports marked exempt for the following item 10 (‘To Receive all Committee and
Council level decisions made under urgency powers, as required under the
Constitution’) as provided by paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Section 100A of the
Local Government Act 1972, as they contain information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any person (including the authority holding that information).
The public interest test has been considered and, in all the circumstances of the case,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption is considered to outweigh the public
interest in disclosing the information.

102

To Receive all Committee and Council level decisions made under urgency
powers, as required under the Constitution
The Committee and Council level decisions made under urgency powers were received
and the Constitutional requirement was met.

103

To Receive a Statement from the Leader of the Council and to Receive Questions
and Give Answers on that Statement
Councillor Duncan, the Leader of the Council, presented the following statement:
LEADER’S STATEMENT
This is our first Full Council meeting since the Covid-19 pandemic began. Lots has
happened, and it would be impossible to mention everything, but I will endeavour to
give the headline points and take your questions.
I could not be prouder of this council, and in particular the way our officers have gone
above and beyond to stand by our residents during one of the toughest period in the
district’s history. Despite everything, we’ve seen the very best of what our council can
do.
But it’s not just our officers worthy of thanks, I would like to congratulate councillors too
for coming together, across the political divide, to join forces with hundreds of
volunteers in all corners of our district. I hope this cooperation can continue in the
uncertain months ahead, as we play our role in the ongoing Covid-19 recovery and
face up to the prospect of big changes to local government in North Yorkshire.
Covid-19
Our key priority, from the outset of the emergency, was to protect lives and livelihoods.
I’m immensely proud that we’ve been able to help do this on behalf of our residents,
communities and businesses. And that is what we will need to do during the uncertain
times ahead by working together.

Council

3

Page 9

Thursday 10 September 2020

Delivering services
Our teams worked around-the-clock to deliver frontline services for our communities.
Most of our normal services operated throughout the emergency period, despite
increased demand and capacity constraints. We also played a key and significant role
in supporting those shielding and in need, working closely with town/parish councils,
volunteers and partners such as North Yorkshire County Council.
Business support
We are at forefront of efforts to support the local economy. We’ve led the way in getting
grants out of the door to those who need it - fast. In total, we distributed over £23.5m in
grants to more than 2,000 local businesses. That includes £1.1m of discretionary
business grants targeted at small and micro businesses unable to access other
assistance. A huge amount of work has gone on behind-the-scenes to develop and
deliver these grants. Without them, it is certain that many businesses in Ryedale would
not have been able to survive.
On top of this, we played a key role in getting businesses back open. We issued over
200 ‘back to business packs” to help them reopen and operate safely. We also
provided particular advice and guidance to hospitality and tourism businesses about
how to reopen safely, with 185 businesses registered for Visit England’s ‘We’re Good
to Go’ industry mark.
Voluntary and community groups
We’ve also been supporting our important voluntary, community and arts groups. The
council created a £40,000 emergency grants fund available to voluntary and
community organisations. This provided a lifeline cash injection so they could continue
supporting local people during this difficult time. Most recently, we also launched a
£5,000 arts grant scheme.
Budget
While all of this is happening, we’re of course keeping an eye on costs. The financial
impact of COVID-19, in a worst case scenario, is a 20/21 year end overspend of £3m.
So far, we have been provided with around £700k in financial support by Government.
And although we are very well placed to meet the extra costs from reserves, we are
continuing to lobby for additional funds. Our focus now is on tight financial
management, with heads of service working to contain costs and revise their plans for
the year.
Local Government Restructure
As if dealing with Covid-19 was not enough, we’re now facing another challenge.
Government will soon invite councils in North Yorkshire to submit proposals for unitary
local government in the county ahead of a devolution deal involving City of York. North
Yorkshire County Council has confirmed it will submit a plan to replace our current
councils (including Ryedale) with a ‘mega unitary’ authority. This means that change
now seems inevitable.
Covering 8,000km² and encompassing 620,000 people, the County plan would be
England’s largest ever unitary - and its generated significant public alarm and concern.
So reflecting on this mood, the leaders of North Yorkshire’s seven district and borough
leaders came together, across party lines, to work together on finding the best option
for unitary authorities across the county.
Council

4

Page 10

Thursday 10 September 2020

KPMG is now working to provide an independent and objective analysis of the options.
From a long list of 10, they have identified that an east/west model would deliver much
better in terms of finance and democracy, while complying with the Government’s
indicated “optimal” population threshold of 400,000 residents.
Our plan would create two brand-new councils across North Yorkshire and York, large
enough to be efficient into the future, but small enough to keep connected with our
communities:



Ryedale, Scarborough, Selby and York in the east, with a population of 465,375
Craven, Hambleton, Harrogate and Richmondshire in the west, with a
population of 363,297

It is almost certain that change is coming. And if it is, then the seven district and
borough leaders - Conservative, Labour and Independent - stand united and
determined to work together to get this change right. I would like to ask councillors here
in Ryedale too to work together, on a cross-party basis, to develop the very best model
for local government in North Yorkshire. It may be the last, and most important, thing
we do.
The following questions were received on the Leader’s Statement:
1. From Councillor Potter
“Before we get stuck into the Leader's Statement, can I just move back to page
13, which is part of the minutes of the last meeting, and question three from
myself to the Leader about cattle market development and a livestock market. I
had raised this issue at the December Council, had a little gentle reminder at
the 20th February meeting and the Leader's response was, 'thank you,
Councillor Potter. I don't want to give you an answer when I haven't been able
to check the full details and information, so what I will do is provide you with a
written answer to your question'. Now, in the intervening period I may have
missed that written answer over the seven months or so that it's been, but if not,
how is the answer coming along, please?
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Potter. It was my understanding that a written response
had been given to your question. I will follow that up and I will assure you that
you will get a full answer to that question. I'm trying to familiarise myself, yet
again with what happened on the 20th of February, given it's such a long time
ago. But I can give you an assurance that you will receive a full and written
answer to your question.”
2. From Councillor Clark
“You say under Covid-19, that our key priority – now, I don't know whether you
moved up from the Leader of this Council, through the post of Chief Executive
when I first arrived, and you've now landed in the royalty with the 'we' phrase,
because I don't remember any discussions around Council as to what we had
decided our priorities was – from the outset, was to ‘protect lives and
livelihoods’. And that seems a worthy claim that I suspect we collectively could
Council

5

Page 11

Thursday 10 September 2020

all support. However, people on the shielding list were contacted by you – if
you're claiming the credit for the whole of this – contacted by you on the 17th
and 18th and 16th, etc. of May to check if they had enough food. Now that
strikes me, if somebody hasn't had enough food from the 23rd of March, as
something of a delay. And it's hard to see if that was the priority, protecting
lives, I really do wonder what you'd have done if it hadn't been a priority. I want
you to give me an explanation for that please.”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Clark, for your question. The priority of this Council has
been to protect lives and livelihoods and I feel that we have done a phenomenal
job of doing that, as Ryedale District Council. That has required us working in
partnership with a range of organisations – the County Council, public health
authorities, central Government – and also a team of volunteers in all corners of
this district. Ryedale District Council has done a phenomenal job. Our partners
have done a phenomenal job. And what I'm not going to allow you to do in this
forum, on the return to Full Council, is in any way disrespect the work of this
Council. And the word 'we' has been used because this has been a joint effort,
not just by the Officers of this Council, not just by individual Members of this
Council, but the community as a whole and the partners which we've worked
with. I'm proud of what we've been able to do as a Council. I've never been
prouder of this Council. And I would like to think, Councillor Clark, that you can
share that sentiment of pride in this district and in this Council.”
Councillor Clark then asked the following supplementary question:
“I am proud of this Council, but I'm not proud of the Leader’s arrogance in
approach that what we have done is superb. There has been no scrutiny over
that time. If you look through the decision notices – which I understand we’re
going to go through next – there isn't a criticism from you at any point in there.
No challenge whatsoever. Now that may be fine, but it does mean that if people
were eight weeks potentially without food, it ought to be something that you are
looking into. For if – and I think that ‘if’ is getting a very small word – a second
peak arrives, as to what we would do better rather than pride. Because I think,
and I could be entirely wrong, but I think pride comes before something. And
the problem is that if that is protecting lives and livelihoods and the welfare of
people, I don't think we should be having that fall in their direction. And there is,
would you not agree with me, absolutely nothing in here to say what you – and
if you're carrying the can that's absolutely fine by me – not a criticism of what
you have achieved, not a statement in here as to what you have done in terms
of the mechanics of it and what it should be, but just a well done to everybody.
It is of course well done to everybody, is it not? But it's not perfect and if it is
perfect then it goes along with the attitude that's coming from the top. So the
highest death rate per 1000 – the highest death rate in the world virtually per
number of population – is not something to be proud of or ashamed of. It’s
something we need to work at to improve. Do you not agree?”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you once again, Councillor Clark, for your supplementary question. You
mentioned there about pride in this Council, I've made very clear that I'm proud
of this Council. I did not say that we had done a perfect job. And there
Council

6

Page 12

Thursday 10 September 2020

certainly are lessons in an unprecedented situation that we can learn and that
we have learnt. I did not say that we'd done a perfect job. I said we've done a
good job and a job that we can all be proud of. You mentioned two important
words that stood out for me, Councillor Clark. 'No scrutiny'. You, Councillor
Clark, are the Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee and I've had no positive
engagement from you whatsoever in the past six months. No contact, no
engagement, no questions, no challenge, no scrutiny. This Council voted – I
think unanimously, but I’ll have to check that – to put its faith into you, to be the
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. They put their faith in me
to be the Leader of this Council and I've taken that responsibility on in extremely
difficult circumstances. This Council expected you to do the same, yet I can
see no evidence whatsoever for how you have been able to try to improve our
response throughout this, to provide that challenge, to provide that scrutiny.
And I think it's important to make that point. I've tried my best as the Leader of
this Council. Our Officers, from the Senior Officers downwards, have tried their
best to give the very best response possible. I have not seen that from you and
I think that's a great shame.”
Councillor Clark was offered the opportunity to a personal right of reply.
Councillor Clark replied:
“Councillor Duncan, there was a motion put in asking to share the consultation
from the Chief Executive with you. That motion has still not been heard. And
we were quite happy to have scrutinised as a Scrutiny Committee, whatever.
But the Scrutiny Committee was abolished and the only consultation and
scrutiny in this was from yourself. And on that basis, we were told that we could
have no part in it as such – all the Committees. You made the decision as to
who you consulted with. If you like, I’ll do a deal with you if you’re that unhappy
– you resign as Leader of Council and I’ll resign as Chair of Scrutiny. How’s
that, through you Chair, to ease the tensions and make things a little easier.”
The Leader then replied:
“I think Councillor Clark has asked his question, has asked his supplementary
question. I think I've said all I need to at this point, Mr Chairman.”
3. From Councillor Keal
“I'd just like to ask the Leader of the Council if he agrees with me, that this is the
first meeting of this Council, as we are all aware, for some time and if this is not
the time to attack our Officers and also the huge numbers of volunteers out
there? The Members of this Council have actually supported Council Officers
and supported the community, and Councillor Clark may feel that there were
people that weren't getting assistance from this Council for a period of time – I
can assure you, as a member of the Ryedale volunteer network, they were
getting support from other people within the community. It's been a joint effort
and I do not agree that this is the time to start making accusations. And I have
to say that perhaps when Scrutiny does meet again then that is the time to talk
about this. But I am very disappointed that there are certain Members of this
Council that have chosen to absent themselves from the democratic process.
But I do not think this is the time for comments like those and I ask the Leader
of Council whether that is not a reasonable approach?”

Council

7

Page 13

Thursday 10 September 2020

The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Keal. I think that is an entirely reasonable approach to
take. I think it's the approach that most Members of this Council are taking and
I would just like to point out that there have been, in the past six months, 42
email briefings sent to Members. A significant amount of information has
flowed around the Council. There's also been 16 briefings or consultation
meetings, which is actually more meetings and briefings than would usually
take place. I recognise from looking around this Council Chamber, almost
everybody's face attending at least one, but in most cases, all of those meetings
or briefings. There is one face which I do not recognise from attendance at any
of those 16 meetings or briefings. It's been a very difficult time, a very busy
time, a very chaotic time. And it's not unreasonable to think that someone could
miss a single meeting or some of the meetings. But I think that perhaps for a
Member of this Council not to have attended one of those 16 meetings or
briefings is not acceptable and I think we have to ask what role that Member
was performing in the past six months. So thank you very much, Councillor
Keal for your question. I endorse what you've said fully.”
4. From Councillor Delaney
“Can I please ask the Leader why Anton Hodge, our Section 151 Officer, will be
withdrawn from working for Ryedale District Council by North Yorkshire County
Council? Especially after he's done such a good job and he's very well thought
of by many Members of this Council. Thank you.”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Delaney, for your question. The Section 151 Officer
performs an important role in the Council. He's performed an extremely
important role during recent months. I think it's very rare for us to have an
Officer that I think has respect from every single Member of this Council across
political groups, and our Section 151 Officer manages to accomplish that. I
think we like Anton, I think Anton likes us, but as we know this is a partnership
arrangement. This is a service which we pay for from North Yorkshire County
Council. They are contractually obliged to provide us with a Section 151
Officer. We've been extremely lucky that we've not just had a Section 151
Officer. We've had a phenomenal Section 151 Officer that has recognised the
problems that we've had with our finances in the past and been able to assist us
as Members to getting to where we want to be. It'll be a great shame to see
him leave this Council and I can't tell Members at this point in time specifically
when he will be leaving us, but I know that all Members will be disappointed
with that. As for the reason I think, Councillor Delaney, it would be best if I seek
further information from North Yorkshire County Council and share that with you
and other Members and maybe just leave Members to think about potentially
some of the reasonings there could be for that this evening.”
5. From Councillor Garbutt Moore
“Firstly, can I give my personal thanks to all the Council staff, Ryedale
Volunteer Network and the community groups that have worked very hard
during this turbulent time. My question to the Leader is, given that working
practices have changed dramatically during COVID-19 for many people,
Council

8

Page 14

Thursday 10 September 2020

including myself and the Council staff here at Ryedale, does the Leader still
plan to spend millions of pounds on a new Council headquarters for Ryedale
District Council?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Garbutt Moore. I think that is an important question and I
think it's something which the Council needs to give due consideration to. As
you have mentioned, we have set aside in our capital programme, millions of
pounds earmarked for the construction of a new Ryedale House. This has
been a project ongoing for many years with many twists and turns. We need to
do something about the condition of Ryedale House, which is not getting any
better. I think the changes that we've had with our workforce at Ryedale District
Council have shown that we can work effectively in different ways into the
future. And I think it does raise a question about the future of the project, the
Public Services Hub Project. And I think it's something which we need to bring
forward to Policy and Resources at the earliest opportunity for an update and to
decide on a way forward.”
6. From Councillor Oxley
“I think we've already seen the fact that we have suffered by not having as
many meetings as we used to. I might be the minority – a very small minority –
but I've actually missed our meetings. They are my social life in many ways,
which is a sad case. Anyway, my question for the Leader is, this evening we are
meeting in person, but with uncertain times ahead what is the strategy for
ensuring the situation continues like this for Council and Committee meetings?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Oxley for your question. I think it's best if I don't
comment on whether I enjoy Council Meetings or not. But what I will say is that
I think it's important that we are here this evening, setting an example to our
district as we go forward into the future that it's important that business as usual
continues safely. And I think it wouldn't seem very genuine of us as Members
to be saying that business should be continuing as usual, people should be
going to work, people should be going to the shops, people should be spending
money, if the civic duties of this Council are not fulfilled. So, I think it's
important that we are here. My personal view is that we should, subject to the
advice of our Officers, continue to meet in person where possible, to hold
socially distanced meetings. I think that's best for Council business to proceed
effectively into the future and I think also it does send that important symbolic
message to our district that if we can do it, everybody can do it. And we need to
ensure that we do carry on as best as possible but in a safe way.”
7. From Councillor Potter
“Just a comment first on something that the Leader said about democratic
processes during the last few months. Can I just remind him that democratic
processes were suspended and the decision-making powers were put into the
hands of the unelected Chief Executive? Just a little reminder. Going back to
the Leader’s statement, in the last paragraph regarding local government
restructure, it begins ‘It's almost certain that change is coming’. Now, I've seen
Council

9

Page 15

Thursday 10 September 2020

or received no documentation, no evidence, no written proposals from
Government. What I have heard is hearsay and word about private phone
calls. I'm interested to know why this Council is spending taxpayer’s money on
changes that are almost certain to be coming via hearsay and private phone
calls. Why have we got no evidence? Thank you.”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Potter for your questions. The first one around the
decision-making process – as you can see in the 300 pages that precede my
Leader’s statement, all the decisions that have been taken by the Chief
Executive as urgent decisions. The Constitution makes clear the process by
which those decisions can be taken. They have to be urgent – genuinely urgent
– and there has to be relevant consultation with Members. In most cases, that's
been the Leader of Council, but it's also been Chairmen of Committees and
Ward Members as appropriate. You, Councillor Potter, have been involved in
one of those decisions that was taken, and other Members have also been
involved in those as well. The Chief Executive has only made decisions that
are genuinely urgent, and those where feedback has been received from
Members that they are not genuinely urgent and should go through the
democratic process, those decisions were not taken and there are examples
within the 300 pages before the Leader’s Statement. For me as a Leader, it's
been important that although we haven't had meetings, we've still been able to
respond to the needs of the community. If those decisions were not taken, then
we would not have been able to have allocated millions of pounds of grant
funding to local businesses, tens of thousands of pounds of grant funding to
community and voluntary organisations. We would not have been able to have
had the capacity and the resources which we needed to respond to the
Coronavirus situation. So I am confident and happy to say, hand on my heart,
to all Members of this Council, that the decisions taken by the Chief Executive
were the right ones and the most appropriate ones. And where there was
potentially a decision that could have been taken, that wasn't taken and was
deferred for the democratic process, some of those items are on the agenda
tonight.
“The second part of your question, which is around the local government
restructure – you mentioned about hearsay, you mentioned about private phone
calls. I was invited along with the other Leaders of North Yorkshire and York
local authorities to a meeting on July the 7th with the Minister of State for Local
Government, Simon Clarke, where he stated that he would be writing to local
authorities in York and North Yorkshire inviting proposals for unitary local
government. It is not hearsay to hear direct from the mouth of a Government
Minister, his intention. The letter which was promised to us has not yet arrived
to the local authorities. But the intention, I believe, is for that letter to come.
And given the short timescales that are likely to be at play here, it was vital that
we had a proposal ready to submit. We held a briefing with Members where all
this information was shared and there was a strong feeling from Members that
the proposal that was coming forward from North Yorkshire County Council was
not the right proposal for this district and for its residents. That was shared
across political groups and therefore the Chief Executive made the decision that
we should allocate funding to the preparation of a proposal. The preparation of
that proposal has been based on evidence throughout. We have not decided
that we want to go with one option or another option, from the outset. We went
Council

10

Page 16

Thursday 10 September 2020

from a long list of options down to a short-listed option and a final option, which
performed most strongly. And I think this Council has got to ask itself a
question, which is: we can sit and bury our head in the sand and hope that this
does not happen, and then when it does happen regret that we didn't try to do
anything about it, or we be proactive in preparing a proposal which can come
back through Policy and Resources potentially, certainly to this Council, for
approval or for rejection. I personally feel that we should submit a plan to local
government that it is the best plan that we can possibly do for Ryedale. I am
hopeful that when that plan comes forward, it will be approved by this Council.
But in the meantime, consultation and engagement is ongoing with the public,
with businesses and with Members of this Council to try and shape that
proposal to be the very best that it possibly can be. But I would just like to give
the assurance that that proposal will come to this Council and it will be up to
Members to decide whether to approve or reject it.”
Councillor Potter then asked a supplementary question:
“As Councillor Clark alluded to, just prior to the lockdown I submitted a motion
to Full Council – I haven't heard a single thing since – which asked that any
consultation that was going to happen should be between the Chief Executive,
the Leader of the Council and Leaders of the various groups. That, I feel, would
have been appropriate consultation which would have covered all Members.
But that motion unfortunately disappeared without trace, which seems to be a
little bit out of order. So, does that cover the full democratic process, even
when powers have been suspended? Thank you.”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Potter. I have not seen your motion. I don't know who
you submitted it to – presumably Democratic Services. You would need to ask
them about the motion and the procedure for dealing with it. I am the Leader of
this Council. I'm not the Chairman of the Council. I'm not the Chief Executive.
I'm not the Monitoring Officer. That motion has been submitted and it should be
dealt with in accordance with the procedure laid out within the Constitution.”
8. From Councillor Graham
“In the light of the financial strain COVID-19 has put on us at the Council, does
the Council Leader still believe that it was right to call for a freeze on council tax
earlier this year?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Graham, for your question. You are right to recognise
that there has been financial pressure placed on this Council. The total cost
that we're looking at at the moment is £2.9 million pounds and you'll see later in
the documents this evening further details on that, and you will see a request
there to plug the shortfall of £1.9 million pounds from our reserves. It's
important to point out that this Council does have almost £16 million pounds in
its reserves. It added last year to those reserves – £854,000 in the last financial
year. That's £854,000 more than we spent, to go into reserves. And I think it's
important to recognise that the decision was taken by this Council to increase
council tax and that was roughly £108,000 that was added to reserves. I
Council

11

Page 17

Thursday 10 September 2020

personally feel that we have a responsibility as a Council to spend those
reserves when required and on projects that local people want us to spend it
upon. We can place the financial burden onto the taxpayer of this district at
what is an extremely difficult time for everybody. Or we can use the money
which we saved up for a rainy day – and I don't think there's any rainier day
than this one – to spend on plugging that shortfall. We have got more than
enough money in the bank to plug the expenditure which we have incurred, and
I think that's the right thing to do when people are facing financial difficulties in
all corners of this district.”
9. From Councillor Burr
“Our Leader and Chairman have thanked our staff for their work during the last
five months and I also thank them as well. And I also thank our voluntary
groups. However, would you agree with me that it's the good people of Ryedale
who need our collective and sincere thanks and huge gratitude for sticking to
the rules and doing the right thing by all? By doing this Ryedale had an
extremely low COVID infection rate. Moving on to the pandemic that we are still
in, which has caused so much heartache, worry, loss of jobs, financial ruin for
some, closure of business and uncertainty for all. Would our Leader agree that
during a pandemic, it is absolutely crazy, ridiculous, unnecessary and not the
right time to be thinking about reorganisation, potentially imposed on us by
Government? It's totally unnecessary during the pandemic. And following on, if
reorganisation is forced upon us, it's vitally important that we keep our
taxpayers money secure and spent in Ryedale for all the benefits of Ryedale
residents. Would do you agree it needs to spent and kept here, and we must
draw up a plan immediately, to ensure that we don't let our money go to anyone
else other than our Ryedale residents? It must be spent for Ryedale
ratepayers. I apologise, there was about three questions in there for you.”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Burr for your question. I would agree there is a lot going
on at this point in time. There was already a significant amount of things going
on before. I think the bombshell was dropped about unitary and potential
reorganisation. It was not something which I had expected and I don't think it
was something which the other Leaders across York and North Yorkshire had
expected either. But nonetheless, this is the situation and I do believe that
change is going to come to local government in York and North Yorkshire. And
I believe it's the right thing that we are part of that process, whether we like it or
not. It's important that we shape it and, as I say, if we bury our head in the
sand, all that's going to happen is something is going to be decided for us. We
have an opportunity to shape the future of local government and I think it's
important that we take that opportunity. In terms of our reserves, as I’ve alluded
to, we do have significant amounts in our reserves and I think it is fair enough
for us to identify projects which we may like to earmark for the expenditure of
those reserves and hopefully that is something which our Officers are able to do
and present to us as Members.”
Councillor Burr then asked a supplementary question:

Council

12

Page 18

Thursday 10 September 2020

“I do understand that we have to be proactive as a Council and that's something
that we are very, very good at. But do you agree with me that it's unnecessary
for the Government to force this reorganisation upon us at this time?”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Burr. Just for the avoidance of any doubt, I am not a
spokesman for the Government, but what I can say is that the Government
have ruled out completely top-down reorganisation. They will only move to
unitary arrangements where there is a proposal that has been presented by a
local authority. What that means for us in North Yorkshire is that any one
Council, North Yorkshire County Council or the seven district and boroughs, or
even the City of York, can present a proposal. That proposal goes forward to
the Minister. It's on his desk for his consideration. And that means the
Government can say that they are not doing top down reorganisation because
they have had a proposal from a local authority made up of elected councillors
within the area of York and North Yorkshire. So it means that as North
Yorkshire County Council have confirmed they are going to submit a proposal,
that will be on the Minister's desk and he would have the option to say yes to it,
if he wanted, or no if he wanted to do that. Which puts us in a bit of a catch 22
situation. The proposal is heading there, it could be the only proposal on the
table, or we say as a district council or as a group of district and borough
councils, we want to prepare an alternative proposal which can reach the
Minister at the same time and allow him to do something different, which we
may not necessarily think is the preferred option, but it may well be better than
the North Yorkshire County Council proposal, which is going forward. So, we
are in a catch 22 situation. We can do nothing, the North Yorkshire County
Council plan will reach Government and they have the option to approve it, or
we prepare an alternative proposal. That I think is the right course of action,
that's what I think we should do and I think that all members should be part of
that process.”
10. From Councillor Mackenzie
“Councillor Duncan, at a previous Council meeting a motion was raised
regarding the Dog Warden position. Could you update the Council on where
we've got to with that please?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Mackenzie, for your question and for reminding the
Council about the motion which you submitted in conjunction with Councillor
Garbutt Moore, calling for us to look at the Dog Warden functions. I'm pleased
to be able to tell the Council that we now do have two new Enforcement
Officers that I believe have started this week and which will be able to tackle a
range of enforcement issues, will receive specialist training in the area of Dog
Warden duties, and will be able to respond to enforcement, animal welfare
concerns and complaints from the public. I believe that this is a positive move
forward for us as a Council. I think it will help us have the capacity which we
need to deal with the issues raised by members of the public, not just in animal
welfare, not just in Dog Warden duties, but in a whole range of functions outside
of that. And I would like to think that if the two new posts prove successful, we

Council

13

Page 19

Thursday 10 September 2020

will be able to expand these posts and recruit more of the Enforcement Officers
into the future.”
11. From Councillor Clark
“Councillor Duncan, you appear to believe that a briefing meeting – i.e. telling
people what is happening – is either democracy or scrutiny. It is neither. So on
that basis, we have had no democracy in relation to unitary systems, to which
way we'd like to go. Oh, we will be getting a vote but we haven't even got an
item on the agenda tonight as such. So, on that basis that you are consulting
with us and telling us which way you'd like this, us, to go and then your basis
that is democracy and somebody scrutinised it somewhere, I wonder if you
could tell me, because we will be moving, will we not – if your recommendations
and your favoured option were to happen – from North Yorkshire, from the
Health and Adult Services in North Yorkshire – and I haven't heard your
criticisms of Health and Adult Services of North Yorkshire or the Children and
Young People Services of North Yorkshire, which you believe we can do better
than – all in the middle of a pandemic, what are your questions and criticisms of
North Yorkshire’s Public Health? Because if we don't hear that lot, how do we
know why you’re wanting to go along and change things. And you put in here,
as a final little bit in that area of the question, you describe it as a ‘megaunitary’, but the mega-unitary is in quotes. Who are you quoting here as
describing it as a mega-unitary, or is that just quoting yourself? Thank you,
Chair.”
The Leader of Council replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Clark, for your question. Without getting too involved in
punctuation marks around the words mega-council, what I would like to say is to
confirm what is in my statement. And that is that the plan which North Yorkshire
County Council are devising is to create the largest council in England. In
geographical terms that's 8,000 km2. That's 3,000 km2 larger than the largest
existing unitary authority, which is Northumberland, who have a population of
620,000 people. Again, that is significantly bigger than the largest existing
unitary on the basis of population. This would be the largest council ever to
have been created in England and I do not feel that that is going to be able to
suit and respond to the needs of all areas of North Yorkshire. Delivering county
services – strategic county services – at scale, is very different to delivering the
services which we deliver as a District Council. The proposals being put
forward, the east / west model, would allow some of those strategic services to
be delivered at smaller scale than they are at the moment. We have to
recognise that the district and the borough services will be delivered at greater
scale. But overall, what we would be creating is an authority that I feel will be
able to better respond to the needs of the people in Ryedale and the people of
North Yorkshire as a whole.”
Councillor Clark then asked a supplementary question:
“Thank you, Chair. It’s interesting, as the hub of my question was on why we
wanted to move out of a council of 600 and something thousand that we are in
now for Health and Adult Services, for Children and Young People, and in the
middle of a pandemic, move out of the Public Health run by that authority? Of
course, we're going to have different arrangements, a unitary, in relation to bin
Council

14

Page 20

Thursday 10 September 2020

collection and planning and / or whatever. But I'm asking you before we change
– and you appear to be going along with this change unless I can see a copy of
the Leader of this Council’s letter to the- I think the guy who told you all this has
gone hasn’t he, and if he has then, how much can we rely on the non-written
word that hasn't been even written, let alone said, by somebody? – so on that
basis, through you Chair, are you going to tell me what improvements York
would have in relation to Health and Adult Services, Children and Young
People, and Public Health? Because if you don't answer that, all you are talking
about is power out of it. And all this lot is consultation – it is not democracy. We
as a Council should, through you Chair, have been deciding what we wanted to
do. You should not be wandering around on our behalf, waving a cheque book
and spending thousands of pounds that aren't mentioned in the decision lists –
no mention of this spending in there. I haven't got a clue where that was spent
and why, apart from what was said earlier – that it was a discussion from a
briefing. That is not the way for a Democratic Council or a Council that accepts
challenge. And on that basis, either do some explaining or can we do it
properly? Thank you, Chair.”
The Leader then replied:
“What I will reiterate is that we have a choice to make. The County Council plan
is going to go forward. We may well support and like the County Council plan.
But the feedback from across political groups in this Council that I have heard,
and the feedback from members of the public, is that the County Council plan is
the wrong plan for this district and for the county as a whole. So, what we've
decided to do, district and borough Leaders across seven local authorities, is
come together across the political divide – Labour, Independent, Conservative –
commission a piece of work to look at what is the best way of delivering council
services across York and North Yorkshire. We didn't say draw up a proposal
for an east / west model. We didn't say draw a proposal to create County
Council 2.0. What we said is find the very best way of structuring local
government in line with the parameters set by the Government and in line with
objective criteria. And we will then take that back to our Councils, go out to
public consultation, and hopefully submit that to the Government so the Minister
can consider it as part of this piece of work. I think that is the right course of
action and the only course of action open to us at this point in time. If we bury
our head in the sand on this, if we don't do anything for weeks or months on
end, we will get nowhere. We will not have a proposal. So, I think this is the
right course of action.”
12. From Councillor Riby
“I've listened carefully to the discussion and the questions that have been
answered, questions made to our Leader. I would like to remind you – it's been
covered again and again – but in the virtual meeting in July Councillor Duncan
said about we had until the end of August to come up with a solution or a
proposal. He also emphasised the financial gain to Ryedale area would be in
the region of, I think, £2 billion over the next 30 years. And I sometimes wonder
where some of these ideas come from? And I can only say that it's quite
regular for central Government to put out or leak what their wanting to do to
gauge what reaction the public and the electorate are going to give to what
they're leaking. And it seems to me we've gone right down that line where
we've got no option of saying we want to stay as we are. That's not mentioned
Council

15

Page 21

Thursday 10 September 2020

at all. We have no option, it would appear, but we only have to make proposals
that we want to change. Under the leaked system if we said ‘no, we don't want
to change’ they would perhaps listen. But we've fallen into the trap of saying,
oh, yes, we will do this or we'll do that and I am not sure that that would be a
good thing at all. In fact, the people I represent and the people I've spoken to,
they wonder why we want to change. It seems kind of like it's moving power
away from the people, not bringing it closer to them, which is what you all
suggest. Would you agree with what I say?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Riby, for your question. I'll start off my in answer by
saying that I agree with unitary local government. I believe that unitary is a
clearer, less confusing and more efficient way of running local government
services. However, what I do not like, as I think is abundantly clear, is the
proposal that's come forward from the County Council to create an extremely
large unitary authority. The Government have given parameters around the
size and the scale of the unitary authorities and the North Yorkshire proposal
goes 200,000 in population above that. The proposal that we come with
complies completely with the government requirements for unitary authorities
into the future. The option of staying as we are – I think it's worth pointing out
that many of the district and borough Leaders feel passionately about district
councils. They feel passionately about the two-tier system. They would, if they
could, choose the status quo – no change. But what I think it says when you
can see around the table of the seven of us, the Leader of Hambleton District
Council, who is perhaps one of the most vocal and strongest critics of unitary
local government. When you look at the leader of Selby District Council, who is
on the board of the District Councils Network and who feels passionately about
the work of district councils. When you see those two individuals sat around a
table of seven, across party lines, working up a proposal, I think it perhaps
makes very clear what is happening. The inevitability, I feel, of what is
happening. They are actually saying we'd like to stay as we are is not an
option. What we have said is that many of us would rather stay as we are, but
failing that we have to come up with a proposal that can rival what is going to be
on the table from the County Council. I would expect that if North Yorkshire
County Council withdrew their bid, then the seven district and borough councils
would withdraw theirs. The proposal we're drawing up is to counter that
proposal and to come up with something which I feel is much more efficient and
much better for local people and for local residents. So, it's not really a choice of
staying as we are. We can say that but I think we recognise as districts and
borough Leaders, that change is, I think, almost certainly going to happen and
therefore it's vital, as I've said many times, that we draw up a proposal that we
can submit if this Council wants to do so.”
Councillor Riby then asked a supplementary question:
“We were in a similar situation, as I understood it, more or less in the mid-90s
when John Prescott and his crew were wanting to do something similar, as I
understood it, and there was no option then but to do that. You couldn't stay as
you were. I would suggest that failed because they couldn't agree amongst
themselves and I would suggest to you now that the letter that you were
promised that we are to fulfil an answer, is delayed because there's dithering

Council

16

Page 22

Thursday 10 September 2020

and they're waiting to see which they can get away with rather than what we
want them to do.”
The Leader then replied:
“I think, Councillor Riby, I can agree with you that we need clarity and we
deserve clarity from the Government.”
13. From Councillor Frank
“In your east / west divide proposal, where will the headquarters of the East and
where will the West headquarters be based? It will make a huge difference to
the dynamics of the new council and for people accessing the services. And if
I can ask, how will you get the expert recruitment to deliver the 80% of services
that County currently deliver when we already struggle to recruit skilled mid to
senior level staff?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Frank, for your questions. The first one around the
location of headquarters. That is not a decision which we have taken as district
and borough Leaders, it's not a decision which this Council can take. It would
be a decision that would need to be taken by a shadow authority or shadow
authorities that would be responsible for implementing and delivering on the
new local authorities that will be created. It's not a decision for this Council, so I
can't give you an answer on that at this point in time. The second question is
around recruitment of staff. One of the things that KPMG is looking at within its
report is around workforce – attracting skilled members of staff, retaining the
skilled members of staff. That is one of their considerations and one of the
things that they will look at and that will be reported back within the KPMG
report. I think it's worth pointing out, however, with senior and mid-level staff
there will be a reduction in the number of posts, which means there is likely to
be a competition for posts within the new unitary authorities. I would expect
that the pool of applicants for those jobs would exceed the number of posts and
therefore, I think that I'm confident in whatever arrangement there might be with
unitary authorities that we would get excellent leaders, excellent members of
staff, to guide us forward into the future.”
Councillor Frank then asked a supplementary question:
“Do you not agree that the headquarters are going to be of the utmost
importance to the new council and therefore needs to be part of the proposal?”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Frank. I do agree that it is clearly an important decision
that needs to be taken. What I'm trying to say is that we could put something
into a proposal. County could put something into their proposal. We could put
something into our proposal if approved. But we can't tie the hands of the
future authorities. That has got to be a decision for the future authorities. I
think whatever happens there needs to be local access points across York and
North Yorkshire where people can access local government services. I think
whatever model emerges that is going to be a requirement, something within
Council

17

Page 23

Thursday 10 September 2020

the proposals. One thing that I think we're pretty confident about is that the
location of a North Yorkshire unitary will be the existing headquarters of the
County Council, which is based in Northallerton. And I have to say that I don't
feel that for anybody in North Yorkshire, Northallerton is a particularly
convenient point to locate a local authority, perhaps even for the people living in
Northallerton given some of the traffic issues and congestion problems that
they've got. So, I think careful consideration does need to be given, but I do not
feel that Northallerton would be a logical place for a unitary authority to be
based for us here in Ryedale. I think we can look perhaps somewhere more
convenient. But as I say, that is a decision for the new unitary authority to
take.”

104

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - Outturn 2019-20
It was moved by Cllr Duncan and seconded by Cllr Arnold that the following
recommendations be approved and adopted:
i)

The Council notes the contents of the report and that the Surplus Balance of
£32k has been transferred to the General Reserve.
ii) The Council approves a carry forward of £1.301m from the Capital Programme.
Councillor Clark moved and Councillor Potter seconded the following amendment:
Delete the recommendations and replace with:
i) The Council notes the contents of the report.
ii) The report is referred to the Policy and Resources Committee
and the Audit Committee to be considered at the earliest
convenient date.
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Recorded vote:
For: Councillors Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Potter, Thackray and Wass
Against: Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt
Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Keal, King, Mackenzie, Mason, Middleton, Oxley,
Raine, Raper, Riby, Windress
Upon being put to the vote, the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
i)

The Council notes the contents of the report and that the Surplus Balance of
£32k has been transferred to the General Reserve.
ii) The Council approves a carry forward of £1.301m from the Capital Programme.
Voting record
25 For
2 Abstentions

105
Council

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - Q1 2020/21
18

Page 24

Thursday 10 September 2020

It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendations be approved and adopted:
That Council:
i) Endorses the actions of officers and note the contents of the report.
ii) Agrees that an amount from reserves will be required to offset the net additional
costs arising from COVID.
Councillor Clark moved and Councillor Potter seconded the following amendment:
In recommendation i) delete “Endorses” and replace with “Notes”; delete “note”.
In recommendation ii) replace “Agrees” with “Notes”.
Insert “iii) Refers the report to the next available meeting of the Policy and
Resources Committee.”
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Recorded vote:
For: Councillors Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Frank, Mason, Potter, Raine, Riby, Thackray
and Wass
Against: Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Garbutt Moore,
Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Keal, King, Mackenzie, Middleton, Oxley, Raper and
Windress
Upon being put to the vote, the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council:
i) Endorses the actions of officers and note the contents of the report.
ii) Agrees that an amount from reserves will be required to offset the net additional
costs arising from COVID.
Voting record
Unanimous

106

Ryedale's Financial Strategy 2020-2024
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendations be approved and adopted:
The Council is asked:
 to note the content of this report, and
 to agree the proposed approach in pulling together the financial plan, and
 to agree the timescales as set out in the report
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.

Council

19

Page 25

Thursday 10 September 2020

Resolved
That Council:
 notes the content of the report, and
 agrees the proposed approach in pulling together the financial plan, and
 agrees the timescales as set out in the report
Voting record
Unanimous

107

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following Part
'B' Committee Items:

108

Minute 122 - Council Plan 2020-2024
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Oxley that the
following recommendation be approved and adopted:
That the Council Plan 2020-2024 is approved, which is attached as Appendix 1 to
the report.
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved
That the Council Plan 2020-2024 is approved, which is attached as Appendix 1 to the
report.
Voting record
23 For
4 Abstentions

109

Motions on Notice Submitted Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11
Proposed by Councillor Keal and seconded by Councillor Mason
[Please note that this item was considered at Policy and Resources Committee on 19
March 2020 and subsequently as part of a Decision Notice issued under urgency
powers.]
“In view of the continuing calls for west east access to the A64 from York Rd, we call
on Ryedale District Council to work with North Yorkshire County Council and the
Highways Agency to explore the possibility of a roundabout at the Huttons Ambo
junction on the A64 to help alleviate the traffic congestion levels in Malton and Norton.
The roundabout would allow access to the A64 east from York Road, reducing the level
of traffic, including HGVs, that have to pass through Malton and Norton to access the
A64 and create east/west access at both ends of the Malton bypass.
Furthermore, with the concern widely expressed for the safety of children and parents
accessing Malton County Primary School and St Mary’s RC School on Highfield Lane,
Malton, we call on Ryedale District Council to support a HGV ban between the Peasey
Hill Road junction and Hawthorn Avenue.

Council

20

Page 26

Thursday 10 September 2020

We request that Officers be asked to enter into negotiations with North Yorkshire
County Council to follow the process required to introduce this ban.”
Councillor Duncan proposed and Councillor Docwra seconded the following
amendment:
Delete the motion and replace with:
“The Council welcomes the commitment from North Yorkshire County Council
to undertake work to develop proposals for a junction that allows for all-direction
managements between York Road and the A64, near the western end of the
Malton Bypass. It is understood that the intention is to develop proposals to a
stage whereby bids for funding the junction could be submitted at short notice.
Further, officers will continue discussions with colleagues at North Yorkshire
County Council with the aim of identifying options and developing proposals for
a junction or slip roads between Broughton Road and the A64.”
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was carried.
Voting record
21 For
2 Against
3 Abstentions
Councillor Keal proposed and Councillor Mason seconded the following amendment:
After “between York Road and the A64,” insert “and the alternative option for a
roundabout adjacent to the Huttons Ambo junction”.
Upon being put the vote the amendment was lost.
Voting record
4 For
16 Against
6 Abstentions
Councillor Mason proposed and Councillor Keal seconded the following amendment:
Insert “ii) The District Council welcomes the proposed part-time HCV prohibition
on Highfield Road and calls for it to remain in place until the detailed schemes
for A64 junctions have been developed, the implications for the internal
highways network have been assessed and the implementation is due to go
ahead (subject to NYCC seeking to minimise the potential for HCVs to simply
divert via the AQMA).”
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Recorded vote:
For: Councillors Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Keal, Mason, Potter, Raine, Riby, Thackray
and Wass
Council

21

Page 27

Thursday 10 September 2020

Against: Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt
Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, King, Mackenzie, Middleton, Oxley and Windress
Abstain: Councillor Raper
Upon being put to the vote the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
That Council welcomes the commitment from North Yorkshire County Council to
undertake work to develop proposals for a junction that allows for all-direction
movements between York Road and the A64, near the western end of the Malton
Bypass. It is understood that the intention is to develop proposals to a stage whereby
bids for funding the junction could be submitted at short notice.
Further, officers will continue discussions with colleagues at North Yorkshire County
Council with the aim of identifying options and developing proposals for a junction or
slip roads between Broughton Road and the A64.
Voting record
Unanimous

110

Appointment of a Representative to the Milton Rooms Management Committee
This item was deferred.

111

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent
There being no items of urgent business, the meeting closed at 9:45pm.

Council

22

Page 28

Thursday 10 September 2020

Agenda Item 4b
Council
Minutes of Proceedings
At the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of the District Council of Ryedale held Virtually on Monday
2 November 2020
Present
Councillors

Joy Andrews, Paul Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr MBE, Clark,
Cleary (Chairman), Cussons MBE, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt Moore
(Vice-Chairman), Goodrick, Graham, Hope, King, Mason, Middleton, Oxley,
Potter, Raper, Riby, Thackray, Wass and Windress

In Attendance
Will Baines, Stacey Burlet, Christine Phillipson, Margaret Wallace and Louise Wood.
David Kitson - Monitoring Officer.
Minutes

14

Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Cllr Delaney, Cllr Keal, Cllr MacKenzie and Cllr
Raine.
15

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.
16

Questions on Requisition

From Councillor Wass – Question 1
“Who made the decision that the mega Council was not appropriate for the
people of Ryedale? And on what evidence?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you Councillor Wass for your question. In anticipation of the
government's letter, inviting proposals to reorganise, North Yorkshire, seven
districts and borough councils jointly commissioned KPMG to assess a range of
options in an objective and fair way. The case for change concluded that the
east and west model performs more strongly than any other. With the so-called
mega council option failing in terms of service delivery and democratic
accountability and financial sustainability. Full details of the analysis can be
found in the case of change document.
A decision by Ryedale District Council members on whether or not to support
the submission of the east and west model included in the case for change will
take place at this week's extraordinary meeting of all Council.

Council

1

Page 29

Monday 2 November 2020

Supporting submission of east and west to government does not necessarily
equate to support for this proposal or rejection of any other. Formally, it means
that this council believes that east and west should be submitted to government
for consideration.
While I am a supporter of unitary local government in principle, I remain
certainly opposed to reorganisation at this uncertain and worrying time for our
residents. This view is shared by the other six districts and borough leaders.
Sadly, the County Council appears determined to submit its mega council
proposal on Wednesday. If that happens, I feel this Council has no option but to
respond by submitting the east and west proposal to the Secretary of State.
This will allow him to consider two proposals, each with their respective
strengths and weaknesses, for making any decision. Ultimately, it is his
decision, but we can help influence and shape the outcome in the best interests
of Ryedale residents”
Councillor Wass then asked a supplementary question:
“Where does it actually mention though, in the report, you know, the words,
'mega council', I've looked through the record, and I can see where that phrase
is used, or is being commissioned in its wording. It's a weighted phrase, if you
like the word 'mega council', which are making or loading us to think in a certain
way. So, I just want to know where that phrase has come from, because as I
say, it's not mentioned in any of the reports.”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Wass, for your supplementary question. I think the
simple answer very much is 620,000 people, 8000 square kilometres. This
would be the biggest local authority ever created in England. And if this isn't a
mega council, then there is no mega council anywhere else in the country. This
would be something unlike local government that exists anywhere else in the
country”.
From Councillor Brackstone – Question 2
“In the above decision, who had the competency to decide on i), children and
young people services?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Brackstone for your question. My answer is that Ryedale
district council has not yet made a decision.
However, in preparing the case for change, KPMG utilised experts in these
fields to contribute to the overall findings of the study. Further details of the
team members experience can be found in 4.7 Chief Executives briefing note,
which has been circulated to all members via email, and this is the answer to
the further subsections of this question in terms of Children's Services, Health
and Adult Services, Public Health and Education.”
Council

2

Page 30

Monday 2 November 2020

Councillor Brackstone then asked a supplementary question:
“According to the report, North Yorkshire County Council is outstanding in
Children and Young People Services, yet York Council needs improvement. So,
on this basis, why have we decided to basically cut the North Yorkshire Children
and Young People services in half? Why not just carry on with the North
Yorkshire County Council services being outstanding on its own?”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Brackstone for your question. A key part of the study
which KPMG have done is to look at all options and to look at the whole
footprint. And that means not just North Yorkshire, but City of York as well. And
the purpose of the study is to look at how best to deliver services to all 800,000
residents across that footprint. And that means that in certain areas, North
Yorkshire has best practice examples of strength. In others, it's weaker. The
City of York, there's examples of strength in some areas, but in other areas of
delivery, they are weaker. The advantage, I think of the approach that KPMG
have taken is that the whole patch has been looked at and what can benefit all
residents across that geography. Meaning that we can share best practice, we
can share expertise to ensure that everybody has access, not just to the good
services, not just to mediocre services but really excellent, truly excellent
services into the future. And that includes Children's Services.”
From Councillor Clark – Question 3
“How does the breaking up of North Yorkshire Public Health Department help in
the current campaign against COVID-19?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Clark, for your question. As I've already stated, I'm
totally opposed to reorganisation at this uncertain and worrying time when the
focus of all authority should be responding to COVID-19 and supporting
residents in need of help as we enter a second nationwide lockdown. My hope
is that the County Council decides ultimately not to submit the mega council
proposal on Wednesday. But if it is submitted, I feel this council is left with no
option, but to respond by submitting the east and west proposal. If the County
Council does submit its proposal, it will be that authority, which is ultimately
responsible for the consequences of triggering reorganisation at this critically
important and critically sensitive time. While I am gravely concerned about the
short-term implications of the reorganisation process, and the potential
disruption and distraction that this will cause, there is potential in the longerterm, I believe to strengthen the response to public health emergencies, such
as COVID-19 by building on current excellence. Not just in North Yorkshire, but
in the City of York too. The east and west model has the potential to accelerate
partnership working and full expertise to help more effectively manage
emergencies into the future. Instead of breaking up departments as Councillor

Council

3

Page 31

Monday 2 November 2020

Clark calls it, we have a chance to promote much closer working than ever
before.”
Councillor Clark then asked a supplementary question:
“So, we're going to break something up and not know what we're putting in each
place. When what we've got for public health appears to be working incredibly
well. Can you give us the logic behind doing that?”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Clark, for your question. As I think I've made very clear.
I'm opposed to reorganisation at this time when we are facing up to the COVID19 emergency situation. As I've also made it very clear, we are not breaking up
services. Actually, there is an opportunity here to have closer working, joint
working partnership working than ever before across North Yorkshire and York
by using the expertise which we have across both public health departments.
That is not breaking up services that is actually making them stronger by
working together more united into the future.”
From Councillor Clark – Question 4
“Can we have copies of the tendering process?
i)
How many organisations bid?
ii)
What was their expertise in CYPS, HAS, Public Health, Education?”
The Leader replied:
“In answer to a Councillor Clark’s question. Thank you, Councillor Clark. The
appointment of KPMG was handled on behalf of the seven district and borough
councils by Scarborough Borough Council. Given the short timeframe involved
SPC used a procurement framework to appoint KPMG. Further details of the
tendering process are available in 4.3 at the Chief Executive briefing not, which
has been circulated to all members by e-mail.”
From Councillor Wass – Question 5
“Can we please have a copy of the terms of references and timescales
including the deadlines given to KPMG?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Wass for your question. A copy of this is included in the
Chief Executive briefing note that's been circulated to all members by email.”
Councillor Wass then asked a supplementary question:
“I'm just a bit perturbed that we're getting everything at the last minute. And as
part of the tendering process, whether or not it's over £25,000. Collectively it is
and there is a four-week window in terms of which members should have been
alerted to what was going on in terms of this process. It's taxpayer’s money
Council

4

Page 32

Monday 2 November 2020

that's being used. And at the end of the day, really, you know, to get all this
information at the last minute, where we haven't had a chance to read anything
to do with this. If that's been included in the Chief Executive’s email today, I
don't know, but it's not really adequate to give us an informed and professional
opinion where we can reflect and maybe not need to ask certain questions like
this.”
The Leader then replied:
“You mentioned there Councillor Wass about information. There was a very
comprehensive briefing held by the Chief Executive on the 23rd of July, which
was discussing the procurement process and the appointment of KPMG.
Unfortunately, no representative of the Liberal Group, I believe was present for
that briefing.
Also the questions which you are now asking, a few days before the full council
meeting where we're going to make the most important decision over this
Council has ever made were answered, they were answered at that briefing
session.
And also, as I hope you can imagine, today is Monday. And we are meeting
again on Thursday. So, there is actually several days in which all members of
the Council, yourself included, are able to look at this information. And I would
like to extend to all members of the Council yourself, including Councillor Wass
that anybody who has any questions that they wish to ask and that need clarity
on, I'm happy to answer those questions. If members contact me, I haven't had
any contact so far from the liberal group outside of this meeting forum. But I am
happy, for any member of the Council to ask me questions and I will endeavor
to do all that I can to answer them. And I also know that the Chief Executive is
available and willing to share all information with members to help them make
any decision that they need to on Thursday, at the extraordinary meeting.”
From Councillor J Andrews – Question 6
“Can we please have copies of communications with NYCC that enables our
leader to decide that our Council would not support the NYCC proposal?.”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Andrews, for your question. No decision has been taken
for or by this Council. The Council's position will be determined this Thursday at
the extraordinary meeting. However, the objective analysis contained within the
case of change supports my personal view, the North Yorkshire and York model
is not the optimal solution for local government in our county. I continue to
believe that it would be wrong to subsume Ryedale is the largest council in
England, with a population rivalled only by Birmingham and Leeds. I believe this
proposal is wrong for our staff, for our businesses and for our residents.
Covering 8000 square kilometres and stretching almost coast to coast, I fear
this authority will be too largely effective and too remote to represent our

Council

5

Page 33

Monday 2 November 2020

residents. My hope is that we can keep local government local in our county by
backing in submitting an alternative to government.”
Councillor Andrews then asked a supplementary question:
“Haven't we got the communications between the leader Ryedale and North
Yorkshire? Are there any communications?”
The Leader then replied:
“Councillor Andrews, KPMG met with the Chief Executive of the County Council
and held a discussion with them on this piece of work. I was going to refer to
this in the answer to the next question. Discussions were also held with the City
of York Council which I will also refer to in a subsequent question, and they also
did not wish to be part of the KPMG piece of work. They've done their own
piece of work, which has now been published into the public domain.”
Councillor Clark then asked a supplementary question:
“If North Yorkshire, I'm going have to do your work for you Leader. If North
Yorkshire have put in local delivery units like the KPMG report is suggesting,
then that would have delivered would it not a similar picture? However, KPMG
is not recommending local delivery units so, that Ryedale and local services for
local people could be decide by local councils - it cannot. So, would not North
Yorkshire have been able to have done that? And did you suggest that as an
amendment to North Yorkshire?”
The Leader then replied:
“Mr. Chairman, I don't wish to avert the question. But I also don't wish people to
get confused because the next question is about the amendments to the NYCC
bid. Which I am happy to answer at the appropriate point in time, but I suppose
for the moment all I would say is NYCC are responsible for their bid. I have no
engagement from them and no contact with them.”
Councillor Clark then asked:
“I'm sorry Chair, I maybe didn't express my supplementary clearly. The KPMG
report refers to local delivery units. But then doesn't put any local delivery unit
into its report. How does that make it local?”
The Leader then replied:
“There is Councillor Clark, as you've referenced in the appendix, a proposal,
which does I think, refer to almost the status quo situation, in the district and the
borough councils as local delivery units. Is that what you are referring to?”
Councillor Clark the replied:

Council

6

Page 34

Monday 2 November 2020

“I'm saying it refers in there when it's talking about a... got me thinking mega
councils now. When you've got combined authorities, then you would need to or
could have local delivery units. But North Yorkshire have had for many decades
a local delivery unit, which meant that Ryedale area committee was in a position
to decide Ryedale area decisions. This is not in the KPMG report. So, in your
East-West solutions, there is no local delivery unit, why not?”
The Leader then replied:
“The KPMG report is in effect an options appraisal of 10 different options to look
at the best geography for structuring local services, clearly between the East
and West model and the North Yorkshire and York model being proposed by
the County Council. Both of those new models have authority then which is
significantly bigger than the existing boroughs and districts. I think there is an
acceptance that both of those are going to have to have some form of areabased committees to make decisions such as planning and licensing.
That I believe... sorry, there is reference Councillor Clark within the proposal at
KPMG within the case for change to a model for delivery and the decisions on a
local basis. That is further work which needs to be elaborated upon on this
model, and this has been proposed by KPMG. But in all of these circumstances
and all of the proposals, there is going to have to be some form of area-based
committees to be able to make those decisions.”
From Councillor Brackstone – Question 7
“Has the North Yorkshire County Council proposal been scrutinised, by whom
and when?”
The Leader replied:
“Sorry, Mr. Chairman, I believe I've answered the question in saying that the
County Council proposal is the County Council's proposal. The content of that
has been determined by the County Council. The scrutiny of that and
amendments to it must be determined by the County Council. That is not a
piece of work the District Council has been involved in the scrutiny of that is
down to the County Council.”
From Councillor Potter – Question 8
“What consultations have taken place the city of York Council and have we got
the views on the Ryedale District Council proposals?”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Potter, for your question. The KPMG team did meet with
the interim chief executive at City of York Council on August the 12th. The
purpose of the meeting was to discuss the City of York Council's position on
local government reorganisation, as well as to request information to inform the
options appraisal. Unfortunately, no information was forthcoming from City of
York Council.
Council

7

Page 35

Monday 2 November 2020

The Leader of Scarborough Council discussed the KPMG work with the Leader
of the City of York Council on August 20th. And also, the Chief Executive of
Ryedale District Council met with the Chief Operating Officer of City of York
Council today on November the 2nd.
What I can tell you is the City of York Council resolved, as a full council meeting
on October 29th, to submit a bid to the Government to remain as a unitary on its
current footprint. And not only that, but they also decided to join a strategic
partnership with North Yorkshire County Council. This would leave York in the
words of the government minister Simon Clarke who got the ball rolling on this
process as a unitary of ‘sub optimal’ size. I think it is important just to make very
clear, the government has given criteria which we must follow. And that criteria
says that unitary authority should be between 300 and 600,000 people.
The County Council proposal supported by the City of York to create one
authority, which is greater than the upper limit of 600,000, and to create another
authority, which is 100,000 people smaller than the lower limit. The east and
west proposal out of the two is the only proposal that complies with the
government's criteria.
It's worth pointing out as well, that the Government may, should it still wish to
decide, to accept a proposal for local government reform, even if one or more of
the authorities impacted do not support it. Consent is not required.
It is highly unlikely that there's going to be a single proposal that all nine
authorities are going to be happy with. I like to hope that there was, I really don't
think that there's going to be. It is, however, worth noting that the majority of
council leaders in York and North Yorkshire, seven out of the nine, support the
east and west model, that is a model that has the greatest consensus amongst
the nine local authorities.”
Councillor Potter then asked a supplementary question:
“It's interesting to hear that consent is not required because it would appear that
City of York Council don't particularly want to talk to us about setting up an east
west setup. So, how can we draw any meaningful proposals with City of York
Council, if we've not had any discussions with them about setting up an east
west?”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you Councillor Potter for your question. I don't know if I've been clear,
but we have tried to have constructive conversations with City of York Council,
who basically were not prepared to do that. We asked for information. And we
were told, basically use the information that's in the public domain. There has
not been a constructive dialogue with City of York Council. That's unfortunate.
But there's nothing we can do about that. And as I stated very clearly City of
York Council wish to remain as they are, and I believe the only reason for that
Council

8

Page 36

Monday 2 November 2020

not to look to any alternatives is purely self-interest. Because there are issues
that every council has, services which could be delivered better new ways of
working, that could be brought in, but City of York Council has flatly and robustly
refused to look at any proposal other than keeping City of York Council on its
current footprint. I think that is a grave mistake. I don't think that provides best
value to the taxpayer, to the residents of York, who I think can be really
advantaged by the east and west proposal as well as residents of North
Yorkshire, but we have tried, unfortunately, we have failed to engage the City of
York Council. But we really did try. But unfortunately, that wasn't possible. “
From Councillor Clark – Question 9
“Who took the decision to spend £25,000 on KPMG? And how much was
permitted before the tendering took place? “
The Leader replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Clark, for your question. Again, this is one that you
would have the answers to if you'd have attended the briefing back in July, but I
am happy to.
The decision to commission KPMG was taken jointly by the seven districts and
borough authorities. Up to £25,000, was allocated by each authority to cover the
cost of this research and preparation of a case for change. The decision was
taken to ensure that members of all seven authorities were fully appraise the
various options and able to respond if and when an invitation for proposals was
received from the government. In the case of Ryedale District Council, the
decision to spend £25,000 was made by the Chief Executive. Although within
delegated spending limits, a formal decision notice was prepared given the
absence of our meetings. This followed advice issued by the Monitoring Officer.
A copy of this decision notice has been sent to all members by email. No spend
was committed before the tendering took place. “
Councillor Clarke then asked a supplementary question:
“How do we know we'd need £25,000 then? Or is that just a number that came
back to us? And if that is a number that came back to us, what is needed is
£25,000. Is the rumour that KPMG cost £150,000. £150 times seven is
£175,000. What's happened to the other £25,000?
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Clark for your supplementary question. The Chief
Executive allocated up to £25,000 to cover the preparation of a business case
and an options appraisal by KPMG. It was a figure of up to £25,000. My
understanding and I will be able to get clarity on this for you is that the KPMG
report did not cost £25,000. But the figure and decisions taken by the Chief
Executive was to allocate up to £25,000, if this was needed.”
Councillor Clark then asked:
Council

9

Page 37

Monday 2 November 2020

“So, what happened to the extra? Did we put in £25,000 or some other
number?”
The Leader then replied:
“I think I made very clear and answered the question Mr. Chairman. The Chief
Executive made the decision up to £25,000 for the preparation of a business
case and options appraisal.”
Councillor Clark then asked:
“Sorry Chair, it's a simple question, how much did we put into the KPMG bid? “
The Leader then replied:
“I will be able to get clarity for you on that Councillor Clarke, but the decision
was taken by the Chief Executive, to allocate up to £25,000.”
Councillor Clark then asked:
“I understood, that I was perfectly clear.”
The Leader then replied:
“£25,000 isn't spent.”
Councillor Clark then asked
“How much was spent?”
The Leader then replied:
“I will be able to get clarity on that and provided to you, Councillor Clarke.”
Councillor Clark then asked:
“In a written reply in the minutes please.”
The Leader then replied:
“I'm happy to provide a written answer.”
From Councillor Wass – Question 10
“Could we please have copies of the minutes of the North Yorkshire Leaders
meetings from July to date.? “
The Leader replied:

Council

10

Page 38

Monday 2 November 2020

“Thank you Councillor Wass for your question. Minutes of the informal meetings
of local government York and North Yorkshire held on July 9th, August 27th,
and October 9th, and minutes of a North Yorkshire Chief Executive meeting
held on September 11th, have been sent to all members via email.”
Councillor Wass then asked a supplementary question:
“Thank you. Yes, I just get the feeling that we put these questions forward. And
it's taken these questions to go to you in order to get a reaction. And I know,
you know, we weren't there bless us in July. But there's been a lot happened
since July. You've mentioned this evening, meetings in August, meetings in
October. And yet it's come down to literally I presume today to get these emails.
And I'm sure, you know, other counsellors, as well as the liberals have benefited
from the questions that we've asked. And surely shouldn't it be up to you as
Leader to produce in a professional and transparent way, what these meetings
have entailed and why we need to be informed rather than as asking.”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you Councillor Wass, I think it's also worth informing you that there
wasn't just a briefing held in July. But there were subsequent briefings, which
the Liberal Group also failed to attend. There was also several email briefings
that have been circulated to all members, not only by the Chief Executive, but
by myself as Leader. I've endeavoured to share as much information as I
possibly can, with my fellow members. And I think I have done a good job of
doing that. I am happy to collate all of that information that's been sent over the
past six months or so. From the start of the first lockdown situation, to the
resumption of the meetings and beyond, I'm happy to provide that information to
you so that you can see exactly the scale of information that has been shared
with members at key junctures on this journey towards the meeting happening
on Thursday with a decision whether to submit or not in the business case.”
From Councillor Clark – Question 11
“Please list the public health benefits of breaking up the current public health
arrangements to Ryedale.”
The Leader replied:
“Thank you Councillor Clark for your question. Question three, which you asked
me earlier was how does the breaking of NYCC Public Health Department help
in the current campaign against COVID-19? I feel, that I have adequately
answered the question that you asked then. And I do believe that this question
is, in effect, a duplicate of that question, my answer to question three stands.
And I believe that I've answered that thoroughly and adequately.”
Councillor Clark then asked a supplementary question:
“Yes Chair. Does it ever occur to the Leader that the public out there ask
basically the following question in relation to this, and previous ones? Why is
Council

11

Page 39

Monday 2 November 2020

the Leader of council giving the general public his views rather than those of the
Council?”
The Leader then replied:
“Thank you, Councillor Clark for your question, which I'll be honest with you, I'm
struggling to understand. You've come to full Council and called an
extraordinary meeting to ask me a series of questions of myself as Leader of
the Council. I'm endeavouring to answer those questions to the best of my
ability. Some of the answers to the questions are in the KPMG report, which you
have had time to read and it's publicly available. Some of the questions that you
have asked, do relate to my own opinions. And I am allowed Councillor Clark,
and I hope all members support me in this, I am allowed to have opinions, like
every other member of the Council is entitled to have opinions and to express
them at full council meetings. And you've asked me the questions and I've done
my best to answer them as thoroughly and as comprehensively as I can.”
There being no other items of business the meeting closed at 8.15pm.

Council

12

Page 40

Monday 2 November 2020

Agenda Item 4c
Council
Minutes of Proceedings
At the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of the District Council of Ryedale held as a virtual meeting
on Thursday 5 November 2020
Present
Councillors

Joy Andrews, Paul Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr MBE, Clark,
Cleary (Chairman), Cussons MBE, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank,
Garbutt Moore (Vice-Chairman), Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Di Keal, King,
MacKenzie, Mason, Middleton, Oxley, Potter, Raine, Raper, Riby, Thackray,
Wass and Windress

In Attendance
Stacey Burlet, Nicki Lishman, Ellen Walker and Louise Wood
Minutes

17

Apologies for absence
There were no apologies for absence.

18

Declarations of Interest
Councillors Burr, Duncan and Goodrick declared a personal interest but non pecuniary
interest as Members of North Yorkshire County Council.
These Members confirmed that they would be taking part with an open mind, taking
into account all relevant information prior to making a decision, and exercise their
judgement in the best interests of the public and this Council.

19

Submission of KPMG Case for Change
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that the
following recommendations be approved and adopted.
That Council be recommended to approve:
(a)

the submission of the outline Case for Change to the MHCLG as set out at
Appendix 1 to this report to comply with the deadline of 9th November 2020.

(b)

authorise the Chief Executive to finalise the Case for Change and submit
the final proposal to the MHCLG to comply with the deadline of 9th
December 2020.

Councillor Clark moved following amendment:
“Alter (a) as follows:
(a)

Council

1

Page 41

Thursday 5 November 2020

i)

RDC requests the Minister to include local delivery units (LDU)
on the district and borough boundaries so as to deliver our aim of
‘local services for local people delivered by local councillors’

ii)

Approve the submission of the outline case for change as
amended above, to the MHCLG to comply with the deadline of
9th November 2020.”

On the advice of the Monitoring Officer acting on LGR matters, the amendment was
ruled out of order.
Councillor Clark moved and Councillor Potter seconded the following amendment:
“Delete (b) and replace with;
The Chief Executive to consult simultaneously with all Group Leaders before
finalising the Case for Change.”
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Voting record
14 For
16 Against
Recorded vote
For
Cllrs J Andrews, P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Frank, Hope, Keal,
Mason, Potter, Raine, Riby, Thackray and Wass
Against
Cllrs Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Cussons, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Garbutt
Moore, Goodrick, Graham, King, Mackenzie, Middleton, Oxley, Raper and
Windress
Councillor J Andrews moved and Councillor Wass seconded the following amendment:
“Amend (b) to read:
Authorise the Chief Executive to finalise the case for change and present the
document to Full Council on 3 December for discussion before submitting the
final proposal to MHCLG to comply with the deadline of 9 December 2020.”
Upon being put to the vote the amendment was lost.
Voting record
15 For
15 Against
Chairman’s casting vote – Against
Recorded vote
For
Cllrs J Andrews, P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Cussons, Frank, Hope,
Keal, Mason, Potter, Raine, Riby, Thackray and Wass
Council

2

Page 42

Thursday 5 November 2020

Against
Cllrs Arnold, Bailey, Cleary, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Garbutt Moore,
Goodrick, Graham, King, Mackenzie, Middleton, Oxley, Raper and Windress
Upon being put to the vote the substantive motion was carried.
Resolved
(a)

That the submission of the outline Case for Change to the MHCLG as set
out at Appendix 1 to this report to comply with the deadline of 9th November
2020 be approved.

(b)

That the Chief Executive be authorised to finalise the Case for Change and
submit the final proposal to the MHCLG to comply with the deadline of 9th
December 2020.

Voting record
21 For
7 Against
1 Abstention
Recorded vote
For
Cllrs Arnold, Bailey, Burr, Cleary, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Garbutt
Moore, Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Keal, King, Mackenzie, Mason, Middleton,
Oxley, Raine, Raper and Windress
Against
Cllrs J Andrews, Brackstone, Clark, Potter, Riby, Thackray and Wass
Abstain
Cllr P Andrews
There being no other items of business, the meeting closed at 10.20pm.

Council

3

Page 43

Thursday 5 November 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Leader’s statement, Full Council, December 3
We’re in the midst of unprecedented times, with the ongoing effects of the Covid-19
pandemic being felt by Ryedale citizens, businesses and council staff. The future is
uncertain, and while we are working hard to support Ryedale, local government
reorganisation will bring about even more change, whether we like or not.
There is lots to do and eyes are on us as councillors to stay focussed on the key priorities
and to fulfil the duties expected of us. It remains my genuine hope that we can put aside
our political differences to work together to do what residents, businesses and council
staff need. Petty squabbles, procrastination and political games risk nothing over than
damaging the reputation of this council and undermining our splendid work so far.
Covid-19
Our priority throughout this pandemic is to support the citizens of Ryedale, especially
those whose lives and livelihoods are most at risk as a result of Covid-19. We are, for
example, supporting homeowners and tenants who face financial difficulties and doing
what we can to prevent homelessness.
The second national lockdown has also dealt a cruel blow to the district’s businesses who
were already struggling to get back on their feet after the first. Our business team has
been advising on wider business support and are working around-the-clock to process the
latest government grants to help eligible businesses stay afloat and protect jobs. It is
expected that 1,200 applications will be made for the mandatory grants alone.
Community help
Once again, Ryedale communities are pulling together to help those who are struggling.
Our officers working with volunteers, partners, organisations and networks across the
district. There’s a tremendous amount of work going on to make sure that our most
vulnerable are supported, that our citizens are following the guidance to keep one another
safe and that things continue to run smoothly. It is partnership working at its very best.
New projects
Whilst responding to the challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic remains a top priority, the
council is not standing still. We continue to innovate and improve the way we do business
and improve the quality of life for citizens of Ryedale.
A refreshed website will make it easier for people to find the information they need, a
WiFi scheme in the market towns of Pickering, Malton and Helmsley will improve
connectivity, and two new Community Civil Enforcement Officers are now in post to
support communities and tackle antisocial behaviour to ensure that Ryedale remains a
beautiful, clean and safe place to live, work and visit.
Local Government Reorganisation
Following a series of extraordinary council meetings, Craven, Harrogate, Richmondshire,
Scarborough, Selby - and, of course, Ryedale - submitted an outline bid to Government on
November 9, making the case for why an ‘East and West’ model is the best way to
reorganise local government in the region. Thank you to the 21 Ryedale councillors who

Page 45

united together, across political lines, to support submission of our bid. I know that for
many this was a tough decision.
The model would see Craven, Harrogate, Richmondshire and Hambleton join together to
form a unitary council in the west, and Selby, City of York, Ryedale and Scarborough join
together to form a unitary council in the east.
Public support for this model is growing. New independent market research has revealed
that two thirds of residents prefer an ‘East and West’ model of local government for the
North Yorkshire and York region. What is more, Ryedale Unison has confirmed there is is
overwhelming support from our staff.
We are still gathering evidence to support our model and will be submitting the full
proposal on December 9. The help, support and assistance of councillors from all groups is
appreciated as we engage with the public on this matter. While there is lots going on, it is
important that we use our time, effort and resources to achieve the best outcome we can.
Thank you
I wish to say a public thank you to each and every member of our workforce. Their hard
work, determination and resilience during what has been perhaps the toughest year in the
history of local government has been remarkable. It is worth remembering that we are a
small team at Ryedale, with less than 200 workers delivering everything we do.
It must be acknowledged that there are creaks in the system as the workload increases. I
continue to champion our staff throughout this difficult time, and I hope that other
councillors can do so too. Wherever possible, it is vital that we relieve the burden on them
rather than add to it.
And finally, I would like to wish all councillors and your families a very Merry Christmas
and a healthy, prosperous 2021.

Page 46

Agenda Item 10a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 24 SEPTEMBER 2020

143

Update on Malton and Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity Workstream

Considered – report of the Programme Director of Economic Development, Business and
Partnerships
Recommendation
(i)

Members note the contents of the update report, including the indicative costs of the
schemes in the table at 7.1 (a);

(ii)

Up to £100k be allocated within the revenue budget and up to £350k be allocated
within the capital budget for contributions to development and delivery of the identified
schemes;

(iii)

Approval of expenditure of the above budgets be delegated to the Policy and
Resources Committee on a scheme-by-scheme basis.

Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 47

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
BUSINESS AND PARTNERSHIPS
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

UPDATE ON MALTON AND NORTON INFRASTRUCTURE
AND CONNECTIVITY WORKSTREAM

WARDS AFFECTED:

DERWENT, MALTON, NORTON EAST & NORTON WEST
(DIRECTLY)
& OTHER WARDS (INDIRECTLY)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To provide Members with an update on the various strands of work being developed
under the Malton and Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity work stream.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that Members:
(i)

note the contents of this update report, including the indicative costs of
schemes in the table at 7.1 (a);

(ii)

recommend to Council that up to £100k be allocated within the revenue
budget and up to £350k be allocated within the capital budget for
contributions to development and delivery of the identified schemes;

(iii)

recommend to Council that approval of expenditure of the above budgets be
delegated to the Policy and Resources Committee on a scheme-by-scheme
basis.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To enable continued development of a range of projects which aim to reduce
congestion and improve air quality and safety within Malton and Norton.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 49

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The main risks are:
i)

investment in project development or feasibility work at this stage carries no
guarantees that projects will proceed to full implementation and so it should be
recognised that such investment is ‘at risk’. Without this up-front investment,
however, projects are unlikely to proceed at all.

ii) formal prioritisation of major highways infrastructure schemes at this early stage
could impact upon the chances of securing support from funders / other partners
towards lower priority projects, however, failure to do so could mean that staff
resources are spread too thinly, slowing project development of all projects.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Council Plan priorities:


Sustainable Growth
o Promoting a strong economy with thriving businesses and
supporting infrastructure for future generations;
o Managing the environment of Ryedale with partners.



Customers & Communities
o Helping our partners to keep our communities safe and healthy.

5.2

Ryedale Economic Action Plan objective:
 A well connected economy:
o fast reliable journeys to the key centres, transport that underpins
growth, transport that connects employees and visitors to
businesses.

5.3

Local air quality management (LAQM) process places an obligation on the Council to
regularly review and assess air quality in the district, and to determine whether or not
the air quality objectives are likely to be achieved. Where an exceedance is
considered likely an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) must be declared and an
Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) prepared, setting out the measures to be taken in
pursuit of the objectives.

5.4

Following a detailed assessment in 2009, the Council declared an AQMA in parts of
Malton because the annual mean concentration of nitrogen dioxide exceeded the
relevant air quality objective at various relevant receptor locations. Whilst no
exceedances of the annual mean nitrogen dioxide objective have occurred within the
Malton AQMA for the last three years, increases in queuing related to congestion at
the level crossing are anticipated in line with the planned introduction of additional rail
services. Ryedale will continue to keep the AQMA under review until it can be
demonstrated that compliant concentrations are stable over a sustained period.

5.5

The Council declared a Climate Emergency on 10th October 2019 and has made a
commitment to building Climate Change considerations into the Council Plan and
decision making processes.

5.6

Various stakeholder and public consultations have taken place throughout
development of the initial Malton and Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity Study as

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 50

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

well as throughout development of work under the Local Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure Plan and the Junction Signalisation and Improvement works.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

Background

6.2

In June 2018 NYCC and RDC published the jointly-funded ‘Malton and Norton
Infrastructure and Connectivity Study’ (‘the Study’) which identified a range of
interventions that could potentially be developed and implemented to reduce levels of
congestion within the two towns. The interventions identified were those that
contributed most significantly to the Study’s Strategic Level Objectives set out in
Appendix 1.

6.3

The Council’s specific commitment to build climate change considerations into the
decision making process has been made since the study was published, however, it
should be noted that the Strategic Level Objectives did cover protecting and enhancing
the natural environment (under SO-08). Many of the interventions will contribute
towards the Climate Change commitment – for example by supporting more active
forms of travel; improving connectivity within the towns; improving access to public
transport; and reducing the need for unnecessary car journeys.

6.4

The work was initiated in response to the proposed increase in rail services on the
York – Scarborough line (originally proposed to operate from December 2019) and
concerns that the resulting increased frequency of level crossing closures would
exacerbate existing congestion and air quality issues within the towns – particularly at
the level crossing and within the AQMA. The Study identified a range of ‘Potential
Quick Wins’ and a ‘Preferred Package’ of interventions to help mitigate potential
detrimental impacts.

6.5

Considerable joint working, involving RDC and NYCC, on progressing these actions
has already taken place. This report provides Members with an update on this work
to date.

6.6

Policy and Resources Committee considered a report on 19th March 2020 regarding a
Motion relating to traffic levels, A64 junctions and a call for a ban on heavy vehicles
using Highfield Road Malton. This also set out details of a formal consultation being
carried out by the County Council relating a proposed experimental part-time
prohibition of Heavy Commercial Vehicles on Highfield Road, Malton. A consultation,
response, reflecting Members’ views on the proposal, was subsequently sent to the
County Council (included at Appendix 2). It is understood that NYCC have decided
to progress with the proposed experimental part-time heavy vehicle restriction and are
awaiting publication of the appropriate legal notices. The main Motion to Council was
considered at Full Council on 10 September 2020 and the Policy and Resources
recommendation relating to the Motion to Council was approved.

6.7

Over the last six months progress on all aspects of the above work streams has
inevitably been impacted by the need to refocus staff resources to support the
Council’s emergency response to the coronavirus crisis and the shift in priority to
support the lives and livelihoods within the District.

6.8

Rail Service Update

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 51

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

Arriva Rail North (or ‘Northern’) originally planned to introduce an additional hourly rail
service between York and Scarborough in December 2019. This was subsequently
postponed until May 2020 but, as a result of the impacts of COVID-19, this is now
planned for May 2021. [NB The Department for Transport terminated Arriva Rail
North’s franchise at the end of February this year and its operations have been taken
over by Northern Trains Ltd (a Department for Transport controlled ‘Operator of Last
Resort’)].
6.9

Update on Interventions

6.10

A cross-authority officer Working Party was established to coordinate the Malton and
Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity work streams and the actions arising from the
Study. This includes representatives from RDC (Economic Development, Planning,
Environmental Health and Community Teams) and from NYCC (local Highways Area
Office, Transport Planning, and Public Transport). The Working Party has also
overseen production of a detailed Action Plan to inform the work required to progress
the various interventions. A copy of this is attached at Appendix 3 and provides an
update on individual interventions.

6.11

It is essential that any proposals for significant investment are evidence-based and
represent value for money so considerable project development work is required in
order to build a strong case for intervention. Project development work undertaken to
date on some of the key interventions identified by the Study, includes:
 development of a new computer traffic model for Malton & Norton (including
initial data gathering, surveys and traffic counts);
 identifying and shortlisting options for potential improvements to junctions,
signals and traffic flow in the town centre and testing of these shortlisted
interventions through the new traffic model;
 undertaking air quality modelling on identified options (report not yet
completed);
 development of Stage 1 of a Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
(report nearing completion);
 commissioning a Ryedale Car Parking Strategy Report (work now being
progressed via the Car Parking Working Party);
 commenced feasibility and project development work for:
i)
upgrading the A64 Musley Bank junction to enable all directions
movement
ii)
creating a new A64 Broughton Road junction with all direction
movement

6.12

The majority of this work (with the exception of Ryedale Car Parking Strategy) has
been led, and funded, by NYCC with input from RDC officers. In order to commence
project development work on other interventions (e.g. a second platform and
accessible pedestrian and cycle bridge at the station), or for proposals to progress to
the next stage of project development and/or implementation, funding contributions
from RDC will be required.

6.13

At this stage, the detailed costs of the next stages of work for each work stream are
not yet known, however, the table under 7.1 (a) below, sets out some indicative costs,
with initial funding allocations from the Council also proposed under 7.1 (a).

6.14

Some updates on key elements of work are set out below:

6.15

A – Bus Service Connectivity Improvements: Ryedale Community Transport are
undertaking a feasibility study into the potential for an electric bus service to run

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 52

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

between Malton and Norton. Should the outcome of this study be positive then funding
will be required to purchase the vehicles and charging equipment. Initial estimates
indicate that this will cost up to £300,000. An RDC contribution would act as match
funding and enable funding bids to be made as opportunities arise.
6.16

D – Improved Footpath & Cycle Links via Walking & Cycle Strategy: Production of a
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) – Stage 1 report is nearing
completion. This will present a range of evidence-based interventions to improve
cycling and walking provision in the towns and identify priority interventions for
development during Stage 2. The Stage 2 work will develop these proposals to a stage
where funding bids for implementation can be made and an RDC contribution will be
required to progress this work.

6.17.

In parallel with this work, Ryedale Cycle Forum have been very active in supporting
local residents with the development of proposals for a Malton – Hovingham Cycle
Path, via Broughton, Slingsby and Amotherby. Implementation of this route could help
to reduce the amount of car journeys between these villages and Malton/Norton and
contribute to reduced congestion and improved air quality.

6.18

F – Internal Junction Improvements & Traffic Signal Strategy: This piece of work is the
highest immediate priority for action. A new computer traffic model was developed
during 2019. Consultation has taken place with local stakeholders and NYCC have
established a Strategy Steering Group to inform development of, and decisions on,
this work. The Steering Group includes the two local County Councillors, one
representative each from Malton and Norton Town Councils and a Member
representative from RDC, taking account of RDC’s responsibilities relating to the
AQMA.

6.19

A range of options (including reverting to previous priorities at the level crossing
junction and potential one-way systems) have been discussed by the Steering Group
and the option considered to offer the best overall solution involves:
 Introducing traffic signals at the Castlegate/Church Street/Welham Rd/Norton
Road junction at the level crossing, incorporating improved pedestrian crossing
facilities,
 Making the eastern end of Norton Road one-way westbound
 Improvements to traffic signals at Butcher corner - including introduction of
MOVA system (Micro-processor Optimised Vehicle Actuation – to maximise the
efficiency of the junction) and indicative right arrow,
 Improved pedestrian crossing facilities.

6.20

This option was presented to a stakeholder consultation meeting in January 2020
following which the Steering Group agreed that air quality modelling of the preferred
option should be undertaken prior to progressing to public consultation and potential
implementation. This has been commissioned by NYCC (with a contribution from
RDC) and work is nearing completion - outcomes will be reported to the NYCC
Steering Group to consider the next steps in the coming weeks.

6.21

NYCC submitted an Expression of Interest (EoI) to the DfT’s Local Pinch Points Fund
in January 2020 for funding towards implementation – but the DfT’s assessment of
EoIs is currently ‘on-hold until further notice’. Indicative costs of £1,350,000, with
combined Local Authority funding of £200,000, were included in the Pinch Points bid
– detailed estimates will need to be established through further project development
work. An RDC contribution towards this is likely to be required – and if the Pinch Points
EoI is not successful, the contribution would need to be greater.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 53

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

6.22

I - Provision of second rail platform AND C – Walkway & Bridge for cyclists &
pedestrians to access Malton Station from the south

6.23

Network Rail and the Train Operating Companies are unlikely to consider this a high
priority for investment at this stage. Progress is therefore likely to be dependant on
local partners (e.g. RDC and NYCC) coordinating initial project development work and
securing funding for this work.

6.24

It is therefore proposed that the Council seeks to work in partnership with NYCC,
Network Rail and Train Operating Companies, as appropriate, to develop an initial
Feasibility Study for a combined bridge and second platform project and to develop a
Strategic Outline Business Case for the project. Undertaking this work now will greatly
assist in developing future bids for further project development and implementation
and will also enable greater engagement with the rail industry on the benefits of the
project.

6.25

A second platform, together with a bridge linking the platforms, is likely to offer benefits
to the rail industry by removing a bottleneck on the existing network, contributing to
opportunities for greater flexibility, capacity and timetable reliability. As such, it is not
anticipated that the Council would have to contribute towards construction of a second
platform or bridge – although there may be a need to contribute to provision of a link
path between Norton and the second platform. Initial feasibility work on the combined
second platform, bridge and link path project could cost in the region of £60,000.

6.26

J – Provision of new All-Movements junction between A64 and Broughton Road; AND
K – Upgrade A64 Musley Bank junction to All-Movements junction

6.27

Both projects provide alternative routes for traffic (including HGVs) to/from the A64,
reducing traffic through sensitive areas such as Highfield Road or the Town Centre
AQMA. This could provide opportunities for more significant measures to encourage
walking and cycling within the towns. They would be unlikely, however, to have a
significant impact on level crossing congestion.

6.28

NYCC have committed to undertaking project development work on both projects to a
stage whereby bids for funding for implementation can be made to government at short
notice. Consultants have been appointed and initial project development work is
underway.

6.29

The projects are highly unlikely to attract government funding through the Department
for Transport’s Roads Investment Strategy as they aim to address local issues rather
than issues on the trunk road network. The projects are therefore expected to require
a partnership approach to funding and implementation (as used to implement the A64
Brambling Fields junction upgrade) with contributions expected to be required from
NYCC, RDC and any other discretionary funding that may become available.

6.30

Potential longer-term intervention: Malton – Norton Link Road and Bridge

6.31

This project could reduce the numbers of vehicles passing through the two main
bottlenecks in the towns: the level crossing and Butcher Corner. This could provide
opportunities for more significant measures to encourage walking and cycling within
the towns. Together with a pedestrian/cycle bridge at the station, it could help facilitate
development of additional parking south of the rail line (reducing the need for crosstown traffic) and remove a significant barrier to future residential development based
around the former Woolgrower’s site [the Woolgrower’s site, being located close to the
rail and bus station, provides a significant opportunity for development of sustainable

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 54

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

housing in the District]. The project would not, however, reduce levels of traffic passing
the primary schools on Highfield Road.
6.32

NYCC have appointed consultants to consider options for a potential Malton – Norton
link road and bridge over the River Derwent and the railway (e.g. from York Road to
Welham Road) as one of the County Council’s potential ‘Major Schemes’ projects.

6.33

The relative merits of the scheme are likely to be dependant upon the outcomes of the
Local Plan review, as the likely quantum and location of future development in and
around Malton / Norton will be key to the Benefit-Cost Ratio of the project.

6.34

Potential Funding Sources

6.35

Significant contributions will be required from local partners’ capital programmes
towards the interventions outlined in this report - particularly from the District and
County Councils (or any successor authority/ies). In order to achieve maximum
benefits from this investment, however, funding will also need to be sought from a
broad range of other potential funding streams, for example:





Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and/or its proposed replacement;
Funding via the LEP e.g. Local Growth Deal funding or the proposed Shared
Prosperity Fund (due to replace EU Structural Investment Funds);
Other discretionary grant / funding opportunities (e.g. DfT’s Pinch Points Fund,
or other funding aimed at improving Air Quality or encouraging active modes of
travel;
Devolved funding programmes (following completion of any devolution deal).

6.36

Officers will continue to work with partners, including the County Council and the LEP
to identify and bid for funding as appropriate.

6.37

RDC Funding Contributions

6.38

Initial RDC capital and revenue allocations towards development and implementation
of the short – medium term interventions are proposed under 7.1 (a) below. These
amounts are not within existing budget provisions and would be new allocations. They
are therefore included as Recommendations to Council within this report.

6.39

Initial project development work on several of the medium-longer term interventions
has already been commissioned by NYCC. It is likely that very significant local
contributions (including from RDC) will be required to deliver these projects: several of
which, individually, would represent the most significant investments in capital projects
that the Council has ever made. The financing of contributions towards individual
projects is therefore likely to be challenging; combining several of them may prove to
be unaffordable unless significant levels of discretionary funding can be secured
towards implementation.

6.40

Once initial project development work has been completed there is likely to be a need
for prioritisation of the major highways interventions set out above in order to focus the
Council’s resources on interventions with the potential for greatest beneficial impacts.
The findings of project development work, and proposals for any RDC contributions
towards such projects, will therefore be the subject of a report to Council once initial
project development work has been completed and further details are known.
Members’ initial thoughts on potential prioritisation would, however, be welcomed to
inform future discussions with partners.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 55

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Summary of indicative costs of the interventions highlighted above:
Project

Total Indicative
Cost

Short to Medium Term interventions:
Electric Bus Hopper Service – purchase of equipment
£300,000
[* subject to outcomes of feasibility study and provision of
detailed business plan]
LCWIP – Stage 2 (detailed project development for priority
£56,000
proposals identified via Stage 1 study)
Cycling and Walking improvements (e.g. routes identified
£750,000
through the LCWIP and/or Hovingham to Malton Cycle
route) #
Internal junction & signal improvements – detailed project
£1.35m
#
development & implementation
2nd Rail Platform and Pedestrian & Cycle bridge and link
£60,000
path to Norton - Initial Feasibility Study
Sub Total (approx.)
£2.5m
Medium to longer-term interventions:
Second rail platform, bridge and link path to Norton#
£6.5m
#
A64 Broughton Road – New Junction
£15m - £25m
#
A64 Musley Bank – Upgraded junction
£10m - £20m
#
Malton – Norton Link Road & Bridge
£20m - £40m
Sub-total (approx.) £51.5m - £91.5m
Total (approx.)
£54m - £94m
#
- Until project development is further advanced, it is impossible to provide estimated
costs with any degree of confidence – figures included are indicative only at this stage.

Initial funding allocations from the Council of £350,000 (capital) and £100,000
(revenue) are proposed towards the costs of developing and implementing the
short-medium interventions highlighted above. These would be new budget
allocations and as such are identified as recommendations to Council.
Significant additional capital allocations towards the medium to longer-term
interventions are expected to be required. Further details will be reported to
Members following completion of initial project development work.
b)

Legal
The Council has a duty to fulfil its obligations under Part IV of the Environment Act
1995 Local Air Quality Management and continues to meet these obligations
through the joint work with NYCC set out above.
There are not considered to be any other significant legal implications of the
recommendations set out in this report – although legal agreements are likely to
be required on specific projects as project development progresses.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 56

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

Change, Crime & Disorder)
Environmental & Climate Change:
Investment in major road schemes are often considered to be incompatible with
targets to achieve carbon reduction targets. However, in the case of the proposals
for Malton / Norton, the situation is not clear-cut. The main aim of the proposals
is to provide alternative routes onto and off the A64 to reduce traffic levels and
congestion on an already congested and constrained town centre highway
network, with significant pinch points at the level crossing and Butcher Corner, and
to improve air quality within the declared Air Quality Management Area.
Implementation of many of the more significant potential projects from the LWCIP
are also expected to be dependant on delivering some of the major highways
projects.
There is therefore a need to balance the projects’ potential impact on carbon
emissions with the aims of improving air quality, safety and encourage more active
forms of travel (which in themselves have positive benefits for carbon reduction as
well as wider health benefits) within the towns.
All discretionary Government funding sources are likely to place a far stronger
emphasis on climate change impacts during the assessment process than has
previously been the case. At this stage the likely carbon emission impacts of the
proposed schemes are not known and will need to be established via further
project development work in order to provide sufficient information to be able to
inform a decision that seeks to balance these competing aims.
Major highways schemes are also likely to require Environmental Impact
Assessments - particularly the Malton – Norton Link and Bridge – as this impacts
upon the River Derwent Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and Special Area
of Conservation (SAC). The requirements for this will be established during any
detailed project development work
No other implications have been identified.
Phillip Spurr
Programme Director for Economic Development, Business and Partnerships
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Howard Wallis, Senior Economy & Infrastructure Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43274
howard.wallis@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers are available for inspection at:
Malton and Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity Report
Malton Air Quality Management Area – Action Plan and Annual Status Reports

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 57

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1 – Strategic Level Objectives

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

When telephoning, please ask for:

Richard Marr, Area Manager
Highways and Transportation
Area 4 – Pickering Office
Beansheaf Industrial Park
Tofts Road, Kirby Misperton
Malton, North Yorkshire
YO17 6BG

Howard Wallis
ext 274
howard.wallis@ryedale.gov.uk

02 April 2020

Dear Richard
PROPOSED EXPERIMENTAL PART-TIME PROHIBITION OF HEAVY COMMERCIAL
VEHICLES, HIGHFIELD ROAD, MALTON
Thank you for consulting Ryedale District Council on the above matter. This has now
been considered by the Council’s Policy and Resources Committee and the Council’s
official response is set out below.
As a consequence of a number of factors (including the constrained historic road network,
traffic congestion, air quality issues and the declaration of Malton Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA), the limited access points onto and off the A64 and the need to access
Showfield Lane industrial estate) there are no quick or easy solutions to concerns relating
to heavy vehicles passing through residential areas and past the primary schools on
Highfield Road.
However, introducing additional HCV restrictions, such as on HCVs using Highfield Road,
will not solve the underlying problem. It is likely to displace traffic onto other routes,
exacerbating existing issues within the AQMA (with additional HCVs queueing to pass
through Butcher Corner) and creating new issues elsewhere (with HCVs following
inappropriate alternative routes, such as Peasey Hills Road, Princess Road, Wentworth
Street or Greengate).
The part-time nature of the proposed experimental prohibition may go some way to
mitigating displacement, however, it remains unclear what the impact of such
displacement might be. If North Yorkshire County Council decide to introduce the
proposed experimental part-time restriction on HCVs, the Council suggests that very
careful consideration be given to how these impacts could be minimised, including:
•
•
•

avoiding the restriction being in place when schools are closed;
careful consideration of signage to avoid displacement onto inappropriate
alternative routes;
working with affected businesses and their suppliers to encourage their HCV drivers
to avoid the town centre during the affected times, wherever possible.

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Old Malton Road, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

Page 61

working with you to make a difference

The Council strongly considers that the only way to solve the issues of HCVs within the
town is to develop additional access points onto and off the A64 (for example in the vicinity
of Musley Bank and Broughton Road) in order to minimise the need for such throughtraffic. Ryedale District Council is fully supportive of the work being undertaken by North
Yorkshire County Council to consider such proposals.
Yours faithfully

Howard Wallis
Senior Economy & Infrastructure Officer

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Old Malton Road, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

Page 62

working with you to make a difference

POTENTIAL QUICK WINS – PROPOSED ACTION PLAN – updated 13/08/20

Ref

Intervention
Description

QW01

Provision of
pedestrian
crossing
between bus /
rail station (e.g.
zebra crossing)

QW02

Page 63

QW03

QW04

Provision of
dropped kerb
on north side of
Norton Road
opposite level
crossing for
wheelchair/acce
ssibility scooters
(to cross over
Castlegate)
Provision of
advanced stop
lines and filter
cycle lanes at
key junctions
and on routes to
schools.
Provision of safe
& secure cycle
parking /
storage near the
station and
within the
towns of Malton
& Norton

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

NYCC identified potential location on
raised table from Norton Rd to
Railway St.

Implementation likely to be dependant upon
alterations to bus station entrance. Alternative
arrangements to reviewed as part of ‘Do
Medium’ option under ‘F – Internal Junction
Improvements & Traffic Signals Strategy’

Initial proposal failed road safety audit
(on visibility grounds – no suitable
location close to bus/rail station that
could be delivered safely)
Proposed location identified on
County Bridge
Works had to be aborted due to the
location of services in the shallow
bridge deck preventing the footway
being lowered.

Lead
Partner /
Action by
NYCC - TC

Indicative
Timeline

NYCC - TC

Summer
2020

NYCC - TC

Summer
2020

Summer
2020

No further action under ‘Quick Wins’
Alternative arrangements to reviewed as part of
‘Do Medium’ option under ‘F – Internal Junction
Improvements & Traffic Signals Strategy’
No further action under ‘Quick Wins’

To be considered through modelling
To be reviewed as part of ‘Do Medium’ option
work, LCWIP & junction improvements under ‘F – Internal Junction Improvements &
already underway
Traffic Signals Strategy’
No further action under ‘Quick Wins’

RDC contributed £3,000 to
additional cycle parking at rail
station (with funding from
TPE)

Additional cycle parking now delivered
at Rail Station, delivered with funding
contributions from:

Completed

NYCC has made £4,000
available for additional cycle
racks within 2019/20
(alongside additional

Installation of new cycle racks planned
for various locations in Malton Town
Centre (including at Old Maltongate,
Market Place, the Shambles)

Installation of cycle racks planned (slight delay
due to availability from provider)

1

NYCC – TC Autumn
(via MTC
2020
& FME)

POTENTIAL QUICK WINS – PROPOSED ACTION PLAN – updated 13/08/20

Ref

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

NYCC undertaken audit of signage to
record signs

Following on from Car Park Strategy work establish project group (inc NYCC, RDC, MTC,
NTC, FME) to identify preferred routing of
traffic to car parks and agree necessary signage
improvements.

RDC – AT
NYCC - TC
(& DK)

Autumn
2020

Implement improvements

NYCC – TC TBC
RDC - AT

Permanent HGV restriction now in
place. Garmin, TomTom & some
mapping companies now advised of
weight restriction to avoid sending
HGVs across level crossing
Network Rail have a community team
to educate on safe use

Completed

NYCC - TC

Feb 2020

Raise issue of safety measures at next Road-Rail
Partnership meeting
(delayed as a result of the delayed introduction
of additional train services to May 2021)

NYCC GN

Sept 2020

Discussions with Network Rail (NR) &
TPE have taken place

No actions identified that are deliverable as
Quick Wins

NYCC GN

Late 2019

Completed

NYCC

Feb 2020

investment by Malton TC and
FME)
QW05

Page 64

QW06

QW07

QW08

QW09

Improved
parking signage
to manage
traffic flow from
different
directions and
direct traffic to
most
appropriate car
park
Sat Nav to use
specific routes
avoiding level
crossing
Initiatives to
encourage safe
use of level
crossing e.g.
education / PR /
enforcement
Measures to
improve
management /
operation of
level crossing to
reduce down
time
Implementation
of permanent
Heavy Goods

Identified need to signpost visitors to
Wentworth Street as main visitor car
park. There are gaps in signage of key
routes to certain car parks – a review
and programme of improvements is
required

NR indicate only significant
improvements to operation of level
crossing would be implementation of
a 2nd platform
NYCC confirmed decision to make
HGV restriction permanent (but to
keep under review) Jan 2020.
2

POTENTIAL QUICK WINS – PROPOSED ACTION PLAN – updated 13/08/20

Ref

QW10

QW11

Intervention
Description

Page 65

Vehicle
Restriction
Link traffic
signals between
Butcher Corner
and the rail
barrier signals
to reduce
impacts of
barrier down
time.
Provision of
signage on the
A64 to
encourage
routes that
avoid Butcher
Corner / Level
Crossing

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

Network Rail confirmed can not link
signals

No actions identified that are deliverable as
Quick Wins - to be reviewed as part of ‘Do
Medium’ option under ‘F – Internal Junction
Improvements & Traffic Signals Strategy’

NYCC - TC

Summer
2020

Existing signage checked and signs
generally considered appropriate

Signage on A64 eastbound approach to Musley
Bank being reviewed now that level crossing
HGV restriction made permanent

NYCC - TC

Spring
2020

TRO Made Permanent 13th Feb 2020

Some temporary signs on A64 relating
to trial level crossing HGV restriction.

3

Complete, no action necessary.

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref
A

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Bus Service
Connectivity
Improvements

Page 66

Short timescale
(< 2 years)
Unlikely to be
significant
timeframes
involved,
consultation with
various
stakeholders
would be
required.

Medium cost:
£150k – £300k

RDC has approved £5,000
grant for RyeCAT to undertake
Feasibility Study for Electric
Hopper Bus Service

Govt funding opportunities
recently announced for:
 Rural Mobility Fund
 Electric Bus Town
Fund

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

NB - existing bus services are
commercial operations and in
competition with other operators to
some degree

NYCC to investigate potential actions including
consultation with bus operators / Coastliner –
although may not be able to progress certain
elements of this proposal at this time

NYCC GN

During
2019

Ryedale Community Transport) have
submitted a proposal for development
of an electric hopper bus service (an
initial pilot project using existing buses
has also been proposed. An initial
feasibility study is underway.

RyeCat undertaking Feasibility Study

RyeCat
Ltd

TBC

[Any consideration of potential contributions
towards Electric Shuttle Bus / Pilot likely to be
dependant upon outcomes of Feasibility
Study]

TBC

TBC –
(subject to
outcomes
of RyeCat
study)

Rural Mobility Fund - NYCC submitted
a bid to establish several Community
Hub led demand responsive transport
schemes in June. The Hubs will include
a vehicle, Uber-style booking app,
transport management function and
paid driver support.

Dependant on outcome of funding bid/s

NYCC - CK

Dependant
on
outcome of
bids

1

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref
B

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Behaviour
Change Measures

Short timescale
(< 2 years)
Could be
implemented
quickly.
Very low cost:
£10k dependent
upon delivery
mechanism.

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

Education and other measures aimed
at local businesses, schools, and new
housing developments, to encourage
a change in travel behaviour for
shorter journeys.

NYCC to keep watching brief for potential
funding opportunities and apply as
appropriate.

NYCC –
LN / KM

On-going

NYCC would need to identify and
secure funding to employ staff
resource to undertake this role.
Potential Funding:
Govt / DfT funding as
appropriate

Page 67
2

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref
C

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

Walkway &
Bridge for
pedestrians and
cyclists to access
Malton Station
from the south

RDC has submitted project
(combined with ‘I’ below) for
inclusion in LEP’s ‘pipeline’ of
investment project proposals
(Jan 2020)

Progress limited as other actions have
taken priority to date

Proposal is expected to be included as part of
recommended priorities of LCWIP Phase 1
(see ‘D’ below)

NYCC - TC

Summer
2020

Next stages dependant on identifying funding
for initial project development work

RDC – HW TBC
NYCC –
GN

Page 68

Medium
timescale (up to
5 years)
Planning,
approvals,
identification of
land and
construction
would make the
provision of the
bridge a medium
timescale
measure.
High cost: £1.5m
- £3m

Could link to future second platform
(see ‘I’ below) and potentially
additional parking south of station

RDC has also requested
feasibility funding from LEP to
develop initial proposals – bid
unsuccessful

Other Potential Funding:
DfT funding (via RNEP
process), potential to link to
second platform (see ‘I’
below);
Local Growth Deal or Shared
Prosperity Fund – via LEP;
Govt sustainable transport
funding.

3

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref
D

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

Improved
Footpath & Cycle
Links via Walking
and Cycling
Strategy

NYCC Committed funding to
undertake LCWIP Phase 1

NYCC appointed consultants to
develop LCWIP (phase 1), initial
stakeholder consultation undertaken,
and draft LCWIP Phase 1 report
produced. Draft report identifies
opportunities for significant
improvements are very limited
without delivering major
infrastructure projects to remove
traffic from town centre

Complete LCWIP Phase 1 study

NYCC - TC

Summer
2020

NYCC / RDC to consider outcomes of Phase 1
LCWIP report before considering whether to
progress with Phase 2 report.

NYCC – TC Summer
RDC – HW 2020

Subject to above, NYCC & RDC to consider
funding contribution towards development of
LCWIP Phase 2 study

NYCC – TC Autumn
RDC –
2020
PS/HW

Page 69

Medium
timescale (2 to 5
years)
Identification and
implementation
(design and build)
of infrastructure
would extend
timeframes for
delivery.

Medium cost:
Walking and
Cycle Strategy
including
development and
design of
prioritised
schemes: £50k £60k

NYCC & RDC contributions
likely to be required to
undertake LCWIP Phase 2
(more detailed project
development work to enable
funding bids for
implementation)

[Some walking / cycling provision
improvements to be incorporated into
preferred junction / signal improvements (see
‘F below’), subject to Air Quality modelling
and public consultation]

Other Potential Funding:
future rounds of Local Cycling
and Walking Infrastructure
Plan (LCWIP) funding;
Other Govt sustainable
transport funding

[NB RDC has also committed
project development funding
and has secured funding to
deliver a Malton – Pickering
cycle route (this focuses on
linking Malton & Pickering
rather than general
improvements to cycle
provision within the town).]

4

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

E

Car Parking
Strategy

RDC have committed funding
to develop Car Parking
Strategy

Development of RDC Parking strategy
(informed by Car Parking Strategy Report)

RDC – AT
(support
from
NYCC DK)

Dec 2020

NYCC also making contributing
towards strategy

RDC developed Brief, appointed
consultants. Consultants have held
stakeholder engagement meetings &
car park surveys completed. Car
Parking Strategy report issued Dec
2019.

Funding for implementation to
be considered based upon
outcome of Strategy findings.

RDC Member Working Group
established to oversee development
of strategy following receipt of report.

Adoption of Strategy & delivery of identified
actions

RDC - AT

End of
2020
onwards

Page 70

Short timescale
(< 2 years)
Relevant
consultations,
consents and
legal issues
required to
prepare, design
and adopt a
parking strategy.
Implementation
of findings will
extend timescales
(likely beyond 5
years).
Low cost for
provision of Car
Parking Strategy:
£65k - £90k
(depending upon
level of data
collection
required)

5

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref
F

Page 71

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Internal Junction
Improvements
and Traffic Signal
Strategy

NYCC has committed funding
for
 Traffic surveys
 Development of traffic
model
 Testing of short-listed
options

The following work has been
completed:
 Traffic surveys,
 Initial traffic model development
 Stakeholder presentation
(03/09/19)
 Validation of model
 Options / scenario identification
 Short-listing of options
 Testing of shortlisted options
 Stakeholder consultation
(20/01/20)

Air Quality modelling of identified package of
interventions

NYCC – TC Sept 2020

Next Steering Group meeting

NYCC – TC Autumn
2020

Public consultation on preferred package of
interventions [subject to above]

NYCC - TC

Decision to implement & consider funding
contributions [subject to above]

NYCC – TC TBC
RDC –
PS/HW

NYCC have set up a Malton & Norton
Internal Junction Improvement and
Traffic Signal Strategy Steering Group
to inform this work. Meetings were
held in November 2019 and February
2020. The Steering Group agreed that
Air Quality modelling of proposals was
required prior to proceeding to public
consultation.

Development of detailed scheme designs,
followed by implementation of selected
interventions [subject to above]

NYCC - TC

Medium
timescale (2 to 5
years)
Due to time taken
to gather data,
update / build
traffic model and
test scenarios in
order to identify
preferred
options, consult
and implement
changes.
Medium cost (for
strategy only):
£140k – £160k

NYCC & RDC have also
committed funding to
undertake Air Quality
modelling of preferred ‘Do
Medium’ option
NYCC has submitted project
for inclusion in LEP’s ‘pipeline’
of investment project
proposals (Jan 2020)
NYCC has submitted an
Expression of Interest to the
DfT’s Local Pinch Points Fund
for funding towards
implementation (Jan 2020).
DfT’s assessment of bids is ‘onhold’ until further notice as a
result of COVID-19.

Detailed Air Quality work has been
instructed and is nearing completion
(this work has taken longer than
anticipated)
[NB – the introduction of new hourly
train services by Northern on the York
– Scarborough line, previously planned
for May 2020, is now planned for May
2021 (postponed due to impacts of
COVID-19)]
6

[NB - schemes will need to be designed,
costed and funding secured prior to
implementation. Likely to involve traffic
regulation orders, road safety audits –
timescales for implementation therefore
dependant on complexity of interventions
selected & funding availability]

Indicative
Timeline

TBC

TBC

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref
G

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

Relocation of
Livestock Market
out of Malton
Town Centre

Potential funding (to be
confirmed):
Likely to require a mix of
funding, dependant upon
scope of project, business plan
& commercial viability

RDC has undertaken work to evaluate
options and resolved to look further at
a basic cattle market scheme as part
of a food hub for Ryedale (including
café and abattoir)

RDC to undertake further work to consider
development options

RDC –
PS/AT

Summer /
Autumn
2020

Page 72

Medium
timescale (2 to 5
years)
Time needed for
design,
consultation and
gaining relevant
permissions and
consents for
provision of new
market at
proposed new
location.
Medium cost:
Dependant upon
delivery
mechanism – i.e.
private or public
sector-led

7

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref
H

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

Transport
Hub/Interchange
Masterplan

Potential Funding (to be
confirmed): Potential funding
mechanisms would likely need
to be identified by RDC for
development of
Supplementary Planning
Document.

Progress limited as other actions have
taken priority to date.

Consider inclusion of initial masterplan work
as part of Malton/Norton Regeneration
project

RDC – AT
/ HW

Sept 2020

Generally keep a ‘watching brief’ – but to be
considered through report to Members at
future date

RDC –
Econ Dev
Team

TBC

Medium
timescale (2 to 5
years)
for developing
masterplan,
involving
significant
consultation.

Page 73

Consents &
development
timescales longer
term.

Medium cost for
Masterplan:
£100k – £150k

RDC has secured feasibility
funding from LEP to develop a
‘Malton / Norton
Regeneration Scheme’. This
could (subject to budget)
potentially consider options
for this area

Uncertain what appetite there is from
landowners for contributing /
engaging in this work
Scope could also be dependent upon
potential changes to traffic flow as a
result of traffic modelling work /
junction improvement works as well
as on car parking strategy.
Need to improve linkages /
accessibility between rail station and
bus station (issues raised by Moorsbus
and RyeCAT with use of bus station)
[Potential for scope to include
neighbouring uses subject to
landowner interest]

[Likely High Cost
for
implementation could be partially
offset by
commercial
development
opportunities]

8

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

I

Provision of
Second Rail
Platform.

RDC has submitted project
(combined with ‘C’ above) for
inclusion in LEP’s ‘pipeline’ of
investment project proposals
(Jan 2020)

NYCC have held initial discussions with
Network Rail.

Continue discussions with Network Rail (linked
to discussions regarding level crossing /
potential pedestrian and cycle bridge /
additional parking south of railway) to identify
how best to progress project.

NYCC –
GN

Ongoing

NYCC –
GN / TC
RDC - HW

TBC

Page 74

Ref

Long timescale (5
to 10 years)
Long timeframes
involved in
delivery due to
identification of
appropriate
access, land
acquisition and
gaining relevant
permissions.

Very High cost:
£4m - £5m
(footbridge costs
not included –
see Intervention
C)

RDC has also requested
feasibility funding from LEP to
develop initial proposals – bid
unsuccessful

Potential Funding:
DfT funding (via RNEP
process), potential to link to
pedestrian / cycle bridge (see
‘C’ above);
Local Growth Deal or Shared
Prosperity Fund – via LEP;
Govt sustainable transport
funding.

Network Rail no longer funded to
carry out enhancements to rail
network. This proposal would be
classed as an enhancement and would
need to go through DfT’s Rail Network
Enhancement Programme (RNEP) and
Governance for Railway Investment
Projects (GRIP) processes/
arrangements.
Could link with new accessible bridge
(see ‘C’ above).

Likely to involve the following steps:
 Feasibility study
 Outline design and construction cost
estimates
 Detailed design / costs
 Business Case
 Meet the requirements of RNEP/GRIP
 Implement through Network Rail
framework.
Further detail to be included as discussions
progress
Next stages dependant on identifying funding
for initial project development work

9

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref
J

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

Provision of a
new All
Movements
Junction between
A64 and
Broughton Road

NYCC has submitted project
for inclusion in LEP’s ‘pipeline’
of investment project
proposals (Jan 2020)

NYCC agreed to undertake project
development work so that scheme is
‘bid-ready’ should funding become
available.

Undertake project development work to stage
where scheme is ‘bid-ready’

NYCC –
KM

Spring /
Autumn
2020

NYCC has committed funding
to undertake project
development work to stage
where bids for Govt funding
can be made at short notice

Consultants appointed and
commenced work.

Initiate discussions with Highways England
under auspices of A64 Growth Partnership

NYCC KM
RDC – PS
A64
Growth
Partnersh
ip

On-going

Page 75

Long timescale (5
to 10 years)
Time consuming
to develop a
business case to
support this,
achieve all
relevant consents
and permissions
and to identify
and secure
funding, as well
as design and
build timescales.

Potential Funding (to be
confirmed): Anticipated that
Highways England will expect
works to be funded by those
seeking to implement project
(i.e. NYCC, RDC).
Also consider funding via
LEP (Growth Deal or Shared
Prosperity Fund)

NB HE is only authority able to take this
forward so all actions, timescales and funding
mechanisms would be determined by HE. It
should also be noted that provision of
additional junctions to Strategic Road
Network are usually only supported where
essential for delivery of strategic planned
growth.

Very High cost:
£10m - £15m +

10

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

K

Upgrade A64
Musley Bank
Junction - to
provide an All
Movements
junction

NYCC & RDC have submitted
project for inclusion in LEP’s
‘pipeline’ of investment project
proposals (Jan 2020)

NYCC agreed to undertake project
development work so that scheme is
‘bid-ready’ should funding become
available.

Undertake project development work to stage
where scheme is ‘bid-ready’

NYCC –
KM

Spring Autumn
2020

NYCC considered including
project in bid for DfT ‘Pinch
Point Fund’ bid – but
timescales too short and
ultimately not included

Consultants appointed and
commenced work.

Initiate discussions with Highways England
under auspices of A64 Growth Partnership

RDC – PS
A64
Growth
Partnersh
ip

On-going

Page 76

Long timescale (5
to 10 years)
Time consuming
to develop the
business case to
support this and
achieve all
relevant consents
and permissions
and to identify
and secure
funding, as well
as design and
build timescales.

Very High cost:
£5m - £7.5m

Initial discussions and consultation on
options held with Highways England –
awaiting feedback.

NYCC has committed funding
to undertake project
development work to stage
where bids for Govt funding
can be made at short notice

NB HE is only authority able to take this
forward so all actions, timescales and funding
mechanisms would be determined by HE.

Potential Funding (to be
confirmed): Anticipated that
Highways England will expect
works to be funded by those
seeking to implement project
(i.e. NYCC, RDC).
Also consider funding via
LEP (Growth Deal or Shared
Prosperity Fund)

11

PREFERRED PACKAGE AND INTERVENTION-SPECIFIC ACTION PLAN – UPDATED 13/08/2020

Ref
L

Intervention
Description

Funding Opportunities

Current Position

Proposed Action

Lead
Partner /
Action by

Indicative
Timeline

Link Road
between
Beverley Road
and Hugden Way

Potential Funding (to be
confirmed): Currently
expected to be implemented
by private sector developers.

Strongest likelihood of being delivered
as part of Local Plan development to
enable delivery of an allocated site.
However, could potentially be
considered for early delivery through
DfT funding streams.

Currently expected that a link between
Beverley Rd and Hudgen Way / Westfield Way
will be delivered by developer as part of the
proposed Norton Grove development.

Developer

Dependant
upon
developer
(awaiting
Planning
App)

Page 77

Long timescale (5
to 10 years)
Time needed for
design,
consultation and
gaining relevant
permissions and
consents for
provision of
infrastructure.
High cost:
£2.5m - £4.5m

Key to Colour Shading:

Key to Initials:
TC – Tim Coyne
LN – Louise Neale
DK – David Kirkpatrick
AT – Amy Thomas
CK – Cathy Knight

Little or no progress
Project progressing – but requires corrective action
Project progressing well or is complete
Task complete / no further action

12

HW – Howard Wallis
PS – Phillip Spurr
GN – Graham North
KM – Keisha Moore

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10b

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 24 SEPTEMBER 2020

144

Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy Summary

Considered – report of the Housing Services Manager.
Recommendation
The Strategy is approved by Full Council.

Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 79

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

KIM ROBERTSHAW
HOUSING SERVICES MANAGER

TITLE OF REPORT:

HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPER STRATEGY
SUMMARY

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report provides Policy and Resources Committee with a summary of the
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-25 Appendix 1 for consideration
and comments before the summary strategy is presented to Full Council for approval.

1.2

The report summarises the objectives and targets specified within the strategy and
sets out any implications for the Council.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

Approve the Strategy for submitting to Full Council for approval.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

It is a requirement that there be a review of homelessness in the district and that a
Strategy is developed and published every five years.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Section 1(1) of the Homelessness Act 2002 requires Local Authorities to publish a
Homelessness Strategy within 5 years of the previous one. Therefore, this is required
to be in place for April 2020.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The proposals contained within the Strategy support the Council’s priority of
Sustainable Growth

POLICY AND RESOURCES

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 81




Minimising homelessness, improving the standard and availability of rented
accommodation and supporting people to live independently
The objectives are monitored through the Housing Service Corporate Plan

5.2

The Homelessness Act 2002 requires all housing authorities to produce a
Homelessness Strategy based on a review of homelessness within their district. This
must be reviewed every five years. The current strategy was developed in 2015.

5.3

Since publication of the government’s Rough Sleeping Strategy 2018, it is also a
statutory requirement to include rough sleeping as a priority within the strategy.

5.4

Ryedale’s Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy is linked to the Council's
Housing Strategy Action Plan 2015/2021. This strategy includes an objective on the
prevention of homelessness. Ryedale’s Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy
will ensure that proposals under that objective have been highlighted and will be
developed and monitored at a local level. The Council will continue to work closely with
the other local authorities across the LEP area on homelessness issues and share
effective practice in the implementation of its homelessness and rough sleeper
strategy.

5.5

CONSULTATION
Consultation has already been carried out with staff, customers and partners through
the Housing Forum, focus groups and service user’s questionnaires in order to inform
the review of homelessness and services in the district.

5.6

Following the draft Strategy presented to SMB and the Policy and Resources
committee, it has been distributed for wider consultation to partner agencies and
internal staff. There were limited responses but those that were received were
positive and liked the inclusion of case studies. Information from the further
consultation with partner agencies and internal staff has been incorporated into the
strategy.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

Ryedale’s five-year Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy sets out the Council’s
aim to tackle homelessness across the district over the next 5 years and details how
the Council will provide housing options and homelessness services for the residents
of Ryedale. This Strategy was due to be presented to committee in March, however
due to the pandemic this has been delayed.

6.2

An action plan will be used as the work plan for the Housing Options team over the
next 5 years in order to achieve what has been set out and identified within the
homelessness review and strategy. Officers within the team will take responsibility for
involvement in achieving the different actions. Annual progress will be reported to SMB
and members. We will also identify specific performance indicators that can be
reported back on a quarterly basis, in line with the action plan. These are currently
being agreed as part of the Corporate Plan.

6.3

The Strategy has been updated to take account of the current situation with Covid-19

POLICY AND RESOURCES

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 82

and the complete year statistics for 2019-20 have been inserted due to the delay with
the pandemic, rather than part year.
The past 4 months have presented us with a large increase in both the numbers
approaching for advice and assistance and homeless, but also because of the reduced
housing options available to move people into. The number of enquiries to the service
during the first 3 months of 20/21 has increased by 64%, with the number of
homelessness assessments increasing by 100%. The number allocated temporary
accommodation has risen, with a total of 28 households accommodated between April
and June, this is an 87% increase on the previous year. Many of these would not
ordinarily come under our duty to provide emergency accommodation for or may have
been able to find other short term options with family or friends, but were
accommodated as part of the Government’s “Everybody in” directive. Whilst the
findings in the Strategy are still appropriate for the needs in our area, we are also
conscious of the potential need of more temporary accommodation and longer term
accommodation for single people over the forthcoming year, should future lockdowns
be imposed or the situation with the pandemic alter. Funding opportunities and
operational developments will impact on the timescales to achieve the targets.
6.4

It is a fact that the prevention of homelessness is more cost-effective for authorities
than dealing with its consequences, and resources deployed on the prevention of
homelessness ultimately save on costs long-term, and help to alleviate the crisis for
the customer. To achieve this the emphasis must continue to be on partnership
working, sharing resources and employing creative and innovative solutions.

6.5

OBJECTIVES AND TARGETS
Following a review of homelessness within Ryedale and within the national and subregional context, the following objectives have been identified as priority areas to work
on over the forthcoming 5 years. Within each of the objectives are specific outcomes
which Housing Services and our wider partners will aim to achieve. These have altered
since the draft strategy was presented to SMB and committee. However, this is largely
in relation to altering positioning within the document, rewording and making the
outcomes SMART and achievable. Going forward, how we achieve some of them may
also differ depending on the changing situation with Covid-19.

6.6

Objective 1 – Working to prevent and relieve homelessness
Prior to making a main duty decision, there are a minimum of 56 days in which we will
work with a customer to prevent their homelessness or assist them into alternative
accommodation. This is achieved through successful case management, identifying
why people are approaching for assistance, providing bespoke support and advice and
ensuring that prevention tools are in place to give staff and customers the chance to
obtain suitable accommodation much quicker.
Outcomes:
1.
2.
3.

Encourage landlords, letting agents and tenants to refer to our service early.
Continue to review and improve prevention tools to enable customers to
sustain and remain in their current accommodation.
Work with registered social housing providers to address the high number
of approaches for rent arrears.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 83

4.
5.

6.7

Increase access to specific and quality advice for customers.
Ensure customers who want to stay in their own home are given as much
opportunity as possible to allow this to happen.

Objective 2 – Ensure sufficient and appropriate accommodation is and will be
available for people who are homeless or may become homeless
We must ensure that there is an array of affordable and suitable tenure options and
properties available to residents. This can be achieved by working with colleagues and
partners to make the best use of existing stock, ensuring it can be adapted if required,
ensuring security measures are improved if needed, or being made affordable for the
occupant to remain in. Alternatively, it can be achieved through access to new
properties, bringing empty properties back into use and working with landlords to
increase access to low cost home ownership as well as rented accommodation for
customers.
Outcomes:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

6.8

To increase access to low cost shared accommodation for customers
To develop and increase access to move on accommodation from supported
accommodation.
To annually review the temporary accommodation availability and
requirements.
Develop and extend clear and co-ordinated private sector offer to increase
private rental options.
Continue to be an active partner in NYHC to ensure that the properties are
made available to as many customers as possible.
Promote and facilitate access to all types of affordable accommodation
options.

Objective 3 – Maximise and maintain partnerships to ensure appropriate tailored
support
The strategy recognises the important role that partners and stakeholders have to play
in employing skills and delivering sensitive and tailored solutions to some of the issues
affecting Ryedale’s community.
Outcomes:
1. Ensure those with complex or specific needs have tailored support suitable
for them and vulnerable customer groups.
2. Increase numbers of referrals sent through Duty to Refer from statutory and
non-statutory agencies to increase early intervention and prevent
homelessness.
3. Maintain and develop relationships with organisations providing support to
specific groups to prevent and relieve homelessness and improve referrals
and signposting.
4. Work with agencies, funders and commissioners to increase availability of
Drug and Alcohol Services within Ryedale.
5. Increase employment and training opportunities in partnership with DWP,
economic development and partner agencies.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 84

6.9

Objective 4 – Raise awareness of homelessness and housing issues across the
District and improve access to the services in the district
A need to raise awareness and supply information on the services provided within the
department has been identified through the consultation process. This includes
reviewing all aspects of communication, the information that we make available, how
the service is promoted, how customers access the services and how we consult to
obtain feedback.
Outcomes:
1. Raise awareness of the Housing Options service within the Council, local
community and with local agencies.
2. Increase the use of technology where possible and explore how and where
advice is provided.
3. Implement a robust customer feedback and consultation analysis system to
continue to develop the service.
4. Review the communication and marketing plan.
5. Enable customers with additional needs to access our services.

6.10

Objective 5 – Continue to work strategically to maintain services and seek new
opportunities for funding and partnership working
Local authorities and their partners have worked under ongoing financial constraints
for a number of years. Working collaboratively, for example by joint funding or joint
protocols and processes, on early intervention and prevention is key to success. There
are several services being reviewed over the next couple of years through North
Yorkshire County Council and ongoing funding opportunities through MHCLG. We
must focus on accessing appropriate funding to meet the targets of this strategy.
Outcomes:
1.
2.
3.

4.

5.
6.

7.

6.11

Work with NYCC in reviewing services that deliver specific young peoples’
accommodation and support within Ryedale.
Work with partners to provide and increase access to domestic abuse refuge
accommodation within North Yorkshire.
Ensure that housing support services within the Council are maintained
while increasing homeless prevention and supporting households in order
to prevent repeat homelessness.
Work with NYCC commissioners and successful contractors on the
provision of mental health accommodation and offender support services in
Ryedale.
MHCLG funding and local funding options.
Review money advice, income maximisation, financial support and basic
living provision available to residents and look at future funding provision
from the council and external sources.
Develop closer links with Public health and other health services provided
within the district.

Objective 6 – Ending Rough Sleeping

POLICY AND RESOURCES

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 85

Rough sleeping is an area of significant national policy focus within homelessness,
attracting funding and a clear aim to reduce and end rough sleeping. Ryedale’s annual
count figures have remained low, but it is becoming increasingly difficult to find quick
housing solutions for all. Following successful interventions over the past 6 months,
MHCLG funding has been provided until March 2021 to continue to develop the rough
sleeper pathway and provide sustainable tenancy support to ensure individuals do not
return to the street.
Outcomes:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Refresh and implement a ‘single service offer’ based on the no second night
out principles.
Develop and embed a rough sleeping pathway across the district.
Continue to deliver tenancy sustainment work to prevent rough sleeping.
Increase knowledge across the district with both partners and the general
population of how to seek help for a rough sleeper.
Create a rough sleeping personalised intervention fund.
Create an emergency bed space for Rough Sleepers.

7.0

ONGOING REVIEW

7.1

Following on from this initial Strategy an annual update be provided to detail what work
has been achieved in the previous year and what will be done to achieve the specific
outcomes for the upcoming year. A plan will be used by the team as a working
document to monitor how we have met the targets. Performance indicators are being
developed through the Corporate Plan to provide data quarterly.

7.2

The homelessness review and strategy will be used to consider where funding is
required for investment and gaps in services that need to be explored with
commissioners or other agencies. These gaps are expected to be funded using current
monies within the homelessness budget and any future funding sources that become
available.

8.0

IMPLICATIONS

(a)

Policy
The Homelessness Act 2002 requires that all local authorities must have adopted a
Homelessness Strategy which is reviewed on an annual basis.
The provision of housing advice and support for homeless people forms a core element
of the Council’s Homeless Strategy and supports legal obligations around the
prevention and relief of homelessness.

(b)

Financial
The recommendations within this report do not require ‘growth’ within the Councils
homelessness budgets. Housing are working closely with finance to monitor any
Covid-19 spend and additional funding bids will be submitted for any ongoing
Government funding. Below is an overview of the current financial information for the
service.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 86

Prevention Budget
Flexible Homelessness prevention grant
Preventing Homelessness grant
New Burdens Funding

2019/20
£85,000
£40,000
£8,275

2020/21
£85,000
£40,000
£0
£21,000

Of the above funding the following allocations were made for 2019/20
 Training - £1,500
 North Yorkshire Home Choice administration and co-ordination - £5,000
 Positive activities - £1,800
 Homelessness Prevention Fund - £19,000
 Ryedale Citizens Advice (money and debt advice) - £12,000
 Ryedale Foodbank - £5,000
 Staffing – £40,000
 Temporary accommodation spend between £428 and £4374 over the past 5 years
(budget 10K). This is likely to be much more for 20/21 though due to Covid-19 and
data is provided directly to finance on a monthly basis.
In addition to the Government funding above we received £65,000 in funding from
MHCLG for the Pathway Co-ordinator (Rough Sleeping and Mental health) and the
supported lettings officer. This funding has been extended to cover the cost of both
posts until the end of March 2021.
There has been additional funding provided by MHCLG for Housing departments to
deal with the pandemic crisis. This is being assessed and monitored through finance.
(c)

Legal
The Council is meeting its legal obligations by producing this strategy.

(d)

Equalities and Diversity
The provision of services for homeless people will have a positive impact in terms of
Equalities and Diversity issues. An equalities impact assessment has been completed.

(e)

Staffing Issues
There will be no additional staff resource required.

(f)

Climate Change
In April 2018 the Housing Options and Homelessness service introduced a new case
management system and stopped printing application forms. This has led to a very
large reduction in printing and paper use and an increase in the use of digital
communication and document storage. Staff are not travelling to meetings due to the
current situation, however many of these meetings are continuing remotely through
video and conference calling and will likely continue this way moving forward. Also,
staff are more dynamic and flexible in their engagement with customers, reducing
home visits and community based support and instead opting for drop-ins and more
phone advice. Since social distancing measures were introduced, there has been a
further significant increase in the use of digital and telephone interviews. This will
continue to be reviewed alongside the Council’s Climate Change Strategy.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 87

(g)

Planning
Depending on the further development of Shared Houses to increase Affordable
Housing in line with the Council’s development plan, there may be planning
implications for these depending on ownership and current use.

10.0

Next Steps

10.1

The finalised draft Strategy summary will be presented to Full Council.

Kim Robertshaw
Housing Services Manager
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Kim Robertshaw
01653 600666 ext: 43383
kim.robertshaw@ryedale.gov.uk

Annex 1: Summary of the Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy 2020-25

POLICY AND RESOURCES

24 SEPTEMBER 2020

Page 88

Working Together to End
Homelessness
Ryedale Homelessness and
Rough Sleeping Strategy 20202025
Summary document of the
strategy

1

Page 89

Foreword
Our new Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025 sets out the Council’s plan
to prevent homelessness and reduce rough sleeping throughout the district over the next five
years. This document contains key facts relating to homelessness and rough sleeping in our
district; levels of demand, key trends and how effective our previous strategy was in reducing
homelessness across the district. Our Housing Options Team are proud to have achieved
Gold Standard status and we are determined to adopt good practice and adapt in order to
respond to new challenges as and when they arise. Our strategy is based on evidence and
has been devised in consultation with local partner agencies.
Collaborative and partnership working is vital in preventing and reducing the impact of
homelessness on local people. Prevention of homelessness has been at the forefront of the
work carried out by Ryedale District Council and our Housing Forum partners for over 10
years; it will continue to be our main goal and we would like to take this opportunity to thank
the people and organisations who have contributed to this important work and have helped
shape this strategy.
Despite the challenging landscape that we work within, the Council and its partners have made
significant progress in tackling homelessness throughout the lifetime of our last homelessness
strategy (2015-2020). Housing supply, affordability, welfare reform, economic and social
factors all play a part in the challenges faced both nationally and locally addressing
homelessness.
Whilst Ryedale residents enjoy the benefits of its beautiful location, property prices to rent or
buy are beyond the reach of many; this creates demand for affordable housing. The council
has been successful in developing affordable housing, but demand outstrips supply. This
results in some households with a low income having to seek accommodation in less
expensive areas outside of Ryedale. Alternatively, finding themselves unable to afford
independent accommodation so that they have to live in the homes of friends or relatives, this
can put pressure on personal relationships and lead to homelessness due to relationships
breaking down. Some residents need support to find accommodation or manage their
tenancies and we will continue to work with local specialist support agencies to provide the
best service we can for Ryedale residents.
With the new duties placed on councils under the Homeless Reduction Act 2017 and by
working together to provide advice, support and assistance, we aim to prevent homelessness
whenever we can. Together we aim to end rough sleeping and help everyone to find a suitable
home to call their own. The Council is committed to ensuring that Housing is a corporate
priority in coming years in order to support our residents and help our local economy to thrive.

Councillor Keane Duncan
Leader of the Council

2

Page 90

Introduction
Welcome to Ryedale District Council’s Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 20202025 summary. The strategy details how the Council will prevent and relieve homelessness
and work with partners throughout the district and sub-region to provide the most suitable
accommodation and support for those facing homelessness. The strategy has been written to
comply with legal requirements in the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 and Section 1(4) of
the Homelessness Act 2002. Also, with regard to national and sub-regional policy, with input
from stakeholders, partners and following Ryedale District Council’s review of the service in
2018 and 2019. The strategy will take into account the significant changes over the past 5
years since the previous strategy was developed. Review and consultation has been
undertaken and the findings of which have detailed what the strategy aims to deliver over the
next five years. This is all available in the full strategy document ‘Working Together to End
Homelessness - Ryedale Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Review and Strategy 20202025’.
Ryedale’s ‘Gold Standard’ Homelessness Service

In July 2017 Ryedale District Council was only the 9th
local authority of 326 in England to achieve a Gold
Standard award. At the time this showed that the local
housing options service was in the top 3%.

Objectives
This summary will focus on the six objectives within our strategy, which are to:
1. Prevent and relieve homelessness
2. Ensure sufficient and appropriate accommodation is and will be available for those in
housing need and for people who are homeless or may become homeless
3. Maximise partnerships and improve access to support services
4. Raise awareness of homelessness and housing issues across the district, improving
access to the services
5. Continue to work strategically to maintain services and seek new opportunities for
funding and partnership working
6. End rough sleeping
OUR PRIORITIES
This strategy links to a number of the 9 priorities within the Council’s Housing Strategy that
cover all aspects of housing.
OUR VISION
“Homelessness is everyone’s business. Across our partnerships we will strive towards ending
homelessness and rough sleeping once and for all”.

3

Page 91

OBJECTIVE 1 - Prevent and relieve homelessness
We want to provide the best service that we can for all of our customers – we will review our
casework on a regular basis, ensure our staff are well-trained and consider ways to improve
the customer journey. We will try to ensure that customers have one key worker throughout
their customer journey, so that they do not have to repeat themselves telling their
circumstances multiple times to different people. We will gather feedback from customers to
inform our future service planning.
There are many reasons for homelessness within Ryedale that are still apparent and we will
continue to work towards preventing homelessness, with a multi-agency perspective. The
most frequent reasons people approach the team are parents/relatives no longer willing to
accommodate, relationship breakdowns, loss of Assured Shorthold Tenancy, and loss
of Social Housing due to rent arrears.
In Ryedale we focus on assisting households to maintain their existing accommodation and
prevent homelessness wherever possible by early intervention, meaning that we can take
action to support them, maximise their income if required, and negotiate with the landlord
rather than assisting them to look for alternative accommodation.
Social housing is limited therefore we will continue to make best use of this by considering
alternatives such as private rental. There are also options for sharing accommodation in the
private sector, which meets the needs of young people or people on a low income who would
struggle to sustain an independent flat or house on their own.
We will utilise all of the homelessness prevention initiatives we have at our disposal, including
the prevention toolkit and the housing support service, focusing on activities to prevent the
main causes of homelessness. Prior to integrating within the housing team, the housing
support service has been successful in obtaining charity funding for customers to help clear
arrears or debts, purchase essential household items and also to assist with daily living costs.
Outcomes
We will review our protocols and pathways to ensure that we are working in the most efficient
way to prevent homelessness. This will include:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Encourage landlords, letting agents and tenants to refer to our service early.
Continue to review and improve prevention tools, to enable customers to sustain
and remain in their current accommodation.
Work with registered social housing providers to address the high number of
approaches for rent arrears.
Increase access to specific and quality advice for customers.
Ensure customers who want to stay in their own home are given as much
opportunity as possible to allow this to happen.

4

Page 92

OBJECTIVE 2 – Ensure sufficient and appropriate accommodation is and will be
available for those in housing need and for people who are homeless or may become
homeless
Ryedale has a buoyant housing market and it can be difficult for people who are on a low
income or disadvantaged to access suitable home ownership or private rented housing.
We will continue to be innovative and look for ways to increase the provision of affordable
housing in the district, including low cost home ownership and shared housing to
accommodate single people on low incomes who cannot afford independent accommodation.
We will continue to:
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Work with Housing Development to deliver
In 2019/20 we exceeded our target
sufficient Affordable Housing Developments as
of affordable housing again, partly
set out in the Ryedale Housing Strategy.
due to a brand new development in
Support the Private sector team to deliver the
Malton. The scheme consists of 56
Empty Property Strategy and bring empty
affordable houses with a choice of
properties back into use.
rented or shared ownership
Ensure maintenance of private sector housing
stock through Council loans and grants, within
tenures. The properties include a
the terms of the Private Sector Renewal Strategy.
mix of 1, 2 and 3 bedroomed houses
Ensure people with a local connection are
and 2 bedroomed bungalows. We
allocated properties through Shared Ownership,
are working hard with the landlord
Discount for Sale and the Help to buy equity loan
to ensure that these properties all
and Help to buy ISA.
go to local people with a housing
Ensure sufficient Affordable Rent properties
continue to be developed throughout Ryedale,
need.
which cost 80% of the market rent.
Maintain four buildings providing rented housing managed by the Council which offers
13 units of affordable shared accommodation for single working people on low income,
seeking work and young people in training, education and employment.
Maintain availability of supported accommodation and the allocation of support
workers within Derwent Lodge (owned and managed by the council), Ryedale YMCA
(Young Person’s Pathway) and the Cornmill in Malton (Impact Living).
Ensure the best use of social housing through North Yorkshire Home Choice.
Assess and support customers to access the 85 extra properties built in Ryedale for
extra care and older persons supported housing (Micklehill at Pickering and Bransdale
View in Helmsley).
Ensure access to temporary and emergency accommodation, working with Yorkshire
Housing, NYCC and Safe and Sound Homes (SASH) and private providers.
Work with specialist agencies to find suitable accommodation and support for people
with complex needs through accommodation led models.
Ensure maximisation of access to private rental properties to those at risk of
homelessness or homeless through things such as landlord incentives.
Continue the landlord’s forum to ensure landlords are aware of changes in legislation,
policy and available services, while networking with possible landlords to work with the
authority.
Maintain the Traveller site in Malton which holds 19 pitches for Gypsies and Travellers.
Work with commissioners for NYCC to ensure the needs of Ryedale residents are
identified with regard to specialist accommodation, which is not currently available in
Ryedale.

5

Page 93

Outcomes
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

To increase access to low cost shared accommodation for customers.
To develop and increase access to move on accommodation from supported
accommodation.
To annually review the temporary accommodation availability and requirements.
Develop and extend clear and co-ordinated private sector offer to increase private
rental options.
Continue to be an active partner in North Yorkshire Home Choice (NYHC), to
ensure that the properties are made available to as many customers as possible.
Promote and facilitate access to all types of affordable accommodation options.

OBJECTIVE 3 – Maximise partnerships and improve access to support services
Partnerships and inter-agency working within Ryedale is vital to the prevention of
homelessness and ensuring the appropriate support is available for those who are homeless,
to prevent them from becoming homeless again in the future. We work alongside over 30
organisations to deliver this strategy, to find the best solutions for customers. This varies from
involvement with young people, health and wellbeing, support and other partners. Many
provide holistic or focused support for a specific group, with others providing advice for the
wider public.
Ryedale District Council Housing Services currently provide £5000 annually to the Ryedale
Food bank to support them in the delivery of their voluntary services to provide food for
households who are in need. Between April 2019 and March 2020, they redeemed 986 food
vouchers for households, ranging from single people to families, with numbers increasing.
There is also a free fridge in Malton and Norton and there will soon be another opening in
Pickering, which assists those who are struggling financially but aims to reduce food waste.
The money advice service provided in Malton by Citizens’ Advice also receives an annual
grant of £12,000. This is to provide money advice to those who are facing homelessness,
providing them with specialist independent advice and help to access money and debt advice
and to assist them to resolve these issues.
The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 placed a duty on local authorities to provide advice to
specific groups of people who may be more vulnerable. For each of the categories of need
stated in the Act, tailored advice has been developed and is accessible via our website or can
be obtained from the housing team, including support from specialist agencies. We will
continue to develop contacts and referral pathways to specialist support providers for the
specified vulnerable groups and will add to the list above where local need requires.
We will work with partner agencies to ensure that the advice that we provide is realistic, upto-date and relevant to local people who are looking for information or facing homelessness
in the district whether given face-to-face, on our website or in leaflet form.
We will continue to facilitate Ryedale Housing Forum which meets on a quarterly basis and is
a well-established mechanism for monitoring the homelessness strategy, discussing local
issues, improving communication and sharing good practice. Membership and contacts will
be reviewed.
We will carry out work with partners to ensure duties for referral under the Homelessness
Reduction Act 2017 are effective and that statutory agencies are aware of their responsibilities.
6

Page 94

We will also work with other agencies who are not subject to the statutory duty to encourage
early referrals. We identify that there will be continued work needed to engage with other
referring agencies, which will include further training and awareness raising.
Housing Staff are trained in safeguarding and are aware of how to raise alerts should they
have a concern. There is a strong awareness of safeguarding within the department as the
Housing Manager is also the Designated Safeguarding Officer and Safeguarding Concerns
Manager for the council. There is strong partnership working with community safety partners
and this enables timely and appropriate referrals for vulnerable individuals who need specialist
support.
There is a need to work more closely with health services in Ryedale to ensure that people
can access the support they need when they need it. We have links with mental health
services and GPs but will work to strengthen and formalise pathways. We will also regularly
review our hospital discharge protocol to ensure it is operating effectively.
Outcomes
1. Ensure those with complex or specific needs have tailored support suitable for them
and vulnerable customer groups.
2. Increase numbers of referrals sent through Duty to Refer from statutory and nonstatutory agencies, to increase early intervention and prevent homelessness.
3. Maintain and develop relationships with organisations providing support to specific
groups to prevent and relieve homelessness and improve referrals and signposting.
4. Work with agencies, funders and commissioners to increase availability of Drug and
Alcohol Services within Ryedale.
5. Increase employment and training opportunities in partnership with DWP, economic
development and partner agencies.

OBJECTIVE 4 – Raise awareness of homelessness and housing issues across the
district, improving access to the services
Unless the public and partners are aware of the services that are provided for those facing
homelessness and the information is easily accessible, we will struggle to make further
improvements in the way services are delivered and households will not come for help early
enough to access help.
We want to raise awareness in the Council, in the local community and with local agencies so
that people approach us for advice as early as possible to prevent their homelessness and
they also know where else to go directly for specific advice or support. Consultation identified
that some members of the public and partners were not aware of many of the tools that we
had available to assist people in housing need, such as discretionary housing payments, bond
schemes, support services and other prevention options. We will continue to review how we
record the work completed, especially with households who approach our service before they
are officially classed as threatened with homelessness.
We will review our Communication and Marketing Plan and work with the new
Communications Team in order to implement it effectively. We will continue to attend multiagency meetings and take part in consultations locally to keep housing and homelessness
high on the agenda and improve joined up working.

7

Page 95

Currently, consultation is completed with customers on an ‘ad hoc’ basis. It is always
completed for those leaving supported accommodation. Feedback has been largely positive,
but we will work to improve consultation with customers, partner agencies and the wider
community in order to ensure that we are fully aware of issues affecting homelessness in the
district and the demand for our services.
Ryedale is a very large geographical area and transport links to some rural areas are poor
and transport can be expensive. We acknowledge that some people find it difficult to access
our services which are mostly based at Ryedale House in Malton. Prior to the recent
pandemic, we provided a drop-in service in Pickering and attended other agencies to give
advice. We will work flexibly providing home visits to people with specific needs if necessary
or give advice by the telephone encouraging the use of our customer portal to gather evidence
where possible. We will review our service provision and, if there is a need, increase the
number of drop-in sessions, once regulations allow, in outlying parts of the district so that
people can access housing support. We will explore joint working opportunities in order to
provide housing and homelessness advice where and when it is needed.
There are increasing opportunities for customers to contact the housing team via electronic
devices and manage their applications via our online system at a time that suits them. We will
encourage people to access advice online through our website where possible and use our
customer portal if they have internet access.
We will ensure that our housing support staff continue to offer extra support to customers who
are not able to access online services in order that they are not disadvantaged, for example
making bids for social housing on their behalf and assisting them to maximise their incomes.
There is regular training arranged and delivered to inform and update agencies and partners
on changes to legislation, services and to improve working practices. The quarterly Housing
Forum provides information to over 30 organisations and this is the main forum for information
sharing around housing and homelessness in the district. This information sharing needs to
be increased, for example a newsletter that Ryedale District Council and wider agencies can
feed into, that will then be available online and sent out to agencies, so information can be
shared regularly with a wider audience.
Outcomes
1. Raise awareness of the Housing Options service within the Council, local community
and with local agencies.
2. Increase the use of technology where possible and explore how and where advice is
provided.
3. Implement a robust customer feedback and consultation analysis system to continue
to develop the service.
4. Review the communication and marketing plan.
5. Enable customers with additional needs to access our services.

8

Page 96

OBJECTIVE 5 – Continue to work strategically to maintain services and seek new
opportunities for funding and partnership working
We will raise awareness with decision makers and budget holders of the issues surrounding
demand on service provision locally to safeguard services and funding. We will ensure that
elected members and senior management are regularly updated about the work of the team
and work with the communication team to ensure that we portray a realistic image of
homelessness issues in the district.
We continue to actively seek opportunities to bid for additional funding from MHCLG and other
funding streams. We will build on our relationships with neighbouring authorities and partner
agencies to facilitate further funding opportunities. We will concentrate in particular on seeking
opportunities to work more closely with public health and North Yorkshire County Council
Commissioners, with an interest in mental health and substance misuse, as we have identified
that many people facing homelessness in the district have mental health needs, some of whom
do not engage well with existing services.
Our new in-house housing support service will continue to access charity funding to support
individuals to resolve their homelessness and tackle debt issues.
We will ensure that our services represent value for money by monitoring the cost of temporary
accommodation and minimising void periods in the accommodation that we manage.
Externally Funded Services
Preventing homelessness and providing support is not just a Housing Authority responsibility.
The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 sets out the importance of enhanced joint working
and integration between housing authorities, health and social care in relation to the
development and implementation of homeless prevention strategies. The Act further bolsters
existing legal requirements on local authorities under the Health & Social Care Act 2012 to
take such steps as it considers appropriate for improving the health of the people in its area.
This includes people experiencing homelessness or at risk of homelessness and under The
Children Act 1989 to work in partnership to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in
need.
The governments’ Code of Guidance for Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 highlights the
need for close integration between social care, housing and health authorities around this
whole agenda, specifically in relation to the development of homeless strategies.
The main statutory responsibility towards homelessness sits with the District Council as the
housing authority, however many of the services that are provided locally are funded via the
upper tier authority NYCC, such as the Housing Homeless Prevention and Support Service,
the Young Persons Pathway, support for victims of domestic violence (provided by IDAS),
Offenders housing related support service (provided by Foundation) and Housing Support
Service for people with mental health needs (provided by Horton Housing).
There is significant concern that funding pressures across the county council will have an
impact in relation to services to reduce homelessness; of particular concern is the Young
Persons’ Pathway and the recent reduction of support services to those in the community.
These services form core elements of the local homelessness strategy. We will continue to
monitor this, as there is no certainty over the future of the Young Persons Pathway.

9

Page 97

Outcomes
1. Work with NYCC in reviewing services that deliver specific young peoples’
accommodation and support within Ryedale.
2. Work with partners to provide and increase access to domestic abuse refuge
accommodation within North Yorkshire.
3. Ensure that housing support services within the Council are maintained while
increasing homeless prevention and supporting households in order to prevent repeat
homelessness.
4. Work with NYCC commissioners and successful contractors, on the provision of
mental health accommodation and offender support services in Ryedale.
5. MHCLG funding and local funding options.
6. Review money advice, income maximisation, financial support and basic living
provision available to residents and look at future funding provision from the council
and external sources.
7. Develop closer links with Public health and other health services provided within the
district.

OBJECTIVE 6 - End Rough Sleeping
Why is this important?
Rough Sleepers are some of the most vulnerable people in society. They may have complex
support needs which can be worsened by having no settled suitable accommodation.
The Government have pledged to half rough sleeping by 2022 and end rough sleeping
nationally by 2027, as outlined in the Government’s Rough Sleeping Strategy.
The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 increases the responsibilities of the council to all
homeless people, regardless of whether they have a priority need for housing.
What are the big issues going forward?








Without additional intervention at the local level we estimate that rough sleeping levels
are likely to increase going forward in line with the national trends.
We recognise that more needs to be done to both stem the rate of increase in numbers
of people sleeping rough and reduce rough sleeping overall. To monitor progress
against this we have set ourselves ambitious targets over the lifetime of the strategy
to reduce rough sleeping on an on-going annual basis.
Rough sleeping is much more than a housing problem. Tackling this issue requires a
close and co-ordinated multi-agency response to ensure that anyone sleeping rough
or at risk of sleeping rough in the Ryedale is aware of the services available and is
able to access the necessary support to help them off the streets and to address the
problems that led to them becoming homeless.
The council needs to strengthen partnership arrangements to tackle rough sleeping
jointly and ensure that the different agencies are working towards a common goal.
We have identified during consultation that the general public in Ryedale are not aware
of how the council can help rough sleepers or who to contact if they come across
someone who is sleeping rough.

10

Page 98

What are we going to do?




It is our intention to relaunch the ‘Single Service Offer’ approach based on the
Government’s ‘No Second Night-Out’ Principles, which can be found on our website Help for rough sleepers - No Second Night Out.
They will be referred to a relevant agency for some form of help. This approach
acknowledges that various agencies have a different role to play but will work in
partnership to tackle this problem.
We will engage with all relevant agencies in the district and particularly concentrate on
improving links with mental health and drug and alcohol services.

Outcomes
1. Refresh and implement a ‘single service offer’ based on the no second night out
principles.
2. Develop and embed a rough sleeping pathway across the district.
3. Continue to deliver tenancy sustainment work to prevent rough sleeping.
4. Increase knowledge across the district with both partners and the general population
of how to seek help for a rough sleeper.
5. Create a rough sleeping personalised intervention fund.
6. Create an emergency bed space for Rough Sleepers.

DELIVERING AND MONITORING THIS STRATEGY
It is recognised that delivering the Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy is the
responsibility of many organisations working together in partnership and not just the Council.
The quarterly Housing Forum, provides ongoing information sharing and updates which feed
into the Strategy and action plan reviews, significant updates and progress will be shared with
this group.
Ryedale Housing Strategy Steering Group
The aim of the Steering Group is to ensure that this work is co-ordinated in an effective way
with all partners influencing and contributing to a coherent agreed strategy.
The Ryedale Housing Strategy Steering Group will monitor the Homelessness & Rough
Sleeping Action plan on a regular basis and the group will drive forward delivery and progress
in meeting the objectives set out in the strategy. The action plan will be reviewed annually to
ensure that any new changes in legislation and policies are reflected within the strategy.
We welcome your comments which will help to shape future reviews of this policy and
associated action plans.

Email: housing@ryedale.gov.uk
Tel:

01653 600666

Further information is available at https://www.ryedale.gov.uk/homelessness
11

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10c

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE ON 1 OCTOBER 2020

111

HR Policy Revision – Officer Code of Conduct

Considered – Report of the Head of Human Resources
Recommendation to Council
That the revised policy is agreed for implementation.

Voting Record
6 For
0 Against
3 Abstentions
The Chairman asked that thanks were given to the HR team for the production of the revised
policies.
Voting Record
8 For
0 Against
1 Abstentions

Council

Page 101

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

DATE:

1 OCTOBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES
ANDREW ELLIS

TITLE OF REPORT:

HR POLICY REVISION

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To approve the revised Officer Code of Conduct.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended to Council that
(a) The revised policy is agreed for implementation.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

Many of the current HR policies are outdated and not fit for purpose. The revision of
these policies link into the aims and objectives of the People and Culture Plan.

3.2

Policies and procedures are living documents that should grow and adapt with an
organisation. Policy review and revision is a crucial part of an effective policy and
procedure management plan.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks identified with the revised policy. Outdated policies
however, can leave an organisation at risk. Old policies may fail to comply with new
laws and regulations and may not address new systems or technology, which can
result in inconsistent practices.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Full trade union consultation has taken place and the revised policy has been approved
by Strategic Management Board. Final ratification by Elected Members will complete
the consultation process prior to implementation.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Page 103

1 OCTOBER 2020

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

HR policies are a written description of rights and responsibilities of employers and
employees. If a policy is well developed and clearly written, it helps communication
with employees, clarifies expectations and makes sure that everyone is treated in a
consistent and fair way. These are all important factors for creating a desirable culture
for the organisation and they minimise exposure to legal risk.

6.2

The following policy has been revised in line with up to date legislation and
recommended best practice and is attached in full to this report as appendix A:
(a)

Officer Code of Conduct: Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the Officer Code of Conduct:


Ensure all employees of Ryedale District Council are aware of what is
expected of them and that we do everything possible to uphold the highest
possible standards of conduct at all times.



The public, partner organisations and Elected Members are entitled to expect
the highest standards of conduct from all employees who work for Ryedale
District Council.



This policy applies to all employees of Ryedale District Council.

Disregarding this code will, in certain circumstances, result in potential disciplinary
action being taken. The code will be taken into consideration when measuring
against conduct.
7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
(a)

Financial
There are no additional financial implications on the Council from the policy
revision.

(b)

Legal
Under the repeal of the statutory procedures in April 2009 and the introduction
of a recommended code of practice from ACAS (April, 2009) in managing
disciplinary matters, which have a direct link to other policies, employment
tribunals will expect that we have dealt with matters fairly, openly and
consistently. Also, that employees are clear through the procedures, of the
potential action they shall face if found in breach of any singular or group of
policies. Failure to follow due process and procedure, may result in Ryedale
District Council incurring additional costs above the statutory awards where the
Council has been found to not have carried out its full procedures which are
deemed fair and consistent for all employees of the Council.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Page 104

1 OCTOBER 2020

(c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)
None, other than as stated above

Name of Head of Service
Job Title

Andrew Ellis
Head of HR

Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Marie Lomax, HR Project Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43395
marie.lomax@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Appendix A – Officer Code of Conduct

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Page 105

1 OCTOBER 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Code of Conduct

Document Control Sheet
Reference Number
Version Number
Document Author
Lead SMB Member
Ratifying Committee
Date Ratified
Date Policy Effective From
Next Review Date

HROCC
01
Senior HR Business Partner
Head of HR
Overview & Scrutiny, Council

Unless this copy has been taken directly from Ryedale District Council’s intranet,
there is no assurance that this is the most up to date version.
This policy supersedes all previous issues.

HROCC01

Page 107

Page 1 of 18

Table of Contents

Section
1
2
3
3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.9
3.10
3.11
3.12
3.13
3.14
3.15
3.16
3.17
3.18
4
APP A
APP B
APP C
APP D
APP E
APP F

HROCC01

Title
Purpose and Scope
Core Principles
Core Standards
Gifts and Hospitality
Sponsorship – Giving and receiving
Use of Financial Resources
Use of Council Facilities
Intellectual Property
Political Neutrality
Other Employment and External Activities
Personal Interests including Financial and Non-Financial
Interests
Relationships
Employee Concerns and Members
Disclosure of Information
Compliance with the Code
Social Media
Contact with the Press and Media
Smoking/Smoking Cessation
Drugs and Alcohol
Safeguarding
Police Investigations, Allegations, Convictions or Cautions
Policies, Regulations and Standards Relevant to Specific
Services
Gifts and Hospitality
OCC1: Report of Offer of Gift
OCC2: Notification of Outside Employment/Volunteering
OCC3: Declaration of Interests
OCC4: Notice Under Section 117 Local Government Act 1972
Pecuniary Interest in Contract or Proposed Contract
OCC5: Register of Interests

Page 108

Page
3
3
4
4
5
5
5
5
6
6
7
7
8
8
9
9
10
10
10
11
11
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

Page 2 of 18

1.

Purpose and Scope

1.1. The purpose of the Officer Code of Conduct:
 Ensure all employees of Ryedale District Council are aware of what is expected of
them and that we do everything possible to uphold the highest possible standards
of conduct at all times.
 The public, partner organisations and Elected Members are entitled to expect the
highest standards of conduct from all employees who work for Ryedale District
Council.
 This policy applies to all employees of Ryedale District Council.
1.2. Disregarding this code will, in certain circumstances, result in potential disciplinary
action being taken. The code will be taken into consideration when measuring against
conduct.
2.

Core Principles

2.1. The core principles at Ryedale District Council underpin all work that is carried out. All
work and behaviour, in any capacity, is expected to be carried out in accordance with
these principles and in conjunction with the behaviours framework.
2.2. The Core Principles are:
 Selflessness - Employees should take decisions solely in the terms of the public
interest. They should not do so nor use their position in order to gain financial or
other material benefits for themselves, their family or their friends.
 Integrity - Employees should not place themselves under any financial or other
obligations to outside individuals or organisations that might influence them in the
performance of their official duties.
 Objectivity - In carrying out public business, including making public appointments,
awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits,
employees should make decisions on merit.
 Accountability - Employees are accountable for their decisions and actions to the
public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their
office.
 Openness - Employees should be as open as possible about all decisions and
actions they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict
information only when the wider public interest clearly demands it.

HROCC01

Page 109

Page 3 of 18

 Honesty - Employees have a duty to declare any private interests relating to their
public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects
the public interest.
 Respect for Others - Employees must treat other people with respect and not
discriminate unlawfully or unfairly against any person. They must treat Councillors
and other co-opted Members of the authority professionally.
 Trust - Employees must, at all times, act in accordance with the trust that the public
is entitled to place on them. Employees must use any public money or service
users’ money entrusted to or handled by them, in a responsible and lawful manner
and not make personal use of the Council resources unless properly authorised to
do so.
 Leadership - Employees should promote and support these principles by
leadership and example.
3.

Core Standards
All employees are expected to give the highest possible standard of service to the
public. It is the duty of each employee to report to the appropriate manager any breach
of Policy or concern that the Policy is being breached. These core principles link in to
those identified in the People and Culture plan.

3.1. Gifts and Hospitality
3.1.1 Employees may from time to time, in the course of their work, encounter
situations where individuals or organisations may offer gifts or hospitality.
Casual low value gifts offered to employees by contractors, organisations, firms
or individuals such as calendars, diaries, mouse mats, pens and other small
gifts need not be declared. These should be received on a single occasion only
and repeated offers should be declined.
3.1.2 If you are presented with a gift or offer of hospitality you must seek
authorisation in advance, where possible, from your Line Manager or next most
appropriate Senior Manager who will record every request on the relevant form.
3.1.3 All gifts and hospitality, whether accepted or refused, should be reported to
your Line Manager, Service Lead or above and recorded on an OCC1 Form
(Appendix B).
3.1.4 It is a serious criminal offence to corruptly receive or give any gift, loan, fee,
reward or advantage for doing or not doing anything or showing favour or
disfavour to any person in their official capacity. If an allegation is made it is for
the employee to demonstrate that any such rewards have not been corruptly
obtained.

HROCC01

Page 110

Page 4 of 18

3.1.5 All employees should refer to Appendix A when deciding whether or not it is
appropriate to accept a gift. If in doubt, seek advice from your Line Manager.
3.2

Sponsorship – Giving and Receiving
3.2.1. If an organisation wants to sponsor a local government activity, whether by
invitation, tender, negotiation or voluntarily, the guidelines as stated in 3.1
apply. Particular care and consideration must be taken when dealing with
contractors or potential contractors.
3.2.2 If the council sponsors an event or service, no employee must directly benefit
from the sponsorship without full disclosure to the relevant Senior
Manager/Chief Executive. If the Council give support, by any means, in the
community, all advice must be impartial and there must be no conflict of
interest.
3.2.3 All disclosures must be completed on an OCC3 Form (Appendix D) and given
to the relevant Senior Manager/Chief Executive.

3.3

Use of Financial Resources
3.3.1 All employees must ensure that public funds are used in a responsible and
lawful manner at all times. Employees must strive to ensure value for money to
the local community to avoid the risk of legal challenge to the Council.
3.3.2 Employees must follow Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and operating
procedures and advise management where they consider changes can be
made to increase value for money.

3.4

Use of Council Facilities
3.4.1 Access to organisational equipment, such as computers, laptops, mobile
phones, works vehicles etc. is provided for work purposes and use of this
should be respected and not abused.
3.4.2 If you have access to computer information at work you will also be issued
instructions about computer security and proper use of the computer. It is each
individual’s responsibility to care of your computer password which should not
be shared, and any materials you are using, ‘lock’ your computer if you are
going to leave your terminal unattended, and dispose carefully of any unwanted
documents using the paper waste or confidential waste as appropriate.
3.4.3 Further details are available in the ICT Policy.

3.5

Intellectual Property
3.5.1 Intellectual property means product of the mind, for example inventions,
designs, trade-marks, creative writings, programs and drawings, and in this
instance is in relation to any such product produced as a direct result of your
employment with the organisation and during the course of your employment.
(Referred to in short as ‘inventions’). It will normally be the case that the
ownership of all ‘inventions’ and the copyright of all written material created

HROCC01

Page 111

Page 5 of 18

during work for the Council, belong to the Council. If in any doubt employees
must seek further guidance from Legal Services.
3.6

Political Neutrality
3.6.1 Local Government Officers involved in advising elected members of their
authority should be seen to observe a policy of political neutrality. All
employees must follow the Officer Code and also must be politically neutral at
all times.
3.6.2 A list of all politically restricted posts can be obtained from the corporate
governance department.
3.6.3 Employees, whether or not holding politically restricted posts, must follow every
lawful expressed policy of Ryedale District Council and must not allow their
own personal or political opinions to interfere with their work.
3.6.4 Employees should familiarise themselves with the Protocol for Member and
Officer Relations which can be found on the intranet.

3.7

Other Employment & External Activities
3.7.1 Employees must not undertake any type of private work which conflicts with the
Council’s interests or prevents any employee from fulfilling the terms of their
employment contract. All employees must declare an interest where a conflict
may arise.
3.7.2 All employees of Ryedale District Council must notify their Line Manager,
Service Lead or above before undertaking any additional work, paid or unpaid.
This must be documented on an OCC2 Form (Appendix C).
3.7.3 Employees must not:
 Do private work during working hours, on Council premises or use Council
equipment.
 Undertake any private work which prevents them from carrying out their
duties with the Council or including any requirements to do contractual
overtime.
 Undertake private work for any person, firm or company if it will involve the
Council.
 Prepare or assist with any applications, for example planning or building, in
any private capacity if you deal with these normally.
 Access Council services, unless you declare your employment in writing and
submit via your Line Manager.
 Undertake private work for any person, firm or company who have a
contractual relationship with or who are commissioned by the Council for
any type of work, unless they have written permission from their Head of
Service to do so and there is no conflict of interest.
 Undertake private work for another employee responsible for supervising
you or whom you supervise, or for an elected member of the Council, unless

HROCC01

Page 112

Page 6 of 18

they have written permission from their Head of Service to do so and there is
no conflict of interest.
3.7.4 You should ensure you understand and comply with both Working Time
Regulations and Health and Safety regulations before considering other
employment. Any member of staff working more than 48 hours per week across
more than one job (whether within or outside of Ryedale District Council) will
need to ensure they have agreed to this by signing an ‘opt out’ form. Any such
queries should be discussed with Human Resources.
3.8

Personal Interests including Financial and Non-Financial Interests
3.8.1 Employees must declare in writing, initially to their immediate Line Manager or
appropriate Senior Manager:
 Any financial or non-financial interests that they consider could bring about
conflict with the Council’s interests, e.g. being involved in an official capacity
with an outside organisation.
 Any financial interest which could conflict with the Council’s interests, e.g.
work for which a fee is received.
 Employees must declare membership of any secret societies. The definition
of “secret society” is as follows:
“Any Lodge, Chapter, Society, Trust or regular gathering or meeting
which:
o

Is not open to members of the public who are not members

o

Includes in the granting of membership a requirement of the
member to make a commitment (whether by oath or otherwise) of
allegiance.

o

Includes, whether initially or subsequently, a commitment (whether
by oath or otherwise) of secrecy in regard to rules, membership or
conduct.”

3.8.2 In the case of a Senior Manager (Grade12 or above), such a declaration must
be made to the Chief Executive.
3.8.3 Where employees have declared an interest in regard to section 3.8.1 the detail
will be kept in a register by the Council’s Monitoring Officer. The information is
not available to the public but is accessible by other officers who have a ‘need
to know’.
3.9

Relationships
3.9.1 Employees must remember their responsibility to the community they serve,
remaining courteous, efficient and impartial in their service delivery to all
groups and individuals with whom they come into contact.
3.9.2 Officers should avoid close personal familiarity with individual councillors,
service users, customers or clients maintaining professionalism and mutual

HROCC01

Page 113

Page 7 of 18

respect, with the aim to avoid identifying conflicts of interest that would bring
the individual and/or Authority into disrepute.
3.9.3 Employees should disclose if they are working with anyone in a professional
capacity who is a relative or with whom they have a close personal relationship
with outside of work. This also extends to relationships of a business or private
nature with external contractors or potential contractors. The disclosure should
be made to their line manager promptly for their consideration on an OCC3
Form (Appendix D).
3.9.4 Working Together
It is expected everyone will;
 Comply with all the Council’s Policies and Procedures.
 Maintain a high level of confidentiality and professionalism at all times.
 Work with others to achieve a fast and effective resolution to any conflict
arising between staff.
 Demonstrate polite and courteous behaviour to all colleagues, customers
and elected members at all times.
 Ensure the needs of internal and external customers and Councillors are
paramount and are met to their satisfaction.
 Bring concerns to the attention of Managers, using the most appropriate
method deemed necessary.
 Take responsibility for their own health and safety and assist in maintaining
the security and safety of the council and its staff.
 Take personal responsibility for, and pride in, the Council environment.
 Maintain an awareness of Council issues through communication channels
including briefings and newsletters.
 Ensure all staff for whom you are responsible are kept informed and are
encouraged to feedback to you on Council, departmental or individual
issues.
3.10 Employee Concerns and Members
3.10.1 It is not appropriate for Council Officers to lobby Members on matters of
individual concern about their employment, operational issues or future policy
decisions and Members should discourage Officers from making such
approaches. A member of staff who is unhappy about a matter affecting them
personally should be encouraged to take this up with their line manager. If they
are not happy with the response the next step is to talk to their trade union or
senior manager. The Council’s Resolving Issues at Work Procedure is
available if informal methods have not resolved the issue.
3.11 Disclosure of Information
3.11.1 Ryedale District Council believes that open government is best. The law
requires that certain types of information must be available to members,
auditors, government departments, service users and the public. The Council
itself may decide to be open about other types of information. Employees must
HROCC01

Page 114

Page 8 of 18

ensure that they know what that information is and seek advice and guidance
from line managers where this is not clear.
3.11.2 Employees must not use any information obtained in the course of their
employment for personal gain or benefit, nor should they pass it on to others
who might use it in such a way, other than in circumstances which have been
agreed.
3.11.3 Any particular information received by an employee from a Councillor which is
personal to that Councillor and which does not belong to the Council, should
not be divulged by the employee without the prior approval of that Councillor,
except where such disclosure is required by law.
3.12 Compliance with the Code
3.12.1 It is important that local government Officers are exemplary in their conduct at
work. Non-compliance with this Code will be dealt with in accordance with our
Disciplinary Policy.
3.12.2 Employees who consider other employees to be guilty of misconduct must
report this to their Line Manager or raise it through one of the other available
procedures e.g. Resolving Issues at Work.
3.12.3 Employees must not treat employees who report (or who intend to report or are
suspected of reporting) potential misconduct any less favourably than other
employees.
3.12.4 If, in some instances, the employee cannot make use of the existing
procedures for any reason then they should raise complaints or genuine
matters of concern with the relevant person through the Speak Out Policy.
3.13 Social Media
3.13.1 All use of social media and the internet on Council equipment is monitored and
any misuse in relation to social media which is brought to the Council’s
attention, will be investigated and may result in disciplinary action.
3.13.3 Personal accounts set up by staff on social media, whilst unable to be
influenced by the Council, are subject to the ICT Standards of Conduct policy to
ensure employees of Ryedale District Council do not bring the Council into
disrepute.
3.13.4 Employees who use social media for recreational purposes must still adhere to
this policy and must not do anything in their own personal time that would bring
the Council into disrepute. Staff must not use Council E-mail addresses when
using social media for their own personal use.
3.13.5 Employees must not divulge or comment on any information gained in the
course of their work, and relating to any groups or individuals the Council
provides a service to, on any social media outlet.

HROCC01

Page 115

Page 9 of 18

3.14 Contact with the Press and Media
3.14.1 Employees are not permitted to give reports or speak to the press and media,
unless this is an aspect which is clearly required within their role, on matters
relating to their employment within the Council or Council decisions. Employees
with this responsibility must guard themselves against declaring a view which is
contrary to a position taken by the Council and which may be deemed to be
critical of that decision.
3.14.2 In the event of an industrial dispute involving Trade Union organisations, an
elected representative of that Trade Union may be called upon by the press or
media to comment on the dispute. Where a decision is taken by that Trade
Union organisation to respond, employees acting in a union capacity should
exercise great care in presenting their response.
3.14.3 In all circumstances, employees are under a general duty of care to avoid,
wherever practicable, a conflict of interest arising and should not undertake to
criticise, damage or act in any way against the best interests of the Council.
Should this occur, then the employee will be subject to disciplinary action in
accordance with the agreed procedures.
3.15 Smoking/Smoking Cessation
3.15.1 Ryedale District Council has a Smoke Free Workplace Policy. Employees are
reminded that if found smoking (including e-cigarettes) in unauthorised areas of
the Council premises in contravention of the policy, it will be regarded as a
disciplinary offence.
3.15.2 Employees must only smoke within designated ‘smoke areas’ of Council
buildings, which will be defined by Managers responsible for Health & Safety.
3.15.3 Employees are reminded that they are prohibited from smoking or vaping within
works vehicles/pool cars etc.
3.15.4 Health & Wellbeing Services offer additional information to promote and support
a healthy lifestyle and specific information regarding smoking cessation.
3.16 Drugs and Alcohol
3.16.1 Staff believed to be under the influence of non-prescription or illegal drugs or
alcohol during working hours will asked to leave the premises with immediate
effect for their own safety, as well as that or colleagues and members of the
public using Council services. Staff should be reminded that consumption of
non-prescription or illegal drugs and alcohol during work time is a contravention
of this policy and may result in disciplinary action and potential dismissal from
post.
3.16.2 Staff that are prescribed prescription drugs by a medical professional which
may affect their ability to drive or operate machinery and are required to do so
as part of their employment, must notify their line manager with immediate
effect.
HROCC01

Page 116

Page 10 of 18

3.16.3 Staff that are prescribed any medication by a medical professional that has
significant side effects should notify their line manager with immediate effect so
that reasonable adjustments can be made where possible. In such
circumstances, occupational health advice may be sought.
3.16.4 Health & Wellbeing Services offer additional information to promote and support
a healthy lifestyle and specific information regarding drug and alcohol issues.
3.17 Safeguarding
3.17.1 All employees have a responsibility in relation to safeguarding any customers,
clients or service users that they come into contact with throughout the course
of their employment with Ryedale District Council. All staff should undertake
Safeguarding training as part of their induction. Further training will be provided
to those working in specific areas where deeper knowledge of safeguarding is
required.
3.17.2 Any concerns that employees have in relation to safeguarding concerns should
be raised via the appropriate channels, details of which are available on the
intranet or by raising such concerns with your line manager.
3.18 Police investigations, allegations, convictions or cautions
3.18.1 Employees who are the subject of a police investigation, allegations,
convictions, cautions or reprimand must notify their line manager at the earlier
opportunity of the situation. Staff are responsible for keeping their line manager
and/or HR up to date with any progress on such cases. Each case will be
assessed on its own merits as to whether it is appropriate for the employee to
remain in employment during the course of the police investigation. HR advice
should be sought in all such cases and should be kept up to date with progress.
3.19.2 Driving offences need only be declared where an employee may face losing
their driving licence and there is a requirement for them to drive as part of their
employment.
4.

Policies, Regulations and Standards Relevant to Specific Services
In determining acceptable standards, Officers are asked to familiarise themselves not
only with those included in the Officer Code of Conduct but also those included in
Service Specific Codes, corporate policies and/or operational procedures used by their
own Services. A copy of all the above mentioned documents can be found on the
Intranet or requested via their Line Manager.

HROCC01

Page 117

Page 11 of 18

Appendix A

GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY
Checklist for considering whether to accept a gift or hospitality.
The question in all cases is one of judgement, and the following checklist of queries should
help you to decide whether a gift or an offer of hospitality should be accepted or tactfully
declined.
A.
B.
C.
D.

Is the value of the gift or hospitality £10 or over?
If under £10 is it intended as an inducement?
Is the extent of the hospitality, or nature of the gift reasonable and appropriate?
Does the donor have any form of contractual relationship with the Council, does it
provide goods or services to the Council of any kind?
E. Is the invitation/gift directed to a large group of unrelated individuals or open to the
public, or have you been targeted because of your employment with the Council and
the nature of your role?
F. What do you think is the motivation behind the invitation/gift?
G. For hospitality do you want to go and if so why? Is it because there will be genuine
benefits to the Council in terms of networking and contracts gained? Or is a desire to
go centred around personal enjoyment.
H. Would acceptance of the invitation be, in any way, inappropriate or place you under
pressure in relation to any current or future matter involving the Council?
I. For gifts, is there a difficulty in returning the gift? If it would cause offence can the
gift be given to charity or can you pay an equivalent price of the gift to charity?
All gifts and hospitality, whether accepted or refused, should be reported to your Line
Manager, Service Lead or above and recorded in a register and on an OCC1 Form.

HROCC01

Page 118

Page 12 of 18

Appendix B

OCC1: Report of Offer of Gift

Name

Grade/Salary

Job Title

Dept

Details of Gift Offered

Date offer received
To whom offered?
By whom the offer was
accepted/declined
Signature

Date

For office use only
Date form received by
Line Manager, or
above
Entered in Register on

HROCC01

Page 119

Page 13 of 18

Appendix C

OCC2: Notification of Outside Employment/Volunteering

Name

Grade/Salary

Job Title

Dept

Nature of Outside Employment Sought

Is the post paid or unpaid

Paid ☐

Unpaid ☐

Does this employment, in your view, conflict with or is it detrimental to the interests
of the Council or would it weaken public confidence in the conduct of the Council’s
business?

Comment:
Signature

Date

Comments of Line Manager

Comments of Head of Service

Approved ☐

HROCC01

Page 120

Not Approved ☐

Page 14 of 18

Appendix D

OCC3: Declaration of interests

Name

Grade/Salary

Job Title

Dept

Line Manager
Nature of Interest/Relationship

Your role in any relevant business of the Council

How might the interest, in your view, conflict with the interests of the
Council?
Comment:
Signature

Date

For use when declaring relationship with a Contractor:

Name and Address of Contractor

Is this a current relationship?

Yes ☐

If not, when did the relationship
terminate?

No ☐
Date

I hereby declare that the above details correctly record any interest, which I may
have, which could bring about conflict with the Council’s interests.
Signature

Date

For office use only
Received

HROCC01

Page 121

Page 15 of 18

Appendix E

OCC4: Notice Under Section 117 Local Government Act 1972 Pecuniary
Interest in Contract or Proposed Contract

Name

Grade/Salary

Job Title

Dept

Line Manager
Nature of Interest

Details of Contract or Proposed Contract with the Council

I make the above declaration in accordance with Section 117 of the Local
Government Act 1972.
Signature

Date

For office use only
Date completed form received by Council
Solicitor and Head of Service or above
Date notified to Line Manager, Head of
Service or above

HROCC01

Page 122

Page 16 of 18

Appendix F

OCC5: Register of Interests

Name

Grade/Salary

Job Title

Dept

Line Manager
Nature of Interest

Guidance

Interest (please write NONE
if you have no relevant
interests)

Employer

Please indicate the name of the employer
of your spouse or partner, or anyone else
who lives with you who makes a significant
contribution to the household income (it is
not necessary to register temporary,
summer or part time job of a child of the
household).

Land interest

Please provide details sufficient to describe
the location of any land in which you have
an interest, whether it is ownership,
leasehold, a tenancy or license. If you
have any rights over land you should
register the address or location of that land.

Directorships,
shareholding
and
Company
Interests

In relation to any company which is based
in or may operation in Ryedale,
directorships, significant shareholding (ie
more than £10,000 of the nominal share
value) and any position of management or
control in a company. This would include a
position as Company Secretary or
Treasurer.

Membership
of Bodies

You need only register a position of
management or control in a body. You
need only register interests in bodies which
are:

HROCC01

Page 123

Page 17 of 18

Appendix F
A. Charities or directed to charitable
purposes
B. Bodies designed to influence public
opinion – these include campaign
groups. You do not need to register
membership of a trade union.
C. Bodies carrying out functions of a
public nature: This is wide ranging
and will include bodies that you are
appointed to by the Council. You need
not register membership of
Partnerships (where you are there for
the Council), but should include
trusteeships, governing body
membership and membership of a
parish council (in Ryedale).
D. Membership of secret societies. You
do not need to register membership of
sports associations, secret societies or
other clubs and groups but you may
need to DECLARE an interest in that
body if you find yourself dealing with a
matter, which is relevant to that body.
You must register membership of a
charity (the Grand Lodge of
Freemasonry is a charity).

I declare that the above is a true statement of my personal interests
Signature

HROCC01

Date

Page 124

Page 18 of 18

Agenda Item 10d

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 12 NOVEMBER 2020

20

To Consider the Submission to Government of York and North Yorkshire
Devolution Asks

Considered – report of the Programme Director – Economic Development, Business and
Partnerships
Recommendation
It is recommended to Council that:
(i)

Agreement is given to submission of the York and North Yorkshire devolution asks to
Government, so that devolution negotiations can commence.

Voting record
6 For
2 Against
2 Abstentions

Council

Page 125

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

12 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR – ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
BUSINESS AND PARTNERSHIPS
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

TO CONSIDER THE SUBMISSION TO GOVERNMENT OF
THE YORK AND NORTH YORKSHIRE DEVOLUTION ASKS

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

Ryedale District Council must consider whether it agrees to the submission of the York
and North Yorkshire devolution asks to Government. It must be stressed that any
decision taken upon whether to support submission of the asks marks the start of a
negotiation process with Government. A decision would not, at this stage, be about
agreeing the asks or a final negotiated devolution deal. It would simply be about
endorsing the submission to Government so that devolution negotiation can
commence.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended to Council that:
(i)

Agreement is given to submission of the York and North Yorkshire devolution
asks to Government, so that devolution negotiations can commence.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

An area wishing to seek a devolution deal must submit proposals to Government,
setting out its investment requests. Devolution offers the opportunity for devolved local
powers and up to £2.4bn to be invested in the York and North Yorkshire area. A
significant portion of this would be invested to the benefit of the Ryedale economy.
Submission of the asks document will allow devolution negotiations with Government
to begin.

3.2

Any decision upon formal Council agreement of the asks, and the resultant devolution
deal proposals, will be taken through the normal committee/Council processes in due
course.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 127

12 NOVEMBER 2020

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Should Ryedale District Council not agree to the submission of the devolution asks to
Government, this would potentially threaten the overall York and North Yorkshire
devolution deal.
If a devolution deal is not agreed, £2.4bn of investment into York and North Yorkshire
would potentially be lost, with Ryedale losing its share of that investment. The powers
and funding that devolution offers to Ryedale and the wider North Yorkshire area are
crucial to our future economic prosperity. This is even more so in the context of the
Covid emergency as we seek to support and grow the district’s economy.

4.2

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Meetings to discuss the draft proposals were held with Group Leaders on 6th May and
27th May 2020, and on 19th May an email was sent to all Members inviting comments
on the proposals. This generated six responses (responses attached at Appendix 1)
with respondents recognising the importance of devolution and the potential benefits it
could bring to Ryedale, while raising concerns around governance, and highlighting
the need for a strong Ryedale voice in the forward process.

5.2

A further All-Member Briefing was held on 23rd July 2020 to outline the final devolution
proposal, including presentations on the overarching deal and on what opportunities it
could offer to Ryedale. There was recognition in the meeting of the importance of
securing a deal and support for the submission of the asks to Government.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

In its manifesto in 2019, the Conservative Party set out an ambition for full devolution
across England. In essence this involves Central Government devolving some powers
down to local level, and committing to a programme of investment to drive economic
growth.

6.2

Any area that seeks a devolution deal must prepare proposals setting out what level of
strategic investment is requested from Government, and how that investment would
be spent to drive future sustainable growth. Proposals also include how the local
governance structure would work for the devolved geography.

6.3

Many councils around the country are currently discussing whether, or how, they might
want to engage in the devolution agenda, and what benefits it could bring to their
residents. The Leaders of the Councils in York and North Yorkshire have also been
having such discussions.

6.4

A devolution deal proposal for York and North Yorkshire has been worked up. If the
proposal goes ahead and is accepted by Government, it could mean investment of
around £2.4bn on initiatives to transform places, lead the way on a green future,
support businesses and people, and make communities safer. (Devolution proposals
are attached at Appendix 2.)

6.5

For the residents of Ryedale, it could mean major investment into improved transport
infrastructure, digital inclusion, vibrant market towns, housing and skills. It could also
see organisations in our district becoming part of a world centre for bioscience and biorenewables.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 128

12 NOVEMBER 2020

6.6

Specifically, proposals within the devolution asks comprise:

6.7

Officers have worked with the York and North Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership
and Councils across the area over many months to help shape the proposals to reflect
the needs of Ryedale.

6.8

Ryedale District Council (like all other Councils across York and North Yorkshire) is
required to confirm its support for the submission of the asks prior to submission to
Government. It must be stressed that at this stage the Council is simply being asked
to consider endorsing the submission of the asks as the basis of negotiations with
Government, and is not formally agreeing the asks themselves. Any formal decision
upon the asks and the negotiated devolution deal will be the subject of formal
consideration through the Council’s committee and Council processes in due course.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
There are no direct financial implications associated with the submission of the
devolution asks to Government. As highlighted above, devolution offers the
potential to bring £2.4bn of investment into York and North Yorkshire with a
significant proportion of this being invested into the economy of Ryedale.

b)

Legal
There are no direct legal issues associated with agreeing to submit the devolution
asks. RDC is not formally agreeing the asks at this stage, but rather simply
endorsing their submission as the basis of negotiations with Government.
The asks are separate from Local Government Reorganisation proposals at this
time. Once there is further clarity on Reorganisation, and on devolution once the

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 129

12 NOVEMBER 2020

anticipated Devolution White Paper is released, the Council can revisit matters as
appropriate, but in the meantime it is important for the asks to be put forward.
Any decision upon formal Council agreement of the asks, and the resultant
devolution deal proposals, will be taken through the normal committee/Council
processes.
c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
The asks are anchored by a devolution vision of York and North Yorkshire
becoming England’s first carbon negative economy.
Equalities issues will be addressed in the detailed development of individual
devolution investment proposals.

Phillip Spurr
Programme Director – Economic Development, Business and Partnerships
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Phillip Spurr, Programme Director – Economic Development, Business
and Partnerships
01653 600666 ext: 43348
phillip.spurr@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
York and North Yorkshire Devolution Proposal
Elected Member Consultation Comments, 26/05/20
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
Ryedale District Council’s online library - Devolution

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 130

12 NOVEMBER 2020

Agenda Item 10e

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 12 NOVEMBER 2020

13

Timetable of Meetings 2021-2022

Considered – report of the Head of Corporate Governance.
Recommendation
Council is recommended to approve the timetable of meetings, attached as Annex A to the
report, as a basis for working in 2021-22.
Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 131

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

12 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SIMON COPLEY

TITLE OF REPORT:

TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS 2021-2022

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

FOR INFORMATION TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
22 OCTOBER 2020
PLANNING COMMITTEE
27 OCTOBER 2020

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report presents the draft timetable of meetings for 2021-2022 for approval.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

That Council is recommended to approve the timetable of meetings, attached as Annex
A to this report, as a basis for working in 2021-22.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To provide a timetable for all decision making, advisory and overview and scrutiny
meetings for use by Members, officers, the public and other interested parties.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks relating to this recommendation.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

A timetable of meetings is agreed and published for each municipal year. This is an
essential part of making the Council’s decision making process open and accessible
to all interested parties. The timetable of meetings is a working document as additional
meetings can be scheduled, under the Rules of Procedure in the Council’s
Constitution, if and when required to deal with business that has arisen. The legal
requirement to publish a public notice of meeting supports transparency and
accessibility for any additional meetings.

5.2

Strategic Management Board have been consulted on the draft timetable of meetings

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 133

12 NOVEMBER 2020

for 2021-2022. Elected members may wish to consider whether they continue to
schedule Member development sessions in advance or whether these are arranged
as and when they are required.
REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The draft timetable of meetings, attached as Annex A of the report, has been based
on the meeting cycle used in 2020-21.

6.2

Mondays have been kept free of meetings as this is when the majority of parish and
town councils meet. Also no meetings have been scheduled to coincide with Maundy
Thursday (14 April 2022) and the Ryedale Show (27 July 2021).

6.3

Members have the option to approve, amend or reject the draft timetable of meetings
attached at Annex A. If the current draft timetable is not acceptable to Members, an
alternative will need to be agreed.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The costs of meetings within the Council are built into existing budgets.
b)

Legal
None.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
An equality impact assessment was carried out four years ago when start times to
meetings were reviewed. As no changes are proposed to the number of meetings,
the climate change impact will be unchanged from previous years.

8.0

NEXT STEPS

8.1

Once the timetable of meetings has been approved it will be published on the Council’s
website using the Modern.gov committee management system.

Simon Copley
Head of Corporate Governance
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Simon Copley, Head of Corporate Governance
01653 600666 ext: 43277
simon.copley@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 134

12 NOVEMBER 2020

TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS MAY 2021 TO MAY 2022
COMMITTEE
Council
Policy & Resources
Overview & Scrutiny
(Including Audit)
Planning Committee and
Licensing Committee
Member Development****

MAY
2021
20*

JUN

JULY

AUG

24

27
10
8

SEPT

OCT

9

7

NOV

DEC

JAN
2022

2

MAR

APR

MAY

Day

7

19*

Thurs

17 &
24**
3

17

20

10

24

21

15

15

12

9

6

29

23

28
(Wed)
6

30

21

18

1 (Wed)
& 28
8

26

23

21

18

13

10

1

12***

3

FEB

11

Thurs
Thurs
10

Tues
(6pm)
Wed

All meetings start at 6.30pm unless otherwise indicated.

Page 135

NOTES

* Annual Council (start time 6.30pm)
** Reserve date for business not transacted on 17 February 2022
*** Budget Briefing
****Member Development dates may be subject to change following discussions between the Member Development
Task Group and the Strategic Management Board
Working Parties and Sub-Committees will meet as business requires
The Constitution Working Party must meet at least once a year
Scheduled Elections

Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner Election and
North Yorkshire County Council Election
-

Thursday 6 May 2021

Bank Holidays
Spring Bank Holiday
Late Summer Bank Holiday
Christmas Bank Holiday
New Year’s Day Holiday
Council Offices closed
Easter
May Day

-

Monday 31 May 2021
Monday 30 August 2021
Monday 27 & Tuesday 28 December 2021
Monday 3 January 2022
Saturday 25 December 2021 to Monday 3 January 2022 inclusive
Friday 15 April and Monday 18 April 2022
Monday 2 May 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10f

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 12 NOVEMBER 2020

14

HR Policy Revision – Recruitment Policy

Considered – report of the Head of Human Resources.
Recommendation
The revised policy is agreed for implementation.
Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 137

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES

DATE:

12 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES
ANDREW ELLIS

TITLE OF REPORT:

HR POLICY REVISION – RECRUITMENT POLICY

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To obtain commitment from the Policy and Resources Committee in relation to an
updated employee Recruitment Policy, incorporating Safer Recruitment.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that
(i)

The revised policy is agreed for implementation.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

RDC’s former Recruitment Policy was significantly out of date and referred to old
legislation that was no longer relevant. For this reason, the Policy was removed from
the internal intranet in 2019. The attached Policies have been developed to provide a
current, robust and efficient recruitment framework.

3.2

Senior Management Board have reviewed and signed off these policies, following
consultation with representatives from Unison, as the recognised trade union at
Ryedale District Council. Following Unisons comments some minor revisions were
made and signed off by Senior Management Board in early October 2020.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The current Recruitment Policy is outdated and contained incorrect guidance; it was
removed from the council’s intranet in 2019. This presents risks and challenges
because there is no framework to which Managers can reference their practice. This

POLICY AND RESOURCES

12 NOVEMBER 2020

Page 139

is currently leading to inconsistent approaches, unnecessary costs and risk of
inequality claims. The current Recruitment Policy does not specifically refer to Safer
Recruitment practices and as such there are risks in current practice when recruiting
to roles in regulated activity and where safeguarding may be a concern. The new
Policy addresses Safer Recruitment.
4.2

Introduction of the Policies may create new risk, namely from applicants or existing
employees who challenge recruitment approaches, however this risk is the lesser than
the current situation of having no formal Recruitment/Safer Recruitment Policies.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Policy has been shared and discussed in detail with Unison, the recognised trade
union within Ryedale District Council and their comments taken on board in the form
of some minor revisions to the Policy.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

Recruitment Policy
This policy aims to provide a structured framework for Managers when they are
required to undertake recruitment of new employees. The policy is structured through
the process a manager would need to follow from the point that a new vacancy arose,
through to a new employee starting. It includes the recommended approach from
advertising, shortlisting, interviewing and recruitment clearances, in addition to
considerations when there is a need to hire agency workers.
The policy aims to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and Acts, whilst also
ensuring good practice to achieve a positive candidate experience, enhancing the
reputation as an employer and striving to attract and appoint talented staff.
Safer Recruitment Policy
Ensuring Ryedale’s Service Users and communities are kept safe from harm is
paramount. The Safer Recruitment Policy aims to embed safeguarding into the all
stages of the Council’s recruitment process. It outlines the necessary processes that
should be followed when managers are recruiting to roles in Regulated Activity and for
those roles not defined as Regulated Activity but where the post-holder is still directly
working with Service Users it proposes measures that should be implemented to
minimise risk.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b)

Legal
As above

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate

POLICY AND RESOURCES

12 NOVEMBER 2020

Page 140

Change, Crime & Disorder)
As above
Name of Head of Service
Job Title
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Andrew Ellis
Head of HR

Keeley Metcalfe, Resourcing Solutions Business Partner
07980 725 053
keeley.metcalfe@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Recruitment Policy & accompanying appendices
Safer Recruitment Policy and accompanying appendices

POLICY AND RESOURCES

12 NOVEMBER 2020

Page 141

This page is intentionally left blank

Ryedale District Council
Recruitment Policy - Framework and Guidance
Date issued:

tbc

1.0 Overview
This policy and guidance aims to provide practical advice to managers on the recruitment
process within Ryedale District Council (RDC). The aim is to attract talented staff who possess
the appropriate skills and abilities to deliver great services for the residents and visitors of
Ryedale. This policy sets out how to recruit staff in a fair, equitable and legally complaint way,
whilst also being effective and efficient.
It is intended as an overview and links to further information will be detailed where relevant.
2.0 Recruitment context
The Ryedale District has a critically scarce labour market, largely due to rural demographics but
combined with low unemployment, high cost of living and limited transport links. There are also
national skills shortages which lead to some sectors being particularly difficult to fill. With these
challenges in mind recruiting managers need to recruit pro-actively and have possible workforce
solutions should they receive an unexpected resignation.
3.0 Workforce planning
Given the challenging demographics and scare talent it is important that Managers build and
develop pipelines for talent prior to the need to recruit. The following should be considered as
means of developing new talent and future recruits, for further details please liaise with HR;
-

Hosting work experience placements
Employing an apprentice
Employing a Graduate
Hosting a Graduate summer placement
Open days

Your service should also have a training plan in place for existing staff, outlining the approach to
training and supporting existing staff development.
4.0 The recruitment process
Recruitment and selection must be fair, effective, robust and safe to build and maintain an
effective workforce and work within legal duties.A Process Map for Recruiting Managers is
provided in Appendix xx
Prior to the need to recruit
Managers must have read this Recruitment Policy in addition to the Safer Recruitment Policy.
All Recruiting Managers should have completed the online Safer Recruitment and Selection
training prior to commencing the recruitment process.
Managers should consider when a member of staff is leaving whether they need to replace the
role ‘like for like’ or whether duties of the role could be fulfilled in an alternative way. This type of
rationalisation should take place prior to commencing a recruitment process to ensure that
service delivery remains up-to-date and effective. Reflect on the role and the service. Consult
other members of the team as they may identify more effective ways of working and these
should be explored in the first instance.

Page 143

Managers must also review the job description and person specification at this stage to
ascertain if there is a need to revise the document and have the role re-evaluated (please see
below).
4.1 Considering recruitment
Managers need to reflect on prior considerations with regards to whether there is a need to
replace the role ‘like for like’, if a new recruit is sought the following process should be followed.
-

-

Ensure the job description and person specification accurately reflects the role you are
recruiting to. The job description should outline key duties, responsibilities and
relationships, it includes a person specification to provide information on the areas of
knowledge, experience, skills, behaviours and qualifications that are required. A service
and job specific context statement helps add depth to the overarching accountabilities
contained within the job description. If you need to make updates to the roles and
responsibilities please ensure that you contact HR to discuss the nature of the changes,
the extent of which may determine next steps. If you’re recruiting to a new role and don’t
yet have a job description, please discuss with HR and they will advise on the job
evaluation process.
Obtain authorisation to recruit from Strategic Management Board prior to advertising by
completing an Authorisation to Recruit Form Appendix xx
Consider whether there is a need to advertise initially as internal only. This is
recommended if you believe there is talent in the organisation with whom it would provide
a development opportunity for. If you wish to pursue as an internal advert only, please
see guidance in section 6.0 below.

4.2 Internal Recruitment Process
All vacancies that are deemed to be suitable for an internal only advert must be posted on the
internal Ryedale Intranet (BOB) for a period of approximately a week. This ensures fairness
and equality across all RDC employees.
To post the details as an internal only advert on Ryedale Intranet please email a Vacancy Media
Order Form (Appendix xx) to Employment Support Service, ensuring you tick the box to confirm
if the vacancy is ‘Internal Only?’ Please consider that your vacancy might not be posted until up
to 24 hours after submission so bear this in mind when planning time-scales.
Internal applicants will be able to view the vacancy on the Ryedale Intranet (BOB) and submit
an online application.
4.3 External Recruitment Process
Once you have completed the initial preparations outlined in 3.2, Managers need to plan the
recruitment timeline prior to developing the advert.
In such a challenging recruitment market it is paramount a positive candidate experience is at
the forefront. To engage candidates and minimise the risk of withdrawals, or of candidates
securing other job offers prior to your interview its important the recruitment process is
completed swiftly. Planning in your interview date and organising panel members as a starting
point ensures you have this secured and the process can work backwards from this date.
The time-scales below are recommended.
Planning; Recruitment timeline;

Page 144

-

Interview date; aim to have between 7 – 10 working days from your shortlisting date to
the interview date
Shortlisting; aim to shortlist within 2 working days of the job advert closing
Advertising period; A minimum of two weeks is recommended, up to three weeks

The external recruitment process is currently administrated by North Yorkshire County Council’s
(NYCC’s) Employment Support Service Recruitment (ESSR) Team. This team will complete the
administration element of the recruitment process e.g. posting the advert, collating applications,
inviting candidates to interview and obtaining clearances. Managers are encouraged to
maintain direct contact with candidates at all stages and especially following shortlisting
whereby you may need to follow up with a candidate to ask questions, ask them to return ID or
even provide a personal invite to interview by telephone (in addition to the email invite ESSR
send to them).
NYCC’s Resourcing Solutions Team are a separate team to ESSR and provide specialist
recruitment advice and guidance on how to engage and reach talent.
4.4 Advertising
Once the recruitment timeline has been set, Managers can proceed to write the recruitment
advert.
The job advert should be engaging and attractive to potential candidates, balancing the benefits
of the role alongside an explanation of what the responsibilities of the role are and describing
why RDC is an excellent employer. Template job adverts are available on the Intranet in the
recruitment section.
To be complaint with the Equalities Act managers must avoid reference to any statements that
could directly or indirectly discriminate against people who may possess a Protected
Characteristic. Additionally, job adverts should avoid any statements relating to number of
years’ experience and wording describing candidates that could be viewed as discriminatory. To
ensure fairness and equality your advert should only state genuine occupational requirements
(GOR) were it is lawful to treat people differently when recruiting, the requirement must be
crucial to the post and not merely one of several important factors. An example; A women’s
refuge may want to say that it should be able to employ only women as counsellors. Its client
base is only women who are experiencing domestic violence committed by men. This is likely to
be a genuine occupational requirement.
Managers can take positive action to increase attraction of a certain demographic with a
protected characteristic in their team. You should not however take actions that could be
regarded as preferential treatment of a minority group over those of a majority group, this would
be viewed a Positive Discrimination which is illegal. For example, choosing to appoint a
candidate due to their gender to address a team gender imbalance is not legal.
Once the advert is written Managers need to complete a vacancy media order form (Appendix
X) and send to Employment Support Service Recruitment (ESSR). Please allow a full working
day for your advert to be posted and ensure this is built into your recruitment timeline.
Job adverts will be administrated by ESSR and will be placed on the following media as
standard;
- NYCC Jobs www.nyccjobs.co.uk
- Ryedale District Council Jobs Board www.rdcouncil-jobs.com

Page 145

- Many jobs will usually also appear on Indeed.co.uk who voluntarily pick up jobs from the
NYCC jobs page and copy them across to Indeed.
Additional Media Advertising
In order to evaluate the need and reduce unnecessary costs, all requests for external paid for
media advertising will be reviewed by the Resourcing Solutions Team. The Vacancy Media
Order Form has a section for Managers to request; Resourcing Solutions referral required
for Specialist advertising?
If Yes is selected it will be referred to the Resourcing Solutions Team who will make contact to
discuss. Please note that additional media advertising will only be considered for hard to fill or
specialist vacancies. The Resourcing Solutions Team have existing media relations and can
secure preferential rates.
4.5 Shortlisting
Vacancies close at midnight by default on the closing date. Within 24 hours or the next working
day following the closing date the ESSR team will email applications to the Recruiting Manager.
These applications will be anonymous to ensure equality across candidates.
Shortlisting should take place 1-2 working days after the closing of the job advert. The short
listing must be undertaken by a minimum of 2 members of staff including the manager. You
must be able to evidence objectivity and equitability in your decision making and in order to do
this it is recommended you record your decisions to a Shortlisting Decision Making grid
(Appendix x). Identify the essential criteria from your Job Description and transfer across to the
Shortlisting Decision Making grid. You may wish to consider 2-3 key factors that are particularly
needed by your service/team at this point in time and these could be the ones that you weigh
more heavily to aid in the scoring of candidates.
Upon completion of shortlisting Managers should complete the Shortlisting Results Form and
return by email to ESSR within 24 hours of finishing the shortlisting.
If a candidate has made a declaration under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974, they must
be treated fairly and not automatically disregarded. All candidates who meet the essential
criteria, regardless of convictions declared, should be invited to interview where the nature of
any convictions can be explored further. You must treat all declarations confidentially. The
exceptions where an applicant may have to declare spent cautions and convictions are listed in
the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions) Order 1975, this includes roles which are
in Regulated Activity. Please contact HR is you have any queries relating to this.
Due to volume of applications received RDC do not guarantee the provision of feedback to
applications that have not been shortlisted. However, managers are encouraged to do so where
possible to create a positive impression of RDC as an employer and encourage future
applications.
Applicants have the right to request to see any notes or documentation relating to the short
listing of their application. Applicants can do this through a Freedom of Information request (also
referred to as Subject Access Requests) through data management services. Managers should
retain shortlisting notes/forms for 6 months following the shortlisting decision.
Upon receipt of your shortlisting results form, ESSR will email an invite to interview to the
candidates and they will also send you the candidates full application form, including their name
and contact details. You are encouraged to contact the candidate to thank them for their

Page 146

application, advise they will receive a formal invite to interview by email but express your
interest in meeting them.
4.6 Assessing and selection
Interviews should be conducted by a panel of at least 2 members, usually not more than 3 and
where possible, the panel should be as diverse and inclusive as possible, include a mix of male
and female representatives, represent different ethnicity and age groups where possible. All
members should be adequately trained, and the Lead Panel member must have completed the
mandatory Safer Recruitment & Selection and the Equality and Diversity online learning
packages.
Interview questions should be prepared in advance. Competency based interview questions
are recommended as the best predictor of future performance is a candidate’s previous
behaviours. An example interview question bank is available on BOB.
The candidate should be scored throughout the interview (a template for interview decision
making is available on BOB. It is the manager’s responsibility to retain sufficient records to
justify their objective decision making if challenged. It is important that only the skills/behaviours
which appear in the job description/person specification are assessed. The marking system
should be agreed beforehand and applications should be scored separately by panel members
before a final mark is given. If a candidate cannot attend an interview face to face the manager
can offer to conduct it remotely but if appointed, the candidate will need to provide necessary
documents prior to their start date.
It is a legal requirement to ensure that all candidates have documentation providing proof of
their right to work in the UK prior to employment. A list of acceptable evidence is available here;
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/fi
le/774286/Right_to_Work_Checklist.pdf
It is the recruiting manager’s responsibility to verify this documentation at interview. The person
verifying the document should add “Verified as true copy of original on xx/xx/xx (insert date)” to
the copied document. It is also a requirement to ensure any essential qualifications,
memberships of professional bodies and DBS documents (where applicable) are provided and
verified at interview. Upon completion of the interview, documents for the successful
candidate(s) must be sent to Employment Support Services Recruitment who will audit
and check that the documents are compliant.
4.7 Assessments and testing
Any assessments used as part of the decision making/interview process must be objective and
fair. They must not provide an unfair disadvantage to any candidates e.g. internal candidates.
It is recommended that you speak to Resourcing Solutions, who have qualified Occupational
Assessors in the team, about assessment options if you feel these are needed to aid your
recruitment. A range of ‘off the shelf’ assessments are available and these often have guidance
on adaptations for candidates who declare a disability, which you may not be able to provide
objectively if you design your own assessment. Please contact the Resourcing Solutions Team
for further info and costs.
4.8 Decision making
It is essential that only objective information is used in the decision making process and those
decisions are justified, fair and evidence based. The panel should be able to demonstrate that
they have acted proportionately. It is the responsibility of the chair of the interview panel to

Page 147

demonstrate that discrimination has not occurred and not for the applicant to prove that it has,
should there be any challenges.
The candidate with the highest score should usually be appointed however another candidate
may be appointed if it can be evidenced they would be a more suitable fit for the team; this must
be objectively justifiable. If a candidate does not meet a pre-determined benchmark, this does
not mean they are not appointable. If the manager can see that they could meet the
requirements of the role within their probationary period with support, then you are able to
appoint.
It is entirely acceptable not to appoint – selecting the best candidate for the role is essential and
managers should not feel compelled to appoint a less than satisfactory candidate regardless of
the demands of the service.
On completion of all interviews, the successful candidate(s) must be informed of the outcome
within 1 working day and the successful candidate(s) should be advised that the offer is subject
to satisfactory clearances.
Candidates that have not been successful should be notified of the outcome within 2 working
days of the interview. Managers should offer to provide feedback, though the feedback can be
arranged to be provided at a later date, though no later than 10 days after the interview as to
avoid any negative perceptions of the organisation. Though the candidate might not be suitable
for the role they initially apply for, they could be suitable for other roles in the Council and if they
have had a good experience they will consider applying for the Council again. Recruiting
managers should therefore be able to provide solid, encouraging and constructive feedback.
4.9 Employment checks and clearances
No employee will be authorised to commence employment until all appropriate employment
clearances have been fulfilled, including:


Evidence of eligibility to work in the UK

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/fi
le/774286/Right_to_Work_Checklist.pdf






Two References; at least one of these must be from the present or most recent
employer)
Health declaration
DBS clearance (if applicable to the post)
Evidence of any qualifications which are a legal requirement of the role
Evidence of any membership to professional bodies which are a legal requirement of the
role

When contacting the candidate to make the conditional offer of employment, if the candidate
accepts you should advise them that they will receive a conditional offer by email and will be
asked to complete a health questionnaire, ask them to do this as soon as possible. Advise that
their referees will now be contacted and ask that they contact their referees to forewarn them
and encourage them to complete quickly as possible so they can start as soon as they are able
to. The manager may consider withdrawing the conditional offer based on the inability to gain
satisfactory clearances. We recommend that manager take advice from Resourcing Solutions
before doing so.
Managers should obtain a minimum of 2 references, as a minimum one of which must be from
the current or most recent/relevant employer. If the references obtained are considered

Page 148

unsatisfactory the manager may decide, with the applicant’s permission, to seek further
references to consider the position further. It is the manager’s responsibility to decide if the
reference is satisfactory. Any serious matters, recent or unresolved issues must be explored
further by the recruiting manager with the referee and applicant. If the reference is obtained by
telephone the manager’s understanding should then be confirmed in writing to the referee as a
record of the discussion.
In the event that the reference is unsatisfactory due to the level of absence, further advice from
HR and Occupational Health should be sought. As a general rule, absences that would trigger
RDC’s attendance procedure would be deemed unsatisfactory, however care must be taken as
some absence may be pregnancy or disability related which may require further consideration
due to potential discrimination.
In some circumstances it may not be possible to obtain employment references, for example,
when an applicant has not worked for several years, has never worked or has recently left
education. In such exceptional situations, professional references must be obtained and the
recruiting manager must assess the risk involved and where applicable ensure that appropriate
alternative safeguarding measures are undertaken and/or put in place if the person is
appointed. Professional references should ideally be sought from someone who has supported
the individual in this capacity (e.g. Teacher, Lawyer, Doctor). In instances where efforts have
been made to gain employment/professional references and a second reference has not been
successfully obtained, a character reference may be provided as a second reference only (Non
DBS posts only). In exceptional circumstances where no employment/professional references
can be obtained please contact HR for advice.
The recruiting manager will be informed of the outcome of the health declaration and if any
reasonable adjustments need to be made. Offers of employment should not be withdrawn for
health related reasons without consultation with HR and Occupational Health.
5.0 New starter engagement
Once all clearances have been received, ESSR will inform the recruiting manager, who must
then contact the candidate to arrange a start date. Once the date is agreed with the candidate
the recruiting manager needs to inform ESSR who will then start to create a contract for the
candidate. The contract will be emailed to the Recruiting Manager who is responsible for
checking it for accuracy and confirming this with ESSR. When this has been confirmed ESSR
will then email the contract to the candidate and the candidate needs to accept this online via
the portal. When ESSR receive confirmation of acceptance from the candidate they can then
issue an employee reference number and set up the payroll record (a copy of which is emailed
to the Recruiting Manager, so they will know when it has been issued). Therefore, the
Recruiting Manager is responsible for prompting their candidate to review and accept the
contract.
The majority of candidates will have to give notice to their existing employer and, depending on
the role, there may be some delay between the candidate being appointed and starting in post.
It is important to maintain contact regularly with the new appointee, providing them with any
information that they need about RDC, their service, team and about their new role.
5.1 Agency workers
There may be occasions where RDC may require the services of temporary agency staff. This
should only be for short term, emergency requirements and not part of an ongoing workforce
solution. In those emergency situations, agency worker’s assignments can be arranged for a
maximum of 8 weeks. If the service has progressed a vacancy to recruitment with view to filling

Page 149

the position on a permanent basis through payroll, then an extension of up to a further 4 weeks
may be available.
If your service needs to utilise agency workers, you will need to gain authorisation from a
member of SMB in writing prior to making any requests. Once this has been confirmed please
contact Resourcing Solutions who will speak to you about your service needs and where
necessary, will negotiate terms, conditions and rates directly with agencies on your behalf.
Services must not contact agencies directly to arrange supply.
5.2 Further Support
If you have any further questions about the recruitment process or need some advice, you can
contact Employment Support Service Recruitment Team on: 01609 532190 or
employmentsupportservicerecruitment@northyorks.gov.uk
For hard to fill or specialist resourcing advice contact our professional recruitment advisers
Resourcing Solutions resourcingsolutions@northyorks.gov.uk or 01609 535585

Page 150

Appendix xx Recruitment Process Map for Recruiting Managers
Step 1: Recruiting managers should ensure they have completed the mandatory training
on Safer Recruitment on the Learning Zone

Step 2: If the role is a new position, a job description and job evaluation will need to be
completed. For all posts an Authorisation to Recruit Form (Appendix xx) needs to be
completed and submitted to Strategic Management Board, once this has been approved
you can proceed to recruitment.

Step 3: Plan your recruitment timeline, ensuring you have a date booked for interview and
all panel members confirmed before you released your advert. You should plan for the
following timescales;
Interview date (Determined by the time periods below)
Shortlisting to be at least 5 working days before the interview date, to provide Employment
Support Service time to send out interview invites. Shortlisting should not be more than 8
working days before interview date
Shortlisting should take place within 2 working days of closing date
The advert should run for at least 10 days but ideally 2 weeks which would allow for 2
weekends. The maximum time an advert should run would be 21 days.

Step 4: Write your advert ensuring it promotes the benefits of the role to the candidate and
doesn’t just list all the things YOU need from them. If you’d like help writing adverts there
are some template adverts on BOB, or you can contact Resourcing Solutions.

Step 5: Complete a Vacancy Media Order Form (appendix x) with all details of the vacancy
e.g. working hours, type of contract and the advert and submit this to Employment Support
Services Recruitment Team (ESSR) who are responsible for advertising.

Page 151

Step 6: Once your vacancy is live, ensure you share details amongst your networks,
encourage your teams to share and respond to candidate enquiries in a timely manner.

Step 7: The day after the closing date ESSR Team will forward anonymous applications to
you. Please shortlist within 2 working days, a template for shortlisting decision making is
provided in appendix xx, you may wish to use this to record your decision making. Please
complete and return the Notification of Shortlisting results form (appendix x) back to ESSR
who will return the full applications to you for shortlisted candidates and organise the
interviews. ESSR will send standard email communications inviting candidates to
interview. You’re encouraged to give candidates a call to congratulate them on being
shortlisted and advise them they will receive full invite details by email.

Step 8: It is the recruiting manager’s responsibility to arrange interview rooms or online
interview platforms, plan interview questions, brief panel members and set and make
arrangements for any necessary assessments. If your interviews are face to face you will
need to consider who will meet and greet them at reception and take copies of their
documents, this does not have to be a panel member and can be delegated to someone
else who is available to copy and verify the documents. Eligibility to Work in the UK checks
must be taken prior to start date, copies taken, verified as originals and dated. Details of
appropriate documentation if available in the Recruitment Guidance and Framework.

Step 9: Within 24 hours of the interview the Recruiting Manager should telephone the
favoured candidate and make a verbal conditional offer of employment. When they accept
please check their referees details with them and ask them to prompt their referees and to
look out for email confirmation of the conditional offer including a request to complete a
health declaration. As soon as the candidate accepts please complete and return a
Notification of Interview Results Form (Appendix xx) and send to ESSR and telephone the
unsuccessful candidates to notify them of the outcome. If you are not able to provide
feedback within the 24 hour period you should still contact unsuccessful candidates to
advise them of the outcome and offer to arrange a feedback time the following week.


Step 10: You must maintain regular weekly contact with your candidate up to their start
date, ideally by telephone to keep them engaged whilst the clearances are being obtained.
ESSR will forward copies of references to you as and when they are received. Once
ESSR notify you that all clearances are received you are responsible for contacting the
candidate to mutually agree a start date. Please notify ESSR of the start date as soon as
possible.

Page 152

Appendix x

This form is to be completed before any recruitment is undertaken.
Job Title
Department
Contract Length
Salary Band
DBS post? Y/N

No of Hours
Contract Type
Flexi Time
Annual Salary
No of vacancies

Y/N

Key Details
Has consideration been given to undertaking the post in a different way? E.g.
amalgamating existing roles, filling part time instead of full time etc? Please provide
detail of rationale;
Is the job description and person specification accurately reflective of the role?
What has this vacancy arisen?
Post holder
Post holder
resigned
retired

This is a new
post

Post vacant as
outcome of
restructure

Where is this being funded from?
If funding is not from central budget,
please detail where the funding is from,
including details of any specific funding
requirements i.e time limit?

Signature of Recruiting Manager
Name (sign and print):

Date:

Name of post-holders line manager (if different from above)

Page 153

Other – please
detail;

Signatures should be sought in the order listed below
Signature of Finance Representative (Senior Accountant or Head of
Finance only)
Name (sign & print):

Date:

Base Salary PA:
On-costs PA:
Total Spend PA:
Where is spend allocated from?
Additional information:

Signature of Head of HR
Name (sign & print):

Date:

Additional Info (to be completed by HR or Finance)
Dept Budget Code
Post Number

Page 154

Appendix x

Vacancy media order form
To be completed by responsible officer/manager, with a copy of the Job Description also attached to the email. Please
return to:

employmentsupportservicerecruitment@northyorks.gov.uk
Advert details – Please ensure you fill in all sections

Post Title:

Location:

Grade/Band/pay scale:

Salary:

Hours per week:

Contract type:

Internal only advert?

Yes / No

Closing date:

Interview date:

(Recommend Midnight on a Sunday)

(See planning an interview guidance on BOB)

Recruiting Manager:

Email Address:

Contact Number:

Resourcing Solutions referral required for Specialist advertising: Yes / No

Budget Code:

Hearing Test required:

Eye Test Required:

Driving Assessment Required:

If yes put in advert below

If yes put in advert below

If yes put in advert below

Weekend working:

Night Time working:

DBS required:

If yes put in advert below

If yes put in advert below

If yes put in advert below

Recruitment Leadership Approval Date:

Main text: (to include how to apply)
This vacancy is advertised by North Yorkshire County Council on behalf of Ryedale District Council.

Add your vacancy text here

Page 155

Appendix x
Template for Recording Shortlisting Decision Making
(retained by the recruiting manager for 6 months following interview date)
The criteria should be as defined on the person specification.
Measurement

AF

Priority (score to be weighted accordingly)

High = 3

Medium = 2

Low = 1

Rating

1 = Requires Training

2 = Satisfactory

3 = Good

0 = Unacceptable

Page 156

Criteria – Measurement
cross ref
person
spec:

AF
AF
AF
AF
AF

TOTALS

Priority

=

Application

Form

Candidates application ref number

4 = Excellent

UNSUCCESSFUL APPLICANTS (Completion optional)
Note: Please list the unsuccessful candidates below together with a narrative of the reason for not being short listed.
Reason Code:

Candidate
Ref No:

Qualifications

Reason Code:

Experience

Other (specify criteria no.)

Narrative:
(Explanation of reason for not being short listed)

Page 157
Number of additional pages

15

Appendix x

Notification of Shortlisting Results Form (Completion is essential)
*Please note that at least one member of the interview panel needs to have undergone the Recruitment and
Selection Training / Safer Recruitment Training*
Post Title:
Vacancy ID No:
Recruiting Manager Name:
Interview Date/s:
(Please provide 5 working days’ notice for the Recruitment Team to action)
Available Interview Time (From/To)
Duration of each interview
(mins)
Duration between interviews
Interview Location:
(Provide full address including postcode)

Candidates to be invited to interview: (Please note candidates will self-schedule between the times provided by
you so they can pick which time slot best suits them)
Candidate Number

Candidate Number

Candidate Number

Please confirm below any additional information for the candidate that needs to be provided in the invitation
to interview letter (e.g. tests, presentation topic):

(Alternatively, please attach any supporting documentation / wording / information to your email to be
provided with the invitation to interview)
Please email this form to employmentsupportservicerecruitment@northyorks.gov.uk
We will issue correspondence to shortlisted applicants via the email address stated on their
application and we will confirm the interview schedule to you, including sending you the full applications for
shortlisted applicants.
We will now reject all candidates that were not shortlisted.

16

Page 158

Appendix xx
Notification of Interview Results Form (NOIR) (Completion is essential)
Post Title:
Section:
Vacancy ID Number:
Candidate ID Number:
Successful Candidate Name:
Date of Birth:
Address:

Post code:
Telephone Number:
Email Address:
National Insurance Number:
(if available)

Post Information
Annual Starting Salary:

£

Grade:

SCP:

Hours per week:

Working Pattern:

Car Allowance:

Other Payments:

Contract status:

Established

Relief

Temporary

If Fixed Term please state end date:

Criminal convictions declared:
Continuous Local Government Service

17

Page 159

Fixed Term

Cost Centre/Budget Code:

Please tick to confirm you have checked original documents and attached the verified and dated copies of
these documents for the following;
Evidence of eligibility to work in the UK
(See notes below for eligibility)

Proof of qualifications/ registrations
(If applicable)

Completed identity check form
Confirming details of verification of documents
undertaken for DBS clearance (if applicable role)
Please confirm any other comments including any special conditions to be included in the offer letter / contract
of employment;

Please email this form to employmentsupportservicerecruitment@northyorks.gov.uk

Your conditional offer letter will be sent to the successful candidate and clearances will be
commenced, these will be sent to you upon receipt. Once you have received all clearances,
Recruitment will contact you to request a start date. It is the manager’s responsibility to inform
Employment Support Services of the agreed start date via email.
Please note: New starter information needs to be with Recruitment by the 05th of the month, this is to
guarantee they will be setup in time for your payroll. If this deadline is missed it is the responsibility
of the manager to make sure the employee is aware they will not be paid to the following month.

18

Page 160

Guidance for ID, Qualifications & DBS
ID – Eligibility to work in the UK:
Option 1 UK Passport – Scan/copy the photo page and any page that has relevant details
If the applicant does not have a UK passport, then go to option 2
If the applicant does not have a passport, then go to option 2
Option 2 For UK nationals: Full length Birth Certificate (with at least one named parent) and proof of
National Insurance (this needs to be an official document) – again both documents need to be
dated.
If the names on the ID documentation are different to what the candidate is currently known as we
would need a name linking document i.e. marriage certificate, deed poll, Decree Absolut.
If neither option is received then you would need to check the eligibility to work guidance to explore
alternative routes of obtaining sufficient ID.
Qualifications
Certified copies of qualifications, if applicable for the post or specified in the job description.
Top Tip: When using a scanner: Place a post it note on photocopier with ‘verified original on
xx/xx/xx and insert date’, ensuring that it does not hide any information on the document. This
records the date and verification without the need to copy/print and re-copy, saving paper and time.
E-DBS Managers Verification Form
The application form for DBS clearance is completed online by the applicant and should be done so
prior to interview. It is important you confirm with the applicant that they have done this and that you
complete the appropriate checks on the supporting documentary evidence. This should be provided
to you by the applicant at interview stage.
Important: If the candidate has not yet completed their DBS application, please advise them
to access the E-DBS application form via the link sent to them from ESS in their notification
of the interview email and not through the main E-DBS application centre on the NYCC
website (www.northyorks.gov.uk/dbs).
If this is wrongly completed it may cause delays. Please let the Recruitment team know if the
candidate hasn’t received the link to complete the application.
For the successful candidate, you will need to complete the E-DBS Managers Verification Form to
provide confirmation that you have undertaken the evidence checks. You will then need to submit
the verification form via the E-form on the link below
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/article/23289/DBS-information-for-managers

19

Page 161

Ryedale District Council
Safer Recruitment Policy
Date issued:

tbc

Section One; Policy and Procedure Overview
1. Policy Statement
Ryedale District Council (RDC) is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of
vulnerable groups including children, young people and adults and expects all staff and volunteers to
share this commitment.
The Council is committed to ensuring all recruitment is undertaken fairly, effectively and safely in
accordance with legislation. This policy provides a framework for recruiting managers to ensure that
employees are suitable for the role they have been engaged to do and that appropriate preemployment checks have been undertaken for employees.
Safeguarding is everybody’s responsibility and effective recruitment and selection, including rigorous
pre-employment checks, will help deter those who seek to harm vulnerable people from applying to
work in our organisation.
The policy aims to support RDC to recruit the number and quality of employees required to meet the
needs of the service within the available resources.
and consistently, in
line with employment legislation and the Council’s policies and procedures.
qualifications, skills and competencies required to do the job.
Selection will always be carried out without discrimination – this includes making reasonable
adjustments if needed to enable candidates to participate in the process without disadvantage.
-employment and safeguarding checks will be undertaken for both internal and
external appointments.
upon good practice and in line with legislation.
Manager’s will ensure that all employees are made aware of this policy and RDC’s commitment to it.
Section Two
Safer recruitment and selection procedures
2. Features of Safer Recruitment
• an open culture, no secrets
• a belief that it could happen here
• clear procedures for reporting concerns about the behaviour of staff and
volunteers towards children
• support for children and adults who do raise concerns and commitment to
take action on any concerns raised
• a code of conduct that makes clear what is acceptable and unacceptable
behaviour
• policies, procedures and code of conduct that are not just documents but
are used, with people made being accountable for following them
• Ensuring staff complete relevant, regular training
• good induction and use of probationary periods
20

Page 162

• a commitment from all who work there to safeguard and protect children and adults at risk
and to maintain an ongoing culture of vigilance
The Safer Recruitment Process
Stage 1 - Define the Role
• Produce a job description and person specification
• Include in these skills, abilities, experience, behaviours and for roles working with children
or adults at risk include attitudes/motivation towards working with these client groups
• Make clear the boundaries and expectations in terms of relationships with
Children and adults at risk (cross refer to Staff Code of Conduct)
Stage 2 - Advertising
• Include a clear statement regarding RDC’s commitment to a safeguarding culture and the
need for an Enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service check (DBS) disclosure, where
applicable
Stage 3 - Application Forms
Recruiting Managers should use the standard application form which requires a full and
complete job history, accounting for any gaps in employment
• Do not accept CVs as part of the application process, only fully completed
application forms should be considered
At shortlisting stage you will not receive any information relating to Criminal Convictions
made on an application. Following shortlisting you will receive a candidate’s full application
which will include information about whether any criminal convictions have been made,
where relevant. Where criminal convictions have been made you must continue to invite
the candidate to interview.
Stage 4 - Scrutinise Applications and Shortlist
• Ensure appropriate time is put aside for all members of the panel to shortlist
• Identify any gaps in the application or inconsistencies that you need to explore further
with candidates at interview e.g. assess their reasons for leaving previously posts,
suitability of their referees and gaps in employment.
Stage 5 Interviewing
It is good practice to;
• Use supplementary questions to probe any gaps or vagueness in answers
(these will be different for each candidate)
• Ensure questions ask candidates about their own experience rather than
asking hypothetical questions, questioning experience is more likely to highlight any
possible safeguarding concerns
During your selection activities you may hear things that would cause you
concern and which you would then need to explore further with the candidate.
These may include:
• Lack or no understanding or appreciation of children’s, young persons or adults at risk
needs or expectations
• They appear to want the role in order to meet their own needs rather than
the needs of children or adults at risk
• Vagueness about experiences and/or gaps on the application form or
unable to provide examples to support their answers
• A maverick – unwilling to follow rules, procedures or work with others
21

Page 163

Stage 6 – Pre-Appointment Checks
The following pre-appointment checks must be carried out:
• Documentation proving eligibility to work in UK brought to interview and checked
thoroughly (this is a statutory requirement)
• Original qualification certificates brought to interview if these are an essential mandatory
requirement defined in the person specification
• Confirmation of membership of any affiliated/registered bodies where this is a statutory
requirement
• Health Questionnaire issued to successful candidate to complete and return
• Disclosure and Barring Check undertaken for eligible posts, for the successful
candidate
• All documents brought to interview must be originals and should be
photocopied for all candidates
• Until all these checks have been carried out only a conditional offer of
employment can be made. The offer should clearly state which
satisfactory checks the appointment is subject to
Stage 7 Bring your new candidate on-board
Once you have made an offer of employment and whilst all pre-employment clearances are
being gained it is important you personally maintain regular contact with your candidate, a
weekly call is recommended.
Not only does this help you to maintain candidate engagement and reduce the risk of them
declining the offer, it also helps you to reinforce the organisations commitment to a safer
culture which can be discussed and/or documents shared.
Stage 8 Creating a Safer Culture
Managers should proactively promote a safer culture with their staff by;
- Completing a full induction with new staff, ensuring they are aware of RDC’s
commitment to Safeguarding
- Proving relevant training to staff, appropriate to their role
RDC will;
- publish our commitment to safeguarding, for example, by having posters in RDC’s
building and on the website
- Having a nominated member of staff responsible for Safeguarding
- Discussing safeguarding and child protection openly. Establish the belief that it can
happen here.

Section Three; DBS Checks
3. When are DBS checks required?
In line with national guidance, only posts that meet the eligibility criteria for DBS checks
can request a DBS check.
-

Only posts meeting the definition of regulated activity are eligible for an Enhanced
DBS check – a list of these posts in RDC is detailed in Appendix 1

22

Page 164

-

Only posts defined in the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act (ROA) 1974 (Exceptions)
Order 1975, are eligible for Standard DBS checks, a list of posts in RDC that meet
this are detailed in Appendix 1.

Posts that do not meet the eligibility criteria for a DBS check cannot apply for this as a
clearance. Managers who have posts that are not eligible for a DBS check but do involve
an element of work which may involve working with children, adults at risk or in an
environment within someone’s own home, should follow the Safer Recruitment process
detailed in the Policy. They should also complete a risk assessment to evidence the
measures they have put in place to safeguard service users from harm. An example risk
assessment is provided in Appendix 3.
Positive DBS checks
In instances where a Recruiting Manager is notified of a positive hit on a DBS they will
need to follow the RDC DBS Positive Disclosure Process, see Appendix 2.
A positive disclosure does not necessarily mean that an individual cannot work in the role
to which they have applied. The information provided on the DBS, combined with other
factors will be considered by a nominated DBS Decision Maker.
This document provides general guidance and does not cover all aspects of recruitment and
selection or other employment practices. It is intended to supplement and enhance RDC’s existing
recruitment and employment policy and processes. Add the link to the Recruitment Policy.
Appendix 1
Post
Senior Housing Specialist

Type of check
Enhanced (Child and Adult
workforce with Barred Lists)
Enhanced (Child and Adult
workforce with Barred Lists)
Enhanced (Child and Adult
workforce with Barred Lists)
Enhanced (Adult workforce
without Barred List check)
Enhanced (Adult workforce
without Barred List check)
Standard
Standard

Housing Support Assistants Derwent Lodge
(Including relief posts)
Housing Support Officers - Derwent Lodge
Supported Lettings Officer
Housing Pathway Coordinator
Solicitor (Required at entry to profession)
Chartered Accountant or Certified Accountant
(required at entry to the profession)
Appendix 2
Ryedale District Council

DBS Positive Disclosure Process (DBS posts only)
In instances where notification of a positive DBS is received for an applicant, RDC will follow the
following process to confirm if the individual is suitable to work in the role they have applied for.
-

Applicant is made a conditional offer of employment by the Manager, following interview
Manager returns Notification of Interview Results Form to ESS
ESS issue clearances, including DBS check, individual completes DBS form and Manager
completes Verification Form (both forms need to be completed before the DBS can proceed)
23

Page 165

-

-

-

-

ESS receive notification that a candidates DBS is positive and notify the Manager
Manager contacts candidate and arranges a convenient time to meet them to bring their DBS
certificate. Manager meets candidate to explain that the they have been notified that the DBS
has been returned positive and at this stage this needs to be considered alongside the role
they have applied for, to determine if the employment can proceed. Allow opportunity for
candidate to talk about their positive DBS.
Manager copies DBS certificate and makes notes to summarise if the applicant;
o Declared the conviction on their Application
o Declared the conviction at Interview
o Offered any further information about the offence when they brought in their DBS
certificate.
Manager should send the above notes, a copy of the DBS and a copy of the Application
Form to RDC’s nominated DBS Decision Maker HR Business Partner Emma Lawer
emma.lawer@northyorks.gov.uk
Emma Lawer will respond to the Manager to confirm if the employee has been passed or
rejected to work, recording the decision made on a relevant form.
Manager notifies ESS of the decision, returning a copy of the DBS and the decision made
and standard process applies to confirm or withdraw the offer of employment.

24

Page 166

Appendix 3: EXAMPLE RISK ASSESSMENT FORM
RISK ASSESSMENT DETAILS
Directorate
Team

Central Services
Housing Services

Title of risk assessment

RISK MATRIX & RATING

POTENTIAL OUTCOME
Catastrophic

Fatal injury/permanent disability
RIDDOR reportable Specified Injury/
Disease/Dangerous Occurrence
RIDDOR reportable Over 7 Day Injury

Major

Housing Technical Officer

Details of activity: supporting Senior Environmental Health Officer and
Housing Service Manager

Moderate

Location of activity

Insignificant

Ryedale House

Minor injury (requiring first aid)

Minor

LIKELIHOOD
Highly
More likely
likely
to occur
Likely
Possible
Unlikely

Minor injury

Remote

Less likely
to occur

Risk assessment log ref

Page 167

Other risk assessments
cross-referenced

Fire risk assessment

POTENTIAL OUTCOME
Catastrophic

Method statement reference
Date of assessment

Xx/xx/xxxx

Name of person carrying out
assessment

J Bloggs

Major
Moderate
Minor

Person carrying out
assessment’s signature
Name of employee(s)
consulted on activity

Insignificant
Remote

All

Unlikely

Possible

Likely

Highly Likely

LIKELIHOOD
Manager’s signature

Date
Action

Risk rating

J Bloggs

xx/xx/xxxx

HIGH

Urgently review/add controls & monitor (if Likely or Highly Likely – stop work, seek
competent advice, notify H&S Team)

Hazard and related
condition / activity
Eg slip – wet floor
from cleaning

Persons at risk
Eg employees,
pupils, customers,
contractors,
members of public
(include out of
hours use)

MEDIUM

Review/add controls (as far as reasonably practicable) & monitor

LOW

Monitor control measures

Existing control measures
Eg method statements, training, authorised users, competent
person, PPE – give specific details

Are any additional control measures
required? What are they?
Eg documented observational monitoring

Risk rating after existing
& additional control
measures
Potential Outcome x Likelihood =
Risk Rating (eg Minor x Unlikely =
Low)

Page 168

If High (Likely or Highly Likely) –
notify H&S Team

Employee
suitability to work
with vulnerable
clients
(Safeguarding)

Customer

Visiting clients in
their own home;

Employee

-

Customer

-

(Safeguarding risks
for both)

-

-

-

Ensure all Safer Recruitment measures are taken
for a strong, robust recruitment process
Manager to follow policy with regard to
probationary period, including holding regularly
review meetings with new employee
Thorough induction and completion of mandatory
training.
New employees to shadow current members of
staff for their first two visits to external premises.
For planned visits employees to contact customer
in advance and confirm date and time of visit by
phone and preferably confirmed by email.
Employee to wear RDC ID badge when attending
home visits.
Ensure employee takes steps to safely store all
personal data in line with GDPR and confidentiality

low

Travel to meetings
at external
locations

Member of staff
attending the
meetings

-

-

Employee to read and adhere to Staff Code of
Conduct
Employee driving licence has been checked. Staff
have planned their journey and understand time
required and checked ahead for any possible
disruptions.
Staff detail in their electronic outlook calendar
their planned visit details (excluding personal
details)

ACTION PLAN (insert additional rows if required)
Additional control measures to reduce risks so far as is reasonably practicable

Page 169

1

In new starter induction ensure measures in this risk assessment are covered

Staff regularly update their knowledge on
trips they are due to undertake.

To be actioned by:
Name
Jane Doe

Position
Team Leader

Low

Action completed:
Date

Signature

Date

20th July
2020

2
3
4

COMMENTS AND INFORMATION
Use this section to record how the risk assessment & control measures have been communicated to relevant people, and any other comments and information
Risks have been communicated to all staff via staff meetings and training. There is also signage prominently displayed which is also aimed at visitors. Final actions outstanding from fire
risk assessment to be carried out by the end of the calendar year.

Scheduled date of next review

Are there any changes to the activity since the last review?
Signature of manager

Minimum annually, or if there are any
significant changes, or following an
incident or near miss

Clarify that all the controls are still in place and how monitored on a regular basis

Six months from this review

No changes to activity, all controls are still in place

J Bloggs

Date of
review

xx/xx/xxxx

Page 170

Agenda Item 10g

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 12 NOVEMBER 2020

15

HR Policy Revision – Pay Policy

Considered – report of the Head of Human Resources.
Recommendation
The revised policy is agreed for implementation.
Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 171

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES

DATE:

12 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES
ANDREW ELLIS

TITLE OF REPORT:

HR POLICY REVISION – PAY POLICY

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To approve revised human resources policies

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended to Council that
(a) The revised policy is agreed for implementation.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

Many of the current HR policies are outdated and not fit for purpose. The revision of
these policies link into the aims and objectives of the People and Culture Plan.

3.2

Policies and procedures are living documents that should grow and adapt with an
organisation. Policy review and revision is a crucial part of an effective policy and
procedure management plan.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks identified with the revised policies. Outdated policies
however, can leave an organisation at risk. Old policies may fail to comply with new
laws and regulations and may not address new systems or technology, which can
result in inconsistent practices.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Full trade union consultation has taken place and the revised policies have been
approved by Strategic Management Board. Final ratification by Elected Members will
complete the consultation process prior to implementation.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 173

12 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

HR policies are a written description of rights and responsibilities of employers and
employees. If a policy is well developed and clearly written, it helps communication
with employees, clarifies expectations and makes sure that everyone is treated in a
consistent and fair way. These are all important factors for creating a desirable culture
for the organisation, and they minimise exposure to legal risk.

6.2

The Pay Policy policy has been revised in line with up to date legislation and
recommended best practice and is attached in full to this report as an appendix.
The policy relates to all staff on NJC terms and conditions, however does not relate to
staff who have transferred in to the organisation under TUPE (Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) regulations where they are protected on previous terms
and conditions or those staff on Chief Officer terms and conditions.

6.3

The policy gives information relating to tangible pay items. This is intended as an
overview of what is available and links to further detailed information.
The aim of the policy is to ensure that all staff are valued and receive fair remuneration
for their work and contribution to the Council. It will assist managers in dealing with pay
and grading issues in a fair and equitable way whilst having due regard to the
constraints exercised by the annual budget allocation and the details of the NJC and
Collective agreements.

6.4

The authority supports the principle of equality of opportunity in employment and is
committed to the fundamental principle that procedures to determine pay and
conditions of employment of all our employees do not discriminate unlawfully and are
free from bias. In the operation of this policy we will endeavour to ensure that staff
receive equal treatment irrespective of their age, gender, race, colour, ethnic origin,
family commitments, marital status, sexual orientation, disability religion or belief. In
order to achieve equitable pay, the authority will operate a pay system which is fair,
transparent and based on objective criteria.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
(a)

Financial
There are no additional financial implications on the Council from the policy
revision.

(b)

Legal
All pay related decisions will be taken in compliance with the provisions of The
Equality Act 2010, The Employment Rights Act 1996, The Employment
Relations Act 1999, The Employment Act 2002, The Employment Act 2008,
The Part-Time Workers (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment)
Regulations 2000, The Fixed Term Employees (Prevention of Less Favourable
Treatment) Regulations 2002, all as amended.

(c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 174

12 NOVEMBER 2020

None, other than as stated above
Name of Head of Service
Job Title
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Andrew Ellis
Head of HR

Marie Lomax, HR Project Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43395
marie.lomax@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Appendix A – Pay Policy
Appendix B – Policy Comparison Table

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 175

12 NOVEMBER 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Pay Policy

Document Control Sheet
Reference Number
Version Number
Document Author
Lead SMB Member
Ratifying Committee
Date Ratified
Date Policy Effective From
Next Review Date

HRPP
01
Senior HR Business Partner
Head of HR
Policy & Resources Committee, Council

Unless this copy has been taken directly from Ryedale District Council’s intranet,
there is no assurance that this is the most up to date version.
This policy supersedes all previous issues.

Page 1 of 14

HRPP01

Page 177

Table of Contents
Section
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
App A

Title
Introduction
National Collective Agreements
Pay Arrangements
Pay Awards
Pay and Grade Structure
Starting Pay
Pay Progression
Pay on Promotion/Transfer
Additional Duties/Honararia
Pay Slip
Tax Office Details
Pay Elements
What is pensionable pay?
Redundancy
Pay Protection
Sick Pay Scheme
Maternity Pay
Adoption Pay
Shared Parental Leave and Pay
Paternity Leave and Pay
Maternity Support Leave
Payment of Professional Fees
Travel and Subsistence Allowances
Employee Benefits
Overpayments and Underpayments
Recovery of Overpayments
Payments of Underpayments
Roles and Responsibilites
Pay and Grade Chart

Page
3
3
3
4
4
4
4
5
5
6
6
6
8
8
8
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
10
10
10
10
11
13

Page 2 of 14

HRPP01

Page 178

1.

Introduction

1.1

This policy relates to all staff on NJC terms and conditions, however does not relate
to staff who have transferred in to the organisation under TUPE (Transfer of
Undertakings (Protection of Employment) regulations where they are protected on
previous terms and conditions or those staff on Chief Officer terms and conditions.

1.2

The policy will give information relating to tangible pay items. This is intended as an
overview of what is available and links to further detailed information. You can also
talk to your manager or HR team for further advice. This guidance aims to be nondiscriminatory and has been written with equality and diversity in mind.

1.3

The aim of this document is to ensure that all staff are valued and receive fair
remuneration for their work and contribution to the Council. It will assist managers in
dealing with pay and grading issues in a fair and equitable way whilst having due
regard to the constraints exercised by the annual budget allocation and the details of
the NJC and Collective agreements.

1.4

The authority supports the principle of equality of opportunity in employment and is
committed to the fundamental principle that procedures to determine pay and
conditions of employment of all our employees do not discriminate unlawfully and are
free from bias. In the operation of this policy we will endeavour to ensure that staff
receive equal treatment irrespective of their age, gender, race, colour, ethnic origin,
family commitments, marital status, sexual orientation, disability religion or belief. In
order to achieve equitable pay, the authority will operate a pay system which is fair,
transparent and based on objective criteria.

1.5

All pay related decisions will be taken in compliance with the provisions of The
Equality Act 2010, The Employment Rights Act 1996, The Employment Relations Act
1999, The Employment Act 2002, The Employment Act 2008, The Part-Time
Workers (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000, The Fixed
Term Employees (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2002, all
as amended.

2.

National Collective Agreements

2.1

Pay will depend on employee terms and conditions, which are derived from the NJC
Green Book.

2.1

Ryedale District Council recognise Unison for local bargaining and collective
agreement. Ryedale District Council does not recognise any other trade unions.

3.

Pay Arrangements

3.1

Staff are paid at monthly intervals on the 23rd of each month by credit transfer. If the
23rd is a weekend or public holiday, staff are paid on the last working day prior to this
date. Pay is one twelfth of the annual gross salary less NI, tax and pension.

3.2

Staff employed on part-time contracts will be paid on a pro-rota basic to equivalent
full-time posts unless specified provisions apply to the contrary.

Page 3 of 14

HRPP01

Page 179

4.

Pay Awards

4.1

The national pay award confirmed by the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local
Government Services is negotiated on an annual basis, which may or may not result
in a change. It applies to all staff on NJC terms and conditions, irrespective of the
spinal column point range indicated on the annual circular relating to pay scales and
allowances. These are implemented with effect from April.

5.

Pay and Grade Structures

5.1

Ryedale District Council have implemented a pay structure which corresponds to a
Job Evaluation score range, and uses national NJC spine column points (SCP)
together with extended local pay points beyond the national pay spine.

5.2

The pay structure comprises of 10 grades of between 3 and 6 pay points, as set out
in Appendix A. Grade 1 commences at SCP 3, currently above the Voluntary Living
Wage rate. Grade 10 uses SCP 42 and 43 from the national NJC pay spine plus an
additional 4 locally negotiated pay points.

5.3

Those posts above a grade 10 are locally agreed SCP points, which are still subject
to collectively agreed pay awards through NJC collective bargaining.

5.4

Ryedale District Council uses an equitable and transparent job evaluation process.
Further information about the scheme is available from HR.

6.

Starting Pay

6.1

New appointments will normally be made at the minimum of the relevant grade for
the post. Under exceptional circumstances, and where there are compelling and
evidenced reasons to support the decision, a new employee may be appointed to a
higher increment. Exceptional reasons may include the need to secure the best
candidate and / or having regard to the knowledge, skills and competencies of the
individual as well as their current and previous salary levels.

6.2

All requests to appoint above the minimum of the grade must be discussed with HR
and agreed by the relevant Head of Service before any salary offer is made to the
candidate.

7.

Pay Progression Arrangements

7.1

Increments will be paid on 1st April each year until the maximum of the level is
reached subject to the following:
(a)

In exceptional circumstances, increments may be accelerated within the
grade at the discretion of the authority on the grounds of special merit or
ability, subject to the maximum of the level not being exceeded in accordance
with Head of Service delegation. This will only occur after careful
consideration of equal pay requirements, consultation with Human Resources
and SMB approval.

(b)

Employees with less than six months’ service in the grade by 1st April shall be
granted their first increment six months from the actual date of their
appointment, promotion or re-grading. All future increments will then be paid
on 1 April.

Page 4 of 14

HRPP01

Page 180

8.

Pay on Promotion or Transfer

8.1

Move to a new post at the same level
Where an employee moves to a new permanent post at the same level, they will
normally be appointed on the same salary point and retain the incremental date
(where this is relevant) from their original post.

8.2

Pay on promotion
Where an employee receives a promotion they will normally be appointed on the
minimum point for the new post subject to them receiving a minimum of one
increment above their current spinal point in their pre-promotion post.
All requests to appoint above the minimum of the level must be agreed by the
relevant Head of Service, following advice from HR, before any salary offer is made.

9.

Additional Duties/Honoraria

9.1

There may be occasions when an employee is asked to carry out additional duties at
a higher level to those of their substantive post for a period of time. In such
circumstances an additional payment may be made in line with the following:
(a)

A temporary acting up payment may be made where an employee agrees to:
Temporarily undertake all of the duties and responsibilities of a higher graded
post in circumstances where a more senior employee is absent from their post
for a significant amount of time or where the post is vacant for various
reasons and it takes a considerable time to appoint to.

(b)

A temporary honoraria payment may be made where an employee agrees to:
Temporarily undertake some specific additional duties and responsibilities of a
higher graded post, or to temporarily undertake project work of a specific
nature, which significantly alters the level of responsibility.
Honorariums must be discussed with HR to ensure consistency of approach
within the organisation.

9.2

Advice and guidance must be sought from Human Resources and an evaluation of
the duties undertaken in order to establish whether the temporary duties are
commensurate with the existing grade of the post or are at a higher level. If the
temporary duties are evaluated at a higher level a temporary grade will be
recommended. Head of Service approval will also be required.

9.3

Where it is deemed the temporary duties are commensurate with the existing grade
of the post, and is of a broadly similar kind, it is a reasonable management request
that those duties are allocated without additional payment, taking into consideration
existing workload.

9.4

Any additional payments must be properly considered and implemented on a
consistent basis.

9.5

Where changes to the job are likely to be permanent the post should be re-evaluated
under the Council’s Job Evaluation Scheme and a revised job description must be
established as appropriate.
Page 5 of 14

HRPP01

Page 181

10.

Your Pay Slip

10.1

All staff will be provided with an electronic payslip on a monthly basis which is
accessible through MyView. This outlines the pay method, annual salary, tax
period/payslip date, payments received in the pay period, units/hours/sessions, the
rate applied, total gross, deductions (statutory and voluntary), accumulated amounts
in the tax year to date, net payment.

11.

Tax Office Details

11.1

If you have a query about your personal tax code and need to contact HM Revenue &
Customs (HMRC) the following information may be useful:
Address: HM Revenue & Customs, PO Box. 1970, Liverpool L75 1WX
Telephone Number: 0845 3000627
You should quote your national insurance number and the council’s tax office
reference number: 585/NY16346 when making contact.

12.

Pay Elements

Type of Pay
Basic Pay

Overtime and
Additional
Hours

Work on
Public
Holidays

Explanation
 This is the salary for the job as determined through
the job evaluation process and based on
individuals working a 37-hour week. Part-time
employees will receive a pro-rota salary.
 Employees at Grades 1 to 5 who work overtime
beyond the full time working week will be paid for
those hours at 1.3 times the basic hourly rate from
1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. From 1 April 2021
any overtime worked will be paid at plain time rate.
 Part time employees of any grade who agree to
work additional hours up to a maximum full time
working week (37 hours) will be paid for those
additional hours at plain time rate.
 Employees at Grade 6-10 should manage any
additional hours working within the flexitime
scheme.
 Time off in lieu (TOIL) should only be accumulated
with prior agreement of the line manager following
authorisation from the Head of Service. In
exceptional circumstances and when authorised in
advance for a specific short period, additional hours
can be paid at plain time rate.
 No more than 48 hours per week should be worked
due to Working Time Directive regulations unless
an opt out form has been completed.
 Additional hours above contracted hours should
only be worked in exceptional circumstances and
will be subject to scrutiny by Head of Service and
SMB.
 An employee whose shift falls on a Bank Holiday
and who works the shift will be paid at plain time
rate as usual. In addition, this Bank holiday leave

Authorised
By
Appointing
Manager

Line Manager

Line Manager

Page 6 of 14

HRPP01

Page 182




Weekend
Working
Night
Working





Weekend and
Night
Working



Standby Duty
and on Call
Payments










Market
Supplements




First Aid
Allowance



Legionella /
Asbestos
Allowance



entitlement will need to be booked and taken at
another time.
As a minimum employee who work on Christmas
Day, Boxing Day or New Year’s Day will receive a
£100 ‘Thank You’ payment for each day worked.
As a minimum employee who work on 1 of the
other Bank Holidays will receive a £50 ‘Thank You’
Payment for each day worked.
The above applies to grades 1-10 inclusive.
Regular weekend workers will be paid an additional
5% on all contracted hours.
Night working refers to a full minimum 8 hour shift
between 10pm and 6am. Regular night workers will
be paid an additional 10% on all contracted hours.
Regular weekend and night workers will be paid an
additional 15% on all contracted hours.
This allowance will be removed if an employee no
longer works weekends or nights on a regular
basis.
Standby duty is allocated on a rota or other formal
basis.
An employee is obliged to be available for duty for
a specified period in their off duty hours and may
be asked to work for a variable amount of time.
A single period of standby duty is normally 5pm to
8.30am, Monday to Sunday and 8.30am to 5pm on
Saturday and Sunday.
Payment for a single standby duty is £16, or £144
for a full week of 9 duties.
Payments for out of hours working will be a
minimum of two hours pay. Subsequent contacts or
call outs will be covered by the initial payment, or
actual hours worked rounded to the nearest half
hour if it extends beyond 2 hours. This can be paid
at plain rate or taken as TOIL.
The supplement is paid as a monthly allowance
and is not subject to inflationary uplift.
Salary maximum must be below the stated market
median. Used to address recruitment and retention
issues, where pay is lower than the market rate for
the occupational group.
Allowance of £8.67 per month for qualified First
Aiders within the organisation to undertake
additional duties as and when required.
Allowance for legionella and asbestos
responsibility an amount of £14.00 per hour is
payable for employees who carry out this additional
activity once a month where this is not an integral
part of the job description of the post.

Line Manager
Line Manager

Line Manager

Line Manager

Strategic
Management
Board

Strategic
Management
Board
Strategic
Management
Board

Page 7 of 14

HRPP01

Page 183

13.

What is Pensionable Pay?

Pensionable
Salary, wages and fees
Detriment or protected pay
Market supplement payment
Additional contribution payment

Acting up payment
Honoraria payments for additional
temporary duties
Accelerated incremental progression
Standby allowance
Additional hours
Night working payment
Weekend working payment
On call payment
First aid payment
Work on public holiday payment
Legionella/asbestos allowance
Maternity/paternity KIT pay
Thank you payment

Non-pensionable
Recruitment payments
Retention payments
Expenses (e.g. travel, subsistence)
Any payment ‘representing money value for
provision of vehicle or paid in lieu’ (e.g.
mileage payments of similar payments to
cover expenses)
Cycle allowance

13.1

‘Additional hours’ includes all hours worked above the normal contractual hours of
the individual employee. Also for any relief staff, without guaranteed hours, all hours
worked are pensionable.

13.2

For people on variable hours’ contracts, e.g. between 5 and 15 hours per week,
pensionable pay will apply to all hours worked. Also, with annualised hours’
contracts, pensionable pay will be payable on all hours worked.

14.

Redundancy

14.1

Employees who have at least two years’ continuous service at the date of termination
of employment, may be entitled to a redundancy payment in accordance with the
redundancy policy applicable to NJC terms and conditions. This service may be as a
result of an established contract, a number of continuous fixed-term contracts or may
result from an employee’s earlier unbroken service with an associated employer
under the Redundancy Payments Order 1999 and Amendments.

14.2

For further details, please refer to the policy on redundancy

15.

Pay Protection

15.1

Pay protection may be applied for a variety of reasons and is applicable for a period
of 12 months which is line with the NJC Green Book for those under NJC terms and
conditions. For further details in relation to redeployment, please refer to the
Managing Organisational Change policy.

Page 8 of 14

HRPP01

Page 184

16.

Sick Pay Scheme

16.1. The Council’s occupational sick pay arrangements are designed to ensure that when
staff become unwell, they do not need to worry about the immediate financial impact
of their illness.
16.2

Employees are supported by the benefits of a generous sickness scheme if they are
too ill to work. This is not an ‘entitlement’ but a benefit to be used in appropriate
circumstances. Within this scheme, Ryedale District Council also complies with
payments under the statutory sick pay scheme.
Statutory Sick Pay (SSP) - £95.85 per week

16.3

A qualifying condition is that the employee should have earned at least the Lower
Earnings Limit (LEL) of £120 per week during the eight week’s average earnings.

Length of Service
During 1st year of service

Sick Pay
1 months full pay and (after completing 4
months service) 2 months half pay
2 months full pay and 2 months half pay
4 months full pay and 4 months half pay
5 months full pay and 5 months half pay
6 months full pay and 6 months half pay

During 2nd year of service
During 3rd year of service
During 4th and 5th years of service
After 5 years of service
17.

Maternity Pay

17.1

For full details please see the Parental Leave and Pay – Policy, Guidance and
Procedure Document.

18.

Adoption Pay

18.1

For full details please see the Parental Leave and Pay – Policy, Guidance and
Procedure Document.

19.

Shared Parental Leave and Pay

19.1

For full details please see the Parental Leave and Pay – Policy, Guidance and
Procedure Document.

20.

Paternity Leave and Pay

20.1

For full details please see the Parental Leave and Pay – Policy, Guidance and
Procedure Document.

21.

Maternity Support Leave

21.1

For full details please see the Parental Leave and Pay – Policy, Guidance and
Procedure Document.

22.

Professional Fees

22.1

The Council does not usually pay or reimburse professional / registration fees.
Advice should be sought from HR where exceptions may apply.

23.

Travel and Subsistence Expenses

23.1

The Council’s Travel and Subsistence Policy seeks to ensure that no employees will
be financially disadvantaged whilst undertaking duties which take them from their
Page 9 of 14

HRPP01

Page 185

normal place of work. Employees will be reimbursed additional travelling or
subsistence expenses incurred in the course of their work in accordance with this
policy, subject to evidence of expenditure being produced. Details of the current rates
for travel and subsistence expenses can be found on the intranet.
24.

Employee Benefits
24.1 In additional to an employee’s salary, the Council is able to offer a
comprehensive range of benefits designed to enhance the work / life balance of our
employees. The current benefits include:









The Local Government Pension Scheme
Generous annual leave entitlements in addition to bank holiday entitlement
The option to buy and sell annual leave
Flexible working arrangements
Employee wellbeing schemes
Cycle-to-work scheme
Technology purchase scheme
Access to a comprehensive discount platform for goods and services

25.

Overpayments and Underpayments

25.1

The authority acknowledges that occasionally errors occur and employees are either
under or overpaid salary, allowances or benefits (including salary sacrifice benefits).
As public monies are involved, the Authority has a responsibility to ensure that staff
are paid correctly for the work undertaken, but where overpayments are made the
Authority has a duty to seek recovery. Where an employee has a reasonable belief
that the overpayment made was money to which they were entitled, the employee
should discuss this with their line manager and agree how it should be raised with
employment support services.

25.2

Under Section 14 of the Employment Rights Act 1996 (the Act), the Authority has the
opportunity to recover any overpayment of wages made to an employee through
deductions from future wages without this being considered to be an unauthorised
deduction, contrary to Section 13 of the Act. This also applies to any overpayment of
expenses incurred by the employee in carrying out their employment.

26.

Recovery of Overpayments

26.1

An overpayment of salary to an employee normally arises as the result of either an
error or as a result of incorrect, insufficient or late notification of a change to the
individual’s circumstances or contract of employment.

26.2

Ryedale District Council will always take steps to recover overpayments. Recovery of
any identified overpayment will be undertaken wherever possible with the cooperation of the employee; however, Ryedale District Council is entitled to take the
final decision on recovery arrangements. Ryedale District Council has a duty to
recover public monies and only in very exceptional circumstances will overpayments
be written off, with Strategic Management Board approval. The employing service
area will be responsible for the cost of the overpayment.

27.

Payment of Underpayments

27.1

Where an underpayment is identified (by an employee, manager or employment
support services) the underpayment will be rectified in the next available pay run. In
Page 10 of 14

HRPP01

Page 186

exceptional circumstances, employment support services can arrange for an interim
payment to be made to the employee. Discussions will be required between the
employee and their line manager in relation to the impact of the shortfall in the net
pay. As a guide a significant shortfall in net pay may be deemed to be a shortfall of
greater than 25 per cent of the previous month’s net pay. As a guide, a significant
shortfall in net pay may be deemed to be a shortfall of greater than 25 per cent of the
previous month’s net pay however any expression of concern will be considered on
merit.
27.2

An interim payment will not be made where the shortfall in pay is caused by the
employee submitting timesheets or travel claims to payroll after the published
deadlines.

27.3

This policy applies to all employees equally and does not discriminate positively or
negatively between protected characteristics.

28.

Roles and Responsibilities

28.1

Heads of Services are responsible for:






28.2

Overall oversight of their service area in relation to pay, overtime and employee
expenditure
Ensuring their service is run within budget, their establishment is accurate and
reflective of business need
Ensuring that there is consistency and transparency of pay across the organisation
Ensuring compliance within their area including accessing HR for advice where
appropriate
Ensuring compliance with the Collective Agreement
Managers are responsible for:
 Ensuring that pay-related records or expenses claims authorised by them are
accurate and reflect the hours actually worked.
 Ensuring that absence records are updated as soon as possible to prevent
overpayments occurring from sick pay entitlements reducing. This includes the
return to work date to ensure full salary payment is reinstated.
 Ensuring that employment support services are notified of any change in
circumstances which impact upon pay or benefits promptly and in accordance with
payroll cut-off dates normally 11th of the month.
 Alerting employment support services where they become aware of an under or
overpayment.

28.3

Employees are responsible for:
 Providing fit notes or self-certifications in a timely manner to prevent overpayment.
 Accurately claiming authorised hours worked, travel or subsistence in accordance
with relevant policy and by the 11th of the month.
 Checking their payslip monthly and immediately alerting employment support
services and their manager of any pay discrepancy, over/underpayment.
 Seeking clarification if they are unsure of the amount or any payments/deductions
indicated on their payslip.
 Informing employment support services and their manager of any
discrepancy/missed payments for their salary sacrifice pay deductions.
Page 11 of 14

HRPP01

Page 187

28.4

Employment Support Services (ESS - our payroll providers) are responsible for:
 The accurate and timely processing of all pay and expense related
instructions/claims submitted to them.
 Advising employees when their sickness pay entitlement is due to reduce.
 Ensuring that once overpayments are highlighted ESS write to the employee
giving details of the gross and net pay amounts, and copying the manager in.
Wherever possible a repayment arrangement will be agreed before any
repayment is processed and in advance of pay day.
 Ensuring that overpayments are recovered in line with finance department
procedures.
 Ensuring that underpayment are rectified as soon as possible.

Related Policies



Travel and Subsistence
Collective Agreement

Page 12 of 14

HRPP01

Page 188

APPENDIX A
Pay and Grading Scale

SCP

April 20
Salary

Hrly

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38

£18,562
£18,933
£19,312
£19,698
£20,092
£20,493
£20,903
£21,322
£21,748
£22,183
£22,627
£23,080
£23,541
£24,012
£24,491
£24,982
£25,481
£25,991
£26,511
£27,041
£27,741
£28,672
£29,577
£30,451
£31,346
£32,234
£32,910
£33,782
£34,728
£35,745
£36,922
£37,890
£38,890
£39,880
£40,876
£41,881

£9.62
£9.81
£10.01
£10.21
£10.41
£10.62
£10.83
£11.05
£11.27
£11.50
£11.73
£11.96
£12.20
£12.45
£12.69
£12.95
£13.21
£13.47
£13.74
£14.02
£14.38
£14.86
£15.33
£15.78
£16.25
£16.71
£17.06
£17.51
£18.00
£18.53
£19.14
£19.64
£20.16
£20.67
£21.19
£21.71

Grade 2020

Grade 1
Grade 2

Grade 3

Grade 4

Grade 5

Grade 6

Grade 7

Grade 8

Grade 9
Page 13 of 14

HRPP01

Page 189

APPENDIX A

39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55

£42,821
£43,857
£44,863
£45,859
£46,845

£22.20
£22.73
£23.25
£23.77
£24.28

£47,822
£48,923
£50,046
£51,198
£52,374
£53,579
£54,811
£56,074
£57,362
£58,682
£60,033
£61,413

£24.79
£25.36
£25.94
£26.54
£27.15
£27.77
£28.41
£29.06
£29.73
£30.42
£31.12
£31.83

Grade
10

Grade
11

Grade
12

Page 14 of 14

HRPP01

Page 190

Comparison Table – Pay Policy
Key changes
Old Policy
Combined pay policy and pay statement

7 pages including appendices
Misses some key elements of what should be
contained in both documents
Contains details about Officer pay and
definitions as to who is covered by the
statement (this will be contained in the future
pay statement)

Contains details about Chief Officer pay (this
will be contained in the future pay statement)

Contains details about the lowest paid staff in
RDC and the relationship between this and
Chief Officer pay (this will be contained in the
future pay statement)
The ‘pay statement’ is referenced throughout
this document despite it being called the pay
policy

New Policy
Separates out a pay policy and a pay statement
as two different documents. This is the pay
policy. The pay statement is to follow.
14 pages including appendices
Heavily consulted the LGA guidance ‘Pay Policy
and practice in local authorities – a guide of
Councillors’ as to what the policy should contain
Includes information on the collective
agreement, basic pay details (how and when
employees are paid), pay awards, pay structure,
starting pay, pay progression, pay on
promotion/transfer, additional
duties/honoraria, pay slip, contact details of the
tax office,
Includes a table detailing various pay elements,
such as basic pay, overtime/additional hours,
bank holiday working, weekend and night
working, standby and on call, market
supplements, first aid allowance,
legionella/asbestos allowance
Includes a table detailing what is pensionable
and non-pensionable pay

Makes reference to redundancy, pay
protection, sick pay, maternity pay, adoption,
shared parental leave, maternity support leave,
travel and subsistence. Further details of these
are contained in different policies. The pay
policy acknowledges that these are all elements
of employee pay under the pay policy.
Reference to professional fees and employee
benefits
Contains information about over and
underpayments and recovery/payments of such
Further section detailing responsibilities of
Heads of Service, Managers, Employees and
Employment Support Services (ESS – Payroll) in
matters relating to pay

Page 191

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10h

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 12 NOVEMBER 2020

16

Localisation of Council Tax Support 2021/2022 Scheme

Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Councillor Clark proposed and Councillor J Andrews seconded the following amendment:
Add ‘apart from increased discount for families with 3 or more children’ to recommendation (i)
Resolved
Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
4 For
5 Against
1 Abstention
Recommendation
(i)
(ii)

a Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 2021/2022 which is unchanged from
2020/2021; and
to authorise the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Chairman of Policy and
Resources Committee to undertake the necessary consultation work to design a
scheme for 2022/2023, in light of the experience in previous years, to be presented to
Policy and Resources Committee in November 2021.

Voting record
6 For
3 Abstentions

Council

Page 193

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

12 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

SECTION 151 OFFICER
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

LOCALISATION OF COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT
2021/2022 SCHEME

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This reports seeks approval of the final scheme for 2021/2022. There are no
changes proposed to the scheme which has operated in 2020/2021.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That members recommend to Council
(i)
a Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 2021/2022 which is unchanged from
2020/2021; and
(ii)
to authorise the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Chairman of Policy
and Resources Committee to undertake the necessary consultation work to
design a scheme for 2022/2023, in light of the experience in previous years, to
be presented to Policy and Resources Committee in November 2021.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

The Council must approve a scheme for 2021/2022.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks in approving the scheme as recommended

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Council will need to approve a Local Scheme for Council Tax Support (CTS).

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 195

12 NOVEMBER 2020

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The current Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS) is an Income Banded Scheme to help
residents on low incomes and the most vulnerable to pay their Council Tax bill.

6.2

The current scheme provides that all working age customers can receive a maximum
award of either 100%, 75%, 50%, 25% or 0% towards their Council Tax bill.

6.3

The scheme affects all precepting authorities (District Councils, County Councils, Fire
Authorities, Police Authorities and Parish Councils) through the Council Tax Base
(CTB) which is reduced by the cost of the scheme.

6.4

The following table sets out the estimated claimant breakdown for 2020/2021:
Claimant Type
1. Pensionable
2. Passported
3. Single
4. Couple
5. Family + 1
6. Family + 2

Number
1466
374
577
96
258
397
3168

Annual Cost
£1696k
£475k
£503k
£104k
£240k
£400k
£3418k

% total spend
49%
14%
15%
3%
7%
12%

6.5

The Council must now consider a scheme for 2021/2022.

6.6

Ryedale District Council – Proposed Council Tax Support Scheme - Income Banded
Scheme 2021/2022, the current income bands will be increased in line with the rate
of CPI (Consumer Price Index) which is currently 1%.

Council
Tax
Reduction
Level
Band
100%
Band
75%
Band
50%
Band
25%

6.7

Passported

A

–

B

–

Relevant
Benefit
N/A

C –

N/A

D –

N/A

Single
£

0.00 to
111.00
111.01 to
152.00
152.01 to
202.00
202.01 to
253.00

Couples
£

0.00 to
162.00
162.01 to
202.00
202.01 to
253.00
253.01 to
303.00

Family
with one
Child
£
0.00 to
212.00
212.01 to
253.00
253.01 to
293.00
293.01 to
343.00

Family
with two or
more
Children
£
0.00 to
263.00
263.01 to
303.00
303.01 to
343.00
343.01 to
384.00

The 2021/2022 scheme would continue to deliver a number of benefits to the residents
of the District.
(a) It will continue to provide a simpler scheme which can be easily understood by all
applicants;
(b) It will continue to support the most vulnerable within the district;
(c) It will continue to save significant increases in administration costs due the
introduction and increase uptake of Universal Credit;
(d) It will continue to prevent multiple changes to monthly instalments which in turn

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 196

12 NOVEMBER 2020

prevents applicants receiving multiple Council Tax demand notices throughout the
year.
(e) It will continue to deal with large volumes of claims received from Universal Credit
in an effective and timely manner.
(f) It will reduce Council Tax arrears
(g) The most vulnerable aren’t affected

6.8

For 2021/2022, year 9, there is again a mixed picture of approaches from Local
Authorities. Proposed 2021-2022 schemes within the North Yorkshire Districts are as
follows:

Craven
Hambleton
Harrogate
Richmondshire
Ryedale
Scarborough
Selby
York

2021/2022
10%
Banded scheme 90%
0%
15%
Banded scheme 100%
12.5%
Banded scheme 100%
22.5%

2020/2021
10%
Banded scheme 90%
0%
15%
Banded scheme 100%
12.5%
Banded scheme 100%
22.5%

6.9

Those with the greater cuts have generally seen the greatest impact on collection rates
and increased administrative costs, as well as the impact on claimants. The billing
authority (RDC) alone bears these increased administrative costs.

6.10

Sixty Three Local Authorities nationally introduced an Income Banded Council Tax
Support Scheme with effect from April 2020. It is the expected that this number will
increase to over 100 Local Authorities with effect from April 2021.

6.11

The scheme for Pension Age Applicants is set by Government.

6.12

Proposals within this report set the scheme for 2021/2022 only. Authorities are
permitted to revise their scheme no more frequently than annually. A scheme for
2022/2023 will be considered during next year.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Any risk around the cost of the scheme is shared proportionally between the major
preceptors through the collection fund. If the scheme costs more than predicted
the collection fund may be into deficit and this would need resolving in the
2022/2023 budget.

b)

Legal
The scheme is a detailed legal document of the Council which will only require
minor amendment as a result of changes to legislation. The amendments over
which the Council has discretion are included in the report.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 197

12 NOVEMBER 2020

c)

Other
All other impact is covered in the report

Anton Hodge,
Section 151 Officer
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Marcus Lee – Revenues & Benefits Manager (Interim)
01653 600666 ext: 43210
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
I:\Council Tax Support\Ryedale Scheme 2020-2021\Scheme\Ryedale CTR Scheme 2020
Final.pdf

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 198

12 NOVEMBER 2020

Agenda Item 10i

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 12 NOVEMBER 2020

17

Treasury Management Annual Report 2019-20

Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Recommendation
Council is recommended to:
(i)

Note the annual treasury management report for 2019/20, with thanks to Officers; and

(ii)

Approve the actual 2019/20 prudential and treasury indicators in this report.

Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 199

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

12 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151) – ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003
to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual
prudential and treasury indicators for 2019/20. This report meets the requirements of
both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That Council is recommended to:
(i)

Note the annual treasury management report for 2019/20; and

(ii)

Approve the actual 2019/20 prudential and treasury indicators in this report.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

The Council has adopted the Code. A provision of the Code is that an annual review
report must be made to the Full Council relating to the treasury activities of the previous
year.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are significant risks when investing public funds especially with unknown
institutions. However, by the adoption of the CIPFA Code and a prudent investment
strategy these are minimised. The employment of Treasury Advisors also helps reduce
the risk.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 201

12 November 2020

5.1

The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in
Local Authorities and this report complies with the requirements under this code.

5.2

The Council uses the services of Link Asset Services – Treasury Solutions (Link) to
provide treasury management information and advice.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

During 2019/20 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council should
receive the following reports:




An annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 21 February 2019)
A mid year (minimum) treasury update report (Audit, Overview & Scrutiny
Committee 24 October 2019)
An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to
the strategy (this report).

6.2

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report is therefore important
in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities and
highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by Members.

6.3

This Council also confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to
give prior scrutiny to all the above treasury management reports by the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee before they were reported to the full Council.

6.4

This report summarises:







Capital activity during the year;
Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness (the Capital
Financing Requirement);
Reporting of the required prudential and treasury indicators;
Summary of interest rate movement in the year;
Detailed borrowing activity;
Detailed investment activity.

The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing 2019/20.
6.5

The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities may
either be:



Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant
impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or
If insufficient financing is available or a decision is taken not to apply resources,
the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 202

12 November 2020

6.6

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators. The
table below shows the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed.
2019/20
Actual (£)
Total Capital Expenditure

2018/19
Actual (£)

1,145,556

842,383

56,855
590,524
313,076
185,101

18,592
615,307
208,484
842,383

Resourced by:
Capital receipts
Capital grants and contributions
Reserves
S106 Commuted Sums
External Borrowing
Total

1,145,556

The Economy and Interest rates
6.7

The Council’s treasury advisors Link Asset Services – Treasury Solutions (Link)
summarised the key points associated with economic activity in 2019/20 as follows:
 the focus in the House of Commons was to agree a way forward for the UK
over Brexit;
 the general election in December, which gave the Conservative Party an overall
majority, enabled the UK to leave the EU on 31 January 2020;
 the uncertainties around Brexit, resulted in the MPC maintaining Bank Rate at
0.75% until March 2020 when two emergency cuts in Bank Rate from 0.75% to
0.25% and then to 0.10% were made as a result of the coronavirus outbreak.
These cuts were accompanied by an increase in quantitative easing (QE),
essentially the purchases of gilts (mainly) by the Bank of England of £200bn,
and
 the Government introduced various schemes to subsidise both employed and
self-employed jobs for three months while the country is locked down due to
the coronavirus outbreak. It also put in place a other measures to help
businesses access loans from their banks, (with the Government providing
guarantees to the banks against losses).

6.8

Deposit rates continued into the start of 2019/20 at previously depressed levels and
then fell sharply following the cut to base rate in March 2020.

Overall Treasury Position as at 31 March 2020
6.10

The Council’s opening and closing treasury position for the financial year was as
follows (excluding finance leases):
31 March 2020
£1.553m
£1.702m
-£0.149m
£26.208m
-£26.059m

Total Debt
CFR
Over/(Under) borrowing
Total Investments
Net Debt
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 203

31 March 2019
£1.592m
£1.865m
-£0.273m
£22.600m
-£22.327m
12 November 2020

The Strategy for 2019/20
6.11

The Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 was approved by members at full
Council on 21 February 2019.

6.12

The expectation for interest rates incorporated within the Annual Treasury
Management Strategy for 2019/20 was based on officers’ views at that time, prepared
with assistance from the Council's Treasury Management Advisor (Link Asset
Services) and supported by a selection of City forecasts.

6.13

The interest rates for the UK were expected to be as follows:
Bank Base Rate was expected to rise from 0.75% to 1.00%. It was not expected that
Bank Rate would increase again in 2019/20 as a result of the major uncertainty
surrounding Brexit.
PWLB Borrowing rates were forecast to rise gradually throughout the next three
years in all periods. Variable and short term rates were expected to be the cheaper
form of borrowing over the period.

6.14

Based on the above, the Strategy adopted by the Council for 2019/20 was as follows:
a)

Long Term Debt to Finance Capital Expenditure (borrowing strategy
2019/20)
2019/20 was expected to continue as a year of low bank interest rates, extending
the current opportunity for the Council to utilise an internal borrowing strategy.
Borrowing in advance of need within the constraints of the Prudential Code and
approved Prudential Indicators would only be considered in exceptional
circumstances.
Consideration would be given to financing capital expenditure by taking borrowing
from PWLB/money markets, but the key treasury strategy was to postpone
borrowing and maintain an under borrowed position to avoid the cost of holding
higher levels of investments and to reduce counterparty risk.
In considering this option however, day to day cash flow constraints and the loss
of longer term interest stability would also be taken into account together with the
possibility of having to replace the internal borrowing with external borrowing in a
subsequent year at higher interest rates.

b)

Investment of Surplus cash (investment strategy 2019/20)
The Council’s investment priorities are firstly the security of capital and secondly
the liquidity of its investments. The highest return would then be sought provided

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 204

12 November 2020

that proper levels of security and liquidity are achieved. The investment risk
appetite of the Council is low in order to give priority to the security of investments.

The Borrowing Requirement and Debt
6.13

The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is termed the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) (excluding borrowing by finance leases).
31 March 2019
Actual
£1.624m

Total CFR

31 March 2020
Budget
£1.589m

31 March 2020
Actual
£1.589m

Borrowing Rates in 2019/20
6.14

The movement in relevant UK market interest rates for the year was as follows:
a) For Bank Rate
Period

%

1 April 2019 – 10 March 2020

0.75

11 March 2020 – 18 March 2020

0.25

19 March 2020 – 31 March 2020

0.10

b) For PWLB rates (Inclusive of the 0.20% discount rate)
Range during
Year %

Start of Year
%

End of
Year %

Average in
Year %

1 Year

1.17 - 2.47

1.46

1.90

1.70

5 Years

0.99 - 2.48

1.55

1.96

1.98

10 Years

1.15 - 2.79

1.88

2.17

2.23

25 Years

1.73 - 3.25

2.41

2.65

2.76

50 Years

1.57 - 3.05

2.24

2.38

3.60

Item
Fixed Interest
Maturity

Borrowing Outturn for 2019/20
6.15

No new borrowing was undertaken during the year and scheduled repayments were
made. At the end of the financial year the debt portfolio was as follows:
Lender

Principal

Type

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 205

Interest Rate

Maturity
12 November 2020

PWLB
PWLB

£1.00m
£0.55m

Maturity
EIP

3.69%
2.99%

44 years
13 years

Investment Rates in 2019/20
6.16

Deposit rates continued into the start of 2019/20 at previously depressed levels and
then fell sharply following the cuts to base rate in March 2020.
Range
during Year

Start of
Year

End of
Year

Average
during
Year

%

%

%

%

7 day LIBID

0.00 – 0.58

0.56

0.00

0.53

1 month

0.11 – 0.61

0.60

0.12

0.56

3 month

0.26 – 0.72

0.72

0.47

0.63

6 month

0.31 – 0.83

0.83

0.60

0.70

1 year

0.39 – 0.98

0.94

0.74

0.80

Item

Investment Outturn for 2019/20
6.17

The Council’s investment policy is governed by MHCLG guidance, which has been
implemented in the Annual Investment Strategy approved by the Council on 21
February 2019. This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating
agencies supplemented by additional market data (such as rating outlooks, credit
default swaps, bank share prices etc).

6.18

The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy and the
Council had no liquidity difficulties.

6.19

The following table shows the result of the investment strategy undertaken by the
Council and the relative performance of the internally managed funds against the 7day LIBID uncompounded rate bench mark:
Average
Total
Investment
(£)
Internally Managed:
Temporary & On-Call
Investments
Fixed Term Deposits

6.19

Gross
Rate of
Return

Net
Rate of
Return

Benchmark
Return

£4.610m

0.65%

n/a

n/a

£23.450m

0.98%

n/a

0.53%

The interest received by the Council from investments in 2019/20 totalled £262k;

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 206

12 November 2020

this compares to an original estimate of £198k.
6.20

The Council's investment position is organised by the Finance Section in order to
ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities and security of investments.
Procedures and controls to achieve these objectives are well established both through
Member reporting detailed in the summary, and through officer activity detailed in the
Treasury Management Practices. At the beginning and the end of 2019/20 the
Council's investments position was as follows:
31 March
2020 (£)
Internally Managed Investments

6.21

31 March
2019 (£)

26,208,398

22,250,142

The maturity of the investment portfolio was as follows;
31 March
2020 (£)
On-call Investments
Fixed Term Deposits:
Repayable within 1 month
Repayable 1 month to 3 months
Repayable 3 months to 6 months
Repayable 6 months to 12 months
Repayable 12 months to 24 months
Total

6.22

4,708,398

350,142

1,000,000
2,900,000
13,600,00
4,000,000
0
26,208,398

1,000,000
6,400,000
10,500,000
4,000,000
0
22,250,142

Investments were placed with the following institutions:
31 March
2020 (£)

Type of Institution
UK Clearing Banks
Foreign Banks
Building Societies
Local Authorities
Total

6.23

31 March
2019 (£)

31 March
2019 (£)

9,208,398
17,000,000
26,208,398

4,475,142
3,000,000
3,000,000
11,500,000
22,250,142

Compliance with Treasury Limits
During the financial year the Council operated within the treasury limits and Prudential
Indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement (annex
B).

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The results of the investment strategy effect the funding of the capital programme.
b)

Legal
There are no legal implications within this report

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder, Climate Change)
There are no additional implications within this report.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 207

12 November 2020

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Michelle Oates – Senior Accountant
01653 600666 ext: 392
michelle.oates@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers: None

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 208

12 November 2020

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STATEMENT AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY REPORT- RISK
MATRIX – ANNEX A
Issue/Risk

Consequences if allowed
to happen

Page 209

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigation

Mitigated
Likelihood

Mitigated
Impact

The economic climate is still
unsettled, counterparty risk is
still a big issue. As a result
the Council have adopted a
stringent credit rating
methodology.
The number of investment
options is kept to a minimum.
Investments are normally
restricted to short term fixed
rate deposits or instant
access accounts.
This Strategy specifies the
type of instrument the
authority is prepared to invest
in and maximum term for
those investments

1

D

2

B

1

B

Credit risk - associated with
investing with financial institutions
that do not meet the credit rating
criteria.

Could mean loss of
principal sum and interest
accrued.

2

D

Market risk - Selection of wrong
type of investment for higher
return.

The poor performance of
the chosen investment.

2

B

Liquidity risk - Use of fixed term
deposits and / or instruments /
investments with low marketability
may mean a lack of liquidity

Unable to take advantage
of better investment
options. Funds are
unavailable to cover capital
spend.

1

B

Score
1
2
3
4
5

Likelihood
Very Low
Not Likely
Likely
Very Likely
Almost Certain

Score
A
B
C
D
E

Impact
Low
Minor
Medium
Major
Disaster

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX B
PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS
Prudential Indicators
2018/19
Actual

2019/20
Estimate

2019/20
Actual

£0.842m

£0.791m

£1.146m

-£22.317m

-£16,083m

-£26.208m

Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 March
(incl. leases)

£1.865m

£1.702m

£1.702m

Annual change in Capital Financing Requirement

-£0.23m

-£0.163m

-£0.163m

Capital Expenditure
Net borrowing requirement

Treasury Management Indicators
2018/19
Actual

2019/20
Original

2019/20
Actual

Authorised Limit for external debt borrowing
other long term liabilities
Total

N/a
N/a
N/a

£10.0m
£ 1.0m
£11.0m

N/a
N/a
N/a

Operational Boundary for external debt borrowing
other long term liabilities

N/a
N/a

N/a
N/a

Total

N/a

£5.0m
£0.4m
£5.4m

External debt

Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure
Net principal re fixed rate investments

[AH1][MO2]

N/a

£1.59m

£1.55m

£1.55m

N/a

100%

N/a

N/a

50%

N/a

N/a

£1.0m

N/a

Upper limit for variable rate exposure
Net principal re variable rate investments
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over
364 days
(per maturity date)

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 211

22 OCTOBER 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10j

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 12 NOVEMBER 2020

18

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring – Q2 2020/21

Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Recommendation
It is recommended that Council:
i)

Notes the contents of the report.

Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 213

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

12 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING – Q2
2020/21

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The revenue budget for 2020-21 was approved by Council on 20 February 2020. This
report and associated appendices present the financial performance against the
budget as at 30 September 2020.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended that Council:
i)

Notes the contents of the report.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To ensure that budget exceptions are brought to the attention of the Council in order
to approve remedial action where necessary.

4.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

4.1

The financial position and performance against budget is fundamental to delivery of
the Council’s Plan, achieving value for money and ensuring financial stability.

5.0

REPORT DETAILS

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 215

12 NOVEMBER 2020

General Fund (Appendix A) – Revenue Estimates
5.1

The forecast year-end position estimates a deficit of £1,610k. Further details are set
out below. Planned savings and efficiencies of £434k for the year, identified as part
of the 2020/21 budget setting process were built into the base budgets and are
reflected in the numbers below and appendix A. Most of the savings were identified
following the review of budgets to ensure that they more realistically reflected current
estimates, although £38k of efficiencies were identified as a target to reduce costs /
maximise income.
Covid-19 impact on Revenue Budget

5.2

Forecasts have been prepared using the latest information gathered for the Financial
impacts monitoring returns to MHCLG and the position reported here uses the
estimates for the full financial year as at the end of September.

5.3

Gross costs that will be incurred by the Council resulting from the Coronavirus
pandemic are estimated to be £2.7m as shown below. It is stressed that these are
estimated costs for the full year and therefore will almost certainly change as the
impact of a second full national lockdown takes effect. The list shows that actual
costs incurred to date were £879k.

£000s

Estimated
Full Year

Costs
to date

160
46
159
67
60
163
256
28
80
25
20
49
43
20
23
449
430
359
58
30
3
115
22

14
41
79
47
6
0
51
8
79
13
21
0
0
0
5
0
215
222
0
0
0
51
12

Housing - including
Homelessness
Leisure
Environmental Services
Finance and Corporate Costs
Lost investment income
Capital costs
Other staffing
PPE
Support to Businesses
Savings not achieved
Community work/shielding
Reopening High Streets safely
Council Tax Court Costs
Democratic Meetings
Other costs
Council Tax income lost
NNDR income lost
Car Park income
Planning Application Fees
Rental income
Pest Control income
Waste Collection income
Market income
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 216

12 NOVEMBER 2020

Lifeline income
Other income

5.4

14
15
2,695

12
1
879

The £2.695m is the estimated annual gross cost. The government has
provided some funding to assist with this. To date this has been confirmed as
the following £817k:

MHCLG grant 1
MHCLG grant 2
MHCLG grant 3
MHCLG grant 4
MHCLG New Burdens grant funding
Reopening High Streets Safely

5.5

28,859
551,775
82,872
100,000
3,750
49,266
816,522

In addition, the Council has provided £250k from reserves, plus £20k of it’s
normal grants budget to support these costs. Taking these into account, there
is a potential remaining funding gap of £1,608k as below:

Estimated Gross costs for full year
less
Government funding
Grants budget
Reserves

2,695k

817k
20k
250k

Funding Gap

1,608k

5.6

This £1,608k corresponds to the overall Q2 estimate of a £1,610k overspend
in the revenue budget, along with other variances highlighted at paragraph
5.12.

5.7

As the year progresses, our assumptions will be refined as the on-going
impacts become clearer. There is potential for additional compensation from
Central Government specifically for lost income (submissions were made in
early October), along with spreading the impact of Collection fund losses over
more than one year.

5.8

In September, the Council agreed that an amount from reserves will be
required to offset the net additional costs arising from COVID.

5.9

This remains the case and a review of the Council’s reserves and
requirement to earmark funds for Covid-19 will be carried out as part of the
2021-22 budget preparation.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 217

12 NOVEMBER 2020

5.10

Further details of the COVID costs estimated in this financial year are set out
below:































Housing - including Homelessness, this covers the costs of providing
temporary accommodation.
Leisure: this includes a supplier relief payment to current provider
Environmental Services: this includes additional staffing costs to
ensure Covid-safe working arrangements, additional cleaning costs for
public toilets, PPE, Vehicle Hire
Finance and Corporate Costs: includes bank charges due to additional
costs for quick payment to businesses, Initial and ongoing IT costs to
enable remote working and delay of savings expected in-year
Lost investment income
Capital costs: estimate is based on potential increased costs if work is
delayed. No costs incurred to date.
Other staffing: Customer Services, Senior Revenue officer, additional
initial costs. A further contingency for the full year has been estimated,
but has not been agreed
PPE
Support to Businesses membership of Federation of Small
Businesses and COVID grants to local organisations
Savings not achieved: this includes planned savings in services such
as Pest Control, Catering and Land Charges which have been
delayed.
Community work/shielding: Cost relating to item such as vulnerable
customer packs, residents leaflets, business packs, posters and signs.
Reopening High Streets safely: this is the amount of grant funded
although not yet committed
Council Tax Court Costs: No enforcement in year.
Democratic Meetings: additional costs to enable meetings to take
place without public attendance, including live-streaming
Other costs: estimate for non-collection of Housing Benefits
overpayments due to increased risk of bad debt - based on 20%
increase in irrecoverable debt per 3 months; software for new Council
Tax Hardship Scheme; costs to ensure the safe re-opening of Ryedale
Markets
Council Tax income lost
NNDR income lost
Car Park income
Planning Application Fees
Rental income
Pest Control income
Waste Collection income
Market income
Lifeline income
Other income

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 218

12 NOVEMBER 2020

5.11

The table below sets out the summary Q2 position, with details of forecast
variances included in Appendix A.
General Fund Account – Q2 2020/21

Net Revenue Budget
Settlement Funding RSG/NDR
Amount to be met from Council Tax
Council Tax
Collection Fund Deficit
Net Revenue Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

5.12

Budget
£000’s
8,813
(4,351)
4,462
(4,429)
(33)
0

Forecast
£000’s
10,307
(4,684)
5,623
(3,980)
(33)
1,610

Variance
£000’s
1,494
(334)
1,160
449
0
1,610

The main variances are:
Expenditure

-

All Employee-related costs (excluding consultants). Additional costs
relating measures that have been put in place around Covid-19 activities.
The final agreed pay award will add costs of approximately £7.5k above
budget.

-

Supplies and Services – The forecast deficit against supplies and services
is predominantly in relation to Covid-19.

-

Vehicles and Transport – Additional expenses due to Covid-19 measures
are forecast at £35k. Vehicle lease cost are expected to underspend by
£100k but this is partially offset by extra repair and hire costs of £40k.

-

Premises related – A forecast overspend of £3k is expected against public
conveniences due to Covid-19 requirements. In addition, extra costs of £47k
relating to the old Waste Transfer station depot are expected due to delays in
vacating the old premises.

Income
-

Fees and Charges – A shortfall of £555k is estimated again, relating to
Covid-19, most significantly being from Car Parking, along with Markets,
Commercial rents and Planning

-

Housing Benefits – Due to temporary hold on recovery, it is expected there
will be an increase in irrecoverable Housing Benefit overpayments, £17k

-

Investment Income – A shortfall in investment income of £60k is forecast as

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 219

12 NOVEMBER 2020

a result in a significant fall in the base rate following Covid-19 measures put in
place by Central Government.
-

Waste Collection & Recycling – £102k shortfall due to the combined impact
of lost income, primarily in relation to commercial waste collections. This is
partially offset by increases in green waste and recycling tonnages resulting
from changes in activity during Covid lock-down and expected recovery.

Capital Programme

5.13

The current approved programme of £5.353m is forecast to underspend by around
£2.3m as at the end of Q2 largely to an assumption that there will be no spending on
the Public Services Hub in the current financial year. Elsewhere in the plan there are
some higher than anticipated costs in Property condition works, mitigated by savings
against programmed costs. As the remainder of the programme progresses, this
position will be kept under review. In March 20, council approved in principal repair
works to the old waste transfer site, although costs for this are not yet finalised, funding
from within the programme will need to be identified.

5.15

The latest capital budget includes carry-forwards of £1.3m from 19/20 programme
slippage and supplementary estimate for Railway Tavern £731K

Capital Programme – 2020/21
Asset Management
Housing

Budget
Forecast Variance
£000’s
£000’s
£000’s
3,545
1,262
(2,283)
1,808
1,808
0

Total Programme

5,353

3,070

(2,283)

5.16

The impact of Covid-19 has created some delays in progressing in year schemes as
other priorities have come in to play.

5.17

Current forecast spend for the programme is £3.070m, This takes into account a
significant underspend on the Public Services Hub but also a projected overspend of
£50k relating to works at St Leonards wall where quotes received have come in at
around £80k, the additional costs are primarily in relation to the scope of works
required. A separate report is being prepared setting out details, and will require
approval for additional funds and for the works order to be raised. The programme of
work for street lighting has been re-profiled, meaning costs will be front loaded,
bringing forward and additional £127k from future years’ budgets. Additional costs are
offset by removal of the Public Conveniences project from the current programme
(£200k), and will be re-addressed as part of future programmed works.

5.18

Further details can be found at Appendix B.

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 220

12 NOVEMBER 2020

6.0

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
Included in the body of the report

b)

Legal
There are no legal implications identified as part of this report

c)

Other
None to report, although in any report to Committee and Council, it will be noted
that any proposals which may impact on Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health &
Safety, Climate Change, Environmental, Crime & Disorder will be assessed as
part of the budget process.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Michelle Oates
01609 534196
michelle.oates@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/A

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Page 221

12 NOVEMBER 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Management Accounts 2020/21
Results as at Quarter 2 - 2020/21
Prior Year

Latest
Approved

Actual

Budget

Full Year

Year to Date
Actual

Budget

Variances
Forecast
Year to Date
Variance

Forecast

COMMENTS

INCOME
Fees & Charges

Loss of income as a result of Covid measures, most significantly Car Parking, Markets, Commercial Rents
555 and Planning

(2,774)

(2,893)

(1,065)

(1,448)

(2,338)

383

Government Grants

(205)

(123)

(151)

(37)

(123)

(113)

0

Grants & Contributions Inc

(296)

(162)

(54)

(63)

(162)

9

0

(8,068)

(8,122)

(77)

(120)

(8,105)

43

(263)

(205)

(129)

(109)

(145)

(19)

(1,863)

(1,905)

(1,186)

(1,571)

(1,803)

384

103

(67)

(4)

(1,842)

(67)

1,837

0

(13,367)

(13,479)

(2,666)

(5,191)

(12,744)

2,524

734

Housing Benefits
Investment Income
Waste Collection & Recycling Inc

Recharges
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME
Salaries & Employee Costs

Page 223

Supplies & Services
Vehicles & Transport

7,747

8,546

2,815

4,143

8,894

(1,327)

2,150

2,614

934

1,297

2,958

(363)

17 Potential increase in irrecoverable Housing benefit overpayments as a result of Covid measures
Loss in income due to significant fall in base rate following Covid - this will take time to filter into current
60 investment rates
Combined imact of lost income,primalrily in relation to commercial waste collections, which is partially offset by
102 increases in green waste and recyling - resulting from changes in activity during Covid lock-down and
expected recovery

Forecast overspends in salaries arising from additional costs due to covid measures across services. The njc
348 pay award resulted in an increase of 2.75%, which is 0.10% over the estimate, increasing costs by circa.
£7.4k. The remainder is a combination of smaller under/overspend across services.
344 Impact across various cost headings in relation to Covid acitvities and measures.

565

736

380

319

710

61

1,210

999

576

616

1,093

(40)

Drainage Board Levies

98

100

50

50

100

(0)

0

Grants & Contributions

228

435

194

217

435

(23)

0

7,970

8,005

3,653

4,004

8,005

(351)

0

103

43

0

(2)

43

2

0

54

58

(20)

29

58

(49)

0

(628)

240

3

(248)

240

251

0

19,496

21,774

8,586

10,425

22,535

(1,839)

761

0
13

(33)

0

0

(33)

0

0

Premises

Housing Benefit Payments
Additional Capacity & Provisions
Interest Payable
Capital A/c
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE
FINANCING & RESERVES
Collection Fund Surplus

(26)

94 Additional costs relating to extension of lease for former Waste Transfer Station - until 31st Jan 21

Expected losses in Council Tax as a result of increases in Council tax support claims and non-payment as a
449 result of Covid.

(4,271)

(4,429)

1,093

0

(3,980)

1,093

NNDR

(3,036)

(2,912)

(1,215)

0

(2,482)

(1,215)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

General Government Grant

(940)

(1,439)

(1,077)

(728)

(2,202)

(348)

(764)

Transfers to / from Reserves

2,105

516

0

0

516

0

0

(6,129)

(8,296)

(1,198)

(728)

(8,181)

(470)

115

0

(0)

4,721

4,506

1,610

215

1,610

TOTAL FINANCING & RESERVES
GF (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT

430 Expected un-funded losses from Business rates as a result of the economic impact of Covid

Covid Funding - tranche 1-4

`

APPENDIX A

Council Tax

RSG

£34k relates to additional streetscene hire in relation to Covid measures. Streetscene lease costs are
expected to underpend by £100k, which is offset by £40k for additional hire and repair costs for the vehicles
over-due replacement.

This page is intentionally left blank

Capital Monitoring 2020/21 - Results as at Quarter 2

Category / Scheme

Desciption

Original

Carry
Forward

Supp
Estimate

£'000

£'000

£'000

40

155

0

33

2020/21
Revised
Budget

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Est.

Est.

Est.

Total
Approved
Budget

YTD Exp

Forecast

Forecast
Variance

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

195

195

0

40

40

40

315

33

33

0

0

0

0

33

32

32

0

0

0

0

32

98

0

0

0

0

98 Council approved £92k 19 March 2020

222

0

0

0

0

£'000

Update Comments

ASSET MANAGEMENT
Vehicle Replacement Programme

Replacement for recycling, street
cleansing and grass cutting services

Trade Waste Equipment

Replacement of trade waste bulk bins /
roll out of glass recycling / additional
recycling boxes

Property Condition Survey

Investment / Operational Assets

Property Condition Survey

Leisure Facilities

Property Condition Survey

Milton Rooms

Property Condition Survey

Former Waste Transfer Site

Property Condition Survey

Public Conveniences

Property Condition Survey
Property Condition Survey

32
0

98

98

96

126

222

87

87

87

0

0

0

0

0

225

225

0

(225)

0

0

0

Car Parks

0

30

30

30

0

0

0

0

30

Street Lights

0

60

60

187

127

60

60

60

240

Page 225

Property Condition Survey

St Leonards Wall

Property Condition Survey

Unallocated

Ryedale Hub

Programme review & feasibility work
being undertaken

Essential upgrade of IT Infrastructure

Garage Inspection pit

Essential upgrade to accomoodate new
style of vehicle

Aff Hsg Init - Exception Sites
Land Purchase

Contribution to RSL land acquisitions

Aff Housing - Railway Tavern

Initial acquisition costs and feasibility
works - Railway Tavern

Aff Hsg Init - Property
Improvement Loans

Recoverable Loans to ensure properties
are to the decent home standard

Aff Hsg Init - Landlord
Improvement Loans/Grants
Private Sector Energy Efficiency
Grants
Private Sector Renewal Disabled Facilities Grants

Recoverable Loans or Grants to
Landlords

Community Housing Fund
Mortgage Rescue Scheme
TOTAL CAPITAL
PROGRAMME

0

30

30

80

50

0

0

0

58

(66)

(8)

(8)

0

50

50

50

2,234

1

2,235

0

(2,235)

0

0

0

200

57

257

0

50

50

0

100

0

6

75

0

731

737

1

0

40

0

0

0

50

0

100

0

737

0

150

0

100

0

80

737

Improve access to and within properties
for people
Development of Community lead housing
within the District
Scheme in partnership with Registered
Social Landlord

496

0

0

289

0

21

TOTAL

3,321

1,301

496

496

289

289

21

21

731

5,353

50
40

40

34

Revised IT strategy under review, initial estimates
suggest spend requirements in 20/21 equate to
457
around £200k, plus a number of ad-hoc upgrades
and replacements.

0

0

0

3,070

Approval for additional £731.4k for redevelopment
works Approved March 20

75
0

1

Programme Review and feasibility work being
2,235 undertaken. Remainder budget Carried forward to
21/22

50

75

50

142 £60k p.a. tranferred to Street Lighting

0

0

Project spend re-profiled to bring forward spend
into 20/21 (10/06/-PS 2)

Quotes have been received for the works. Phase
1 agreed to proceed, intial overspend of £25k to
30
be vired from the PC's underspend. Phase 2 will
require futher approval before proceeding.

200

0

Awaiting final costs to be agreed - Council report
19 March 2020

225 No projects programmed for PC's

0

100

100

87

257

75
50

Provide insulation improvements

26

£40k transferred from Preservation Works to fund
222 Fire replacement system at Milton Rooms, and
£96k for 20/21

0
0
0
0
0

(2,283)

50
40
496

496

0

0

0

0

1,011

646

496

1,984
289
21

646

7,656 TOTAL

APPENDIX B

IT Infrastucture Strategy

6

Remaining funding of £100k approved April 19
Council to purchase blue boxes

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10k

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 12 NOVEMBER 2020

19

Ryedale’s Financial Strategy 2021-25

Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Recommendation
The Council is asked to note the content of Appendix 1 of the report which form the basis of
the Council’s Financial Strategy. This paper builds on that presented in September to Full
Council.
Members are also asked to consider and approve the proposed areas for consultation with
the public, as set out in Appendix 2 of the report.
Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 227

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

12 NOVEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

RYEDALE’S FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2021-25

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report contains updates to the contents of the Financial Strategy and the
proposed consultation with members of the public on next year’s budget.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The Council is asked to note the content of Appendix 1 of this report which form the
basis of the Council’s Financial Strategy. This paper builds on that presented in
September to Full Council.

2.2

Members are also asked to consider and approve the proposed areas for
consultation with the public, as set out in Appendix 2.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

To ensure proper process is in place to develop the Financial Strategy for the period
2021-25.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

When presented to Council, the Financial Strategy and budget proposals for 2021-22
will contain a full risk and impact assessment highlighting all relevant mitigating
controls.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Financial Strategy is a key strategy document that affects all service delivery. It
links to the Corporate Plan and all other strategic plans as well as providing the means
for attaining the Council’s objectives and priorities.

Page 229
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 1

14 NOVEMBER 2020

5.2

The Policy and Resources Committee is the Committee designated to make
recommendations to the Council relating to the budget and levels of Council Tax.
Consequently, recommendations from this Committee will inform the Council and
subsequently the Council Tax resolution.

6.0

REPORT DETAILS
Introduction

6.1

Appendix 1 sets out the content of RDC’s Financial Strategy 2020-24, as agreed by
Council on 10 October 2019 and updated and agreed by Council in February 2020
and then updated again to include more recent and relevant information. The Strategy
is effectively a live document which at certain points is agreed to ensure that budgets
can be set.

6.2

This will continue to be reviewed and revised as information emerges and is agreed
by Members around funding, cost pressures and potential savings, until we are in a
position to make final decisions for the budget early in the new year.

6.3

The approach also contains the Commercial Strategy which was agreed last year as
a key driver to deal with future financial pressures and a need to plug a likely funding
gap in the years to come or to fund investment in services, and to look at how the
Council can become self-sufficient other than where specific grants are allocated by
central government.

6.4

Progress on this has unfortunately been impacted by the effects on the Council of
COVID-19. The Financial Strategy and 2020-21 approved budget include a number
of income targets over the next few years and these remain in place. However as we
work through the revision to the Financial Strategy and take account of Quarterly
Budget Monitoring, we will consider and immediate financial impact, as well as review
the timescales for review of the areas outlined above

6.5

As reported to Council in September, the budget process begins in earnest in August
although preparatory work within the Finance Team began in July. The need for public
consultation (consultation with ratepayers is a statutory requirement) and the lead in
time for Policy & Resources mean that to enable full engagement with Policy &
Resources members, Senior Management Board, Service and Budget Managers, the
process needs to begin as soon as final accounts work is complete. That said, budget
managers will consider their future budget requirements as part of service planning
and in reality budgeting should be an ongoing process informed by in-year budget
management and horizon scanning.

6.6

The annual process is the opportunity for Budget Managers to refine and collate
detailed proposals for consideration by senior management and members and
ultimately for inclusion in the Council’s budget for the coming year.

6.7

The table below sets out the timetable that will ensure we meet targets and undergo
due process in setting a budget.

Page 230
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 2

14 NOVEMBER 2020

Annual Budget proposed timetable
Who?

When?

What?

Finance

By end of
August

Preparatory work – key messages re
approach and process ; pay budgets
rolled forward based on approved
establishment and budgets updated for
inflation where appropriate
(pay/contracts/utilities)
Ongoing assessment of impact of
COVID-19

Management
Teams/Budget
Managers (with
support from
Finance in high risk
areas)

August September

Detailed budget requirements including
savings, commitments, growth, strategic
programmes.

Council

10 September

Consideration of Financial Strategy and
intended timescales

P&R

12 November

Consider draft budget data and any
proposals (including regarding public
consultation) at this stage and follow up
of issues from Members’ Briefing.

Members Briefing

TBC

Present key issues to members and
seek steer on proposals which are
supported, those which require more
detail and those which are rejected.

Council

3 December

Consider draft budget data and any
proposals (including regarding public
consultation) at this stage and follow up
of issues from Members’ Briefing.

Public Consultation

7 December –
12 January

Policy & Resources

4 February

Budget and Council Tax proposals
agreed for submission to Council

Council

18 February

Formal budget and council tax setting

Investment Requirement and Potential Budget Pressures
6.8

As the Strategy is refined, members will be presented with updated information on
budget pressures, including:

Page 231
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 3

14 NOVEMBER 2020



COVID-related ongoing costs (including lost income)



Other staffing/investment required.



Consideration of impact of LGR



People and Culture Plan implementation (including specific health and well-being
initiatives)



Brexit



Other
Public Consultation

6.9

Appendix 2 sets out a list of areas for public consultation on the budget which will
inform the decisions members will take in setting the budget. Members are asked to
comment on this. It is suggested that the consultation runs from Monday 7th December
2020 until Monday 11 January 2021.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Financial implications are explained throughout this report
b)

Legal
There are no legal implications regarding this report.

c)

Other
None to report, although in any report to Committee and Council, it will be noted
that any proposals which may impact on Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health &
Safety, Climate Change, Environmental, Crime & Disorder will be assessed as
part of the budget process.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge
01653 600666 ext: 43385
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Report to Full Council 10 September 2019

Page 232
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 4

14 NOVEMBER 2020

APPENDIX 1
RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2020-24

FINANCIAL STRATEGY
2021-25

Page 233
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 5

14 NOVEMBER 2020

FINANCIAL STRATEGY

CONTENTS
Main Report

1.

Introduction

2.

Objectives of the Financial Strategy

3.

Financial Assumptions

4.

Commercial Strategy

5.

Council Tax

6.

Reserves and Balances

7.

Budget Outlook 2020/21 – 2024/25

8.

Revenue Summary

9.

Capital Programme

10.

Impact/Risk Assessment

Page 234
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 6

14 NOVEMBER 2020

1. Introduction
1.1

The Council’s Financial Strategy provides the financial framework to deliver
the Council Plan.

1.2

It aims to provide financial sustainability, resilience and capacity for the
Council in pursuing its objectives and secure the resources necessary to
deliver the Corporate Plan, whilst managing the funding cuts we are facing.

1.3

The Financial Strategy sets out the overall approach in which detailed
proposals and actions will be developed and considered when agreeing the
annual budgets over a four-year period. It also notes that work will be
undertaken in time for 2021-22 to ensure the Council can set a balanced
budget which reflects its priorities, but that a more detailed and fundamental
review will take place in time for 2022-23.

1.4

This approach will reflect what is expected to be a limited the funding
settlement from central government – expected in December 2020 – in place
of the originally-expected Local Government Spending Review. It makes no
assumptions at this stage about local government review.

1.5

The Strategy covers four years, from 2021 to 2025.

1.6

Members will be kept informed of work undertaken, including detailed
briefings. This will assist the development of the budget over the period of the
Strategy and especially the work required for the more fundamental review.

1.7

Any implications (such as Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety,
Environmental, Climate Change, Crime & Disorder) will be considered as part
of this work and will be reported to Members before recommendations are
made and decisions taken.

1.8

As this strategy is being written, the impacts on public sector finances of the
UK’s exit from the European Union are still not clear. This is also the case with
the impact of any changes arising from devolution and local government
review.

1.9

Against this backdrop of uncertainty the key drivers for the financial strategy
remain unchanged as the pressure on Local Government finance continues.

1.10

The Strategy has an emphasis on financial self-sufficiency - aiming to secure
the resources necessary to deliver the Corporate Plan, whilst managing the
funding cuts we are facing – ultimately over the long term achieving a selfsustaining financial model which sees the Council free from reliance on central
government funding by raising income locally through Council Tax and
Business Rates as well as through charging appropriately for services,
maximising investments and commercial activity.

Page 235
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 7

14 NOVEMBER 2020

2. Objectives of the Financial Strategy
2.1

The Financial Strategy contains the following objectives:
1.

Budgets are Prudent and Sustainable in the Long Term. The Council will aim
to maintain a balanced budget by ensuring that in-year expenditure is matched
by income from Council Tax, Business Rates, fees and charges and grants
from government and other bodies. Funding from reserves will be used to
cover one-off investments or temporary initiatives subject to a detailed
business case being approved by Members.

2.

Financial plans recognise corporate Priorities and Objectives.

3.

Significant risks are identified, and mitigation factors identified.

4.

The Capital Programme is planned over a 4 year period with no further
borrowing planned.

5.

Constraints on capital and revenue resources, including the uncertainties
around future government funding, are recognised and taken into account.

6.

Council Tax increases will be kept within the Government’s expected upper
level of increase, and the broad anticipated increase for future years will be
set out within the Financial Plans, recognising that these increases may be
subject to change.

7.

Prudent levels of general balances, reserves and contingencies are
maintained in the context of an assessment of the risks facing the Council;

8.

Value for Money and achievement of improved efficiency and service delivery
underpin the Financial Strategy.

9.

The Financial Strategy supports the achievement of Excellence in Financial
Management and use of resources.

10.

The Council will seek to maximise income through a Commercial Strategy.

Page 236
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 8

14 NOVEMBER 2020

3. Financial Assumptions
Economic Assumptions
Interest Rates
3.1

There were two emergency cuts in Bank Rate from 0.75% to 0.25% and then
to 0.10% as a result of the coronavirus outbreak in March 2020. In the latest
forecasts received from Link (the Council’s treasury management advisors)
rates are expected to remain at 0.1% through to 2023. However these
assumptions are based upon significant uncertainties around a Brexit
outcome and the ongoing impact from COVID-19 and will be closely watched.

3.2

The approved strategy already included a cap on investment income of £200k
to protect the general fund from over reliance on treasury returns during
uncertain times resulting from Brexit. However, the increased turmoil in the
financial markets due to COVID-19 and resulting rates forecasts suggest that
returns on cash balances will remain below this level for the foreseeable future
and will be included as an on-going budget pressure.
Investment
Income
Average rate %
Interest £000’s

3.3

2020-21

2021-22

0.56%
140

0.25%
50

2022-23

2023-24

0.25%
50

0.25%
50

Rates will be kept under review and forecasts updated as necessary.

Pay and Price Inflation
3.4

Provision for the public sector pay award for 2021-22 onwards 2% will be
assumed.

3.5

As at August 2020 CPI inflation was running at 0.5%. However, it remains to
be seen how the UK’s exit from the European Union and the ongoing impact
of COVID will reflect on the outlook for the economy and inflation. The
Monetary Policy Committee sets policies to meet the 2% CPI target and
expects rates to rise over the next two years although the effects of COVID
and Brexit mean on-going uncertainty. The MTFS assumptions on inflation
will therefore range from 1.5% to 3.5%, although inflation will only be provided
on contractual budgets, staff pay and income.
Settlement Funding

3.6

This element of funding has seen the most significant changes in recent years
following the localisation of Business Rates and Council Tax Support.

3.7

In October, HM Treasury confirmed that it will conduct a one-year Spending
Review in November. The current assumptions in this paper are therefore that
funding in 2021-22 will follow a similar pattern to that of the current year,
except where longer-term assumptions were already in place (e.g. New
Homes Bonus). This position may of course change and our final assumptions
will be amended in such circumstances.

Page 237
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 9

14 NOVEMBER 2020

Business Rates Retention
3.8

The Council was part of a successful bid for 2019-20, which included councils
in West Yorkshire as well as our colleagues in the North Yorkshire pool and
the City of York.

3.9

Invitations to bid for pooling in 2021-22 have been issued from central
government but following modelling work and analysis, the s151 officers of the
North Yorkshire authorities (county and districts) show a large degree of risk
in this approach given the current financial circumstances. This risk outweighs
the small potential benefits and therefore the unanimous view is not to
progress a pool for next year.
New Homes Bonus

3.10

New Homes Bonus (NHB) is an incentive scheme which rewards housing
growth. It provides funding based on the number of new properties brought
into use with an added element for affordable housing. The calculation
provides that 80% of the funding is paid direct to District Councils with the
County Council receiving the remaining 20%. The scheme is funded partly by
the Government and also by top-slicing the Local Government funding
settlement. Ryedale achieved £1.676m p.a. when the scheme reached
maturity for 2016/17 (year 6 of the scheme).

3.11

However, the Government’s evaluation of NHB and consultation early in 2016
resulted in it being it being scaled back to a 4 year scheme with a 0.4% growth
threshold – for 2020-21 £835k was received.

3.12

New Homes Bonus funding is only currently secured to 2019-20 and it was
anticipated that this scheme would be replaced in its entirety from 2020-21
with the Government considering alternative ways to incentivise housing
growth. However, NHB did continue in 2020-21 and our Financial Strategy
currently assumes this will phase out over the next two years with £475k
estimated for 2021-22 and £275k for 2022-23.

3.13

The use of this funding in recent years is shown in the table below. The revised
Financial Strategy assumes that £121k of the 2020-21 grant will be used to
support additional spend in the budget on areas such as economic
development and housing, with the remaining £714k allocated to reserves. In
future years, at this stage it is likely that all of any future NHB will be used in
support of the revenue budget.

Page 238
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 10

14 NOVEMBER 2020

Year

2014/2015 (received)
2015/2016 (received)
2016/2017 (received)
2017/18 (received)
2018/19 (received)
2019-20 (received)
2020-21 (due)
2021-22 (estimate)
2022-23 (estimate)

NHB £000

1,127
1,387
1,676
1,420
964
861
835
475
275

Revenue
Support
£000
175
559
327
32
0
0
121
475
275

Capital
Support
£000
0
288
188
188
188
188
0
0
0

Balance
£0001
952
540
604
1,200
776
673
714
0
0

Special and Specific Grants
3.14

The Strategy assumes that Council Tax Administration support grant of £49k
will not continue into 21/22, although this figure will be confirmed in the final
settlement.

3.15

Negative RSG has of £120k was removed for 20/21, with an expectation that
it may be reintroduced at a later date, and therefore is currently included from
21/22 onwards. However, this will be updated when we have details of the
financial settlement.

Pensions
3.16

The Council’s employers’ contribution rate for the North Yorkshire Pension
Fund is set every 3 years based upon actuarial assumptions and investment
expectations. Like many other Councils Ryedale’s pension fund now has an
estimated surplus of £8.7m at 31 March 2019 when the last valuation was
undertaken. The employers’ rate is designed to cover future service costs and
a contribution towards the historic deficit, which aims to balance the fund over
the long term. Changes to the scheme benefits have also been introduced in
order to reduce the costs of future pension payments.

3.17

The triennial valuation took place last year and has set employer contribution
rates for the next three years. These show a reduced expectation to the tune
of £81k, £144k and £148k over the next three years. The Strategy assumes
that this headroom will be held in reserve to assist any negative of the next
valuation in future years

Debt Charges
3.18

1

Management of the Council’s debt is governed by the Treasury Management
Strategy and Prudential Indicators which aim to ensure the Council’s capital
expenditure plans are prudent, affordable and sustainable, with decisions on

Allocated to NHB Reserve

Page 239

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 11

14 NOVEMBER 2020

borrowing taken in light of spending plans and available funding, cash flow
needs and interest rates (current and future forecasts).
3.19

Borrowing enables the Council to spread the cost of capital expenditure over
time. Generally speaking it gives rise to 2 charges against the revenue budget:
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and interest payable on debt.

3.20

MRP is an amount set aside to repay debt in accordance with the approved
policy within the Treasury Management Strategy. The current policy is to
charge MRP for assets included within the debt liability over the useful life of
the asset or finance lease term. The current annual charge to General Fund
balances is £35k. At this stage, and until the Council has agreed it’s Council
Plan and also potential use of reserves on any major schemes and other
priorities, no change is proposed in the MRP level.

3.21

The Council has resolved to fund the current capital programme through the
use of grant funding and reserve balances, thus removing the need to borrow.
However, should this position change, the current environment of low returns
on cash investments means that it is more favourable to borrow internally (i.e.
use available cash earmarked for future spend) than take out new external
borrowing. This will be kept under review as part of monitoring the Council’s
Treasury activities.

4. Commercial Strategy
4.1

A key driver for the Council’s Commercial Strategy is future financial pressures
and a need to plug a likely funding gap in the years to come or to fund
investment in services, and to look at how the Council can become selfsufficient other than where specific grants are allocated by central
government.

4.2

The Strategy considers where certain discretionary services can be funded by
those who use them rather than the general taxpayer.

4.3

Alongside this is a requirement to ensure that the Council provides the best
value for money to the people of Ryedale.

4.4

Commercial opportunities can have a positive impact on the Council and the
area by:

4.5

-

Developing the portfolio of services provided by the Council and making it
a more attractive place to work

-

Generating additional income which, in addition to plugging any financial
gap, can be used to invest in services

-

Working more closely with business and ensuring the Council is a key
player in ensuring that we maximise the economic potential of our area
and achieve our strategic outcomes across our communities

Although income generation is very important, our Commercial Strategy will
also look at how we can ensure that every spending decision is taken with a
view to ensuring the best value for money for taxpayers. We will also ensure
that we become infuse our procurement and commissioning decisions with an
“intelligent client” ethos.

Page 240
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 12

14 NOVEMBER 2020

4.6

All of these require us to look at culture across the Council and ensure that
staff and members feel confident and knowledgeable enough to deliver the
strategy.

4.7

In summary therefore this Strategy notes that we will
-

Look at all non-statutory services and investigate potential for full cost
recovery or increasing user contribution to their cost
Shape potential markets for delivering traded services and look at how
generated surplus can be used
Review our procurement strategy to ensure that a commercial approach
is taken
Ensure that all purchasing decisions are guided by a value for money
approach

4.8

To do this successfully we need to ensure that we have the proper support
functions in place in designing and delivering the services (e.g. financial and
legal advice and marketing support) and that any costs of this are fully
recovered in what we charge for the services.

4.9

Ensuring we have the right culture across the organisation is also important.
We will takes steps to provide staff and members with the relevant skills and
expertise in this regard to embed a more commercial mindset across the
Council.

4.10

An important part of becoming more commercial involves managing risk and
attitudes towards this from officers and members. Our approach will
encourage an appetite for calculated risk-taking and being willing to learn
lessons from approaches which do not always lead to the success hoped for.
This will of course be balanced by a risk management process which ensures
we safeguard the council at all times.

4.11

The Financial Strategy will include a number of income targets over the next
few years and further details will be provided to members in due course.

Page 241
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 13

14 NOVEMBER 2020

5. Council Tax

5.1

The Council Tax Base in 2020-21 is 22,062 and the Strategy currently
estimates a 1% rise forecast thereafter. Every 0.5% increase above this level
would add approximately 110 Band D equivalents to our Tax Base which
equates to around £21.5k p.a. at the current Band D charge. However the final
strategy will reference any potential slowing of growth in growth on the base
as a result of increased Council Tax support and less new development due
to Covid.

5.2

In 2020-21 central Government allowed district councils to increase their Band
D charge by 2% or £5 whichever was the highest, without triggering a
referendum. Our assumptions are that this will be 2% or £5 per annum in future
years. The Financial Strategy agreed by Council in December 2019 stated
that “any Council Tax increase will be between £0 and £5 and, pending any
further information, our assumptions will continue to be based on that
allowance from government.

5.3

In February 2020, Council agreed an increase of £5.

Page 242
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 14

14 NOVEMBER 2020

6. Reserves and Balances

6.1

The Local Government Act 2003 places a specific duty on the Chief Finance
Officer (s151), to make a report to the authority when it is considering its
budget and the level of the Council Tax. This report must deal with the
robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves allowed for in the
budget proposals. The Council must have regard to this report in making their
decisions.

6.2

The Council also has a fiduciary duty to local taxpayers and the Chief Finance
Officer must be satisfied that the decisions taken on the level of balances and
reserves represent the proper stewardship of funds.

6.3

In assessing the adequacy of the contingencies, balances and reserves, the
Chief Finance Officer takes account of the key financial assumptions
underpinning the budget, together with an assessment of the Council’s
financial management arrangements. This assessment will include a review
of past performance and external influences on the financial plan, and full
consideration of the risks and uncertainties associated with the plan, their
likelihood and potential impact.

6.4

The Council’s policy is to maintain its contingencies, balances and reserves
at levels that are prudent but not excessive. With the outlook for the years
after 2020/21 and beyond currently uncertain, and the scale and risk of
achieving cost reduction being high, any reserves identified as being surplus
should be prioritised to invest to save schemes and, if required, to smooth the
curve of cost reduction in the light of timescales needed to drive costs out.

6.5

It is assumed that General Balances are not used to support the revenue
budget but may be used for temporary or on-off costs – although such costs
will be clearly managed and agreed through the use of the Strategic Reserve.
In 2020-21, specific amounts have been set aside for potential costs of Brexit
(£50k), contributions to matched funding from external bids (£10k) and any
necessary furniture costs, pending decisions on the Public Services Hub.

6.6

General Balances are funding of last resort. Taking account of the size of the
Council’s revenue budget and risks being managed, a minimum working
balance of £1m would seem appropriate.

6.7

At 1 April 2020 reserve balances were £15.8m revenue and £456k capital
receipts.

6.8

A current list of reserves and balances is shown in the table below. The
Council’s revenue reserves increased from £12.8m in March 2018 to £14.9m
in March 2019 and then to £15.8m in March 2020. These are expected to fall
over the next few years not least because of the requirement to fund additional
COVID-costs.

Page 243
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 15

14 NOVEMBER 2020

7. Budget Outlook 2021/22 – 2024/25
7.1

The 2019-20 budget was the first in a number of years where a large
underspend or contingency was not set as part of the overall revenue budget
and this continued in 2020-21. This means that the Council has gone from a
£2.1m underspend in 2017-18 and £1.4m underspend in 2018-19, to an small
surplus of £31k in 2019-20. This is an ongoing process and work continues
across the Council to ensure that budgets are allocated at appropriate levels.

7.2

However, the costs on the Council of COVID have had a significant and
detrimental effect on the budget.

7.3

The Q2 position to be reported to members in November 2020 shows the an
expected overspend of £1.6m

7.4

This incorporates additional COVID costs of £2.7m, offset by income or other
budgets already agreed.

7.5

Central government has also made available a scheme to “compensate
councils for irrecoverable and unavoidable losses from sales, fees and
charges income generated in the delivery of services, in the financial year
2020-21”. This means that where the Council has budgeted for something as
income (sales, fees and charges), and has suffered losses to that income,
then compensation will be payable. Authorities will have to absorb the initial
5% of losses (the 5% deductible), with central government compensating 75%
of losses above this threshold. Any recovered income would therefore
contribute to the gap above.

7.6

Work is being undertaken to identify as best as we can the ongoing impact of
Covid on the revenue budget in future years. This includes:
a)
b)
c)
d)

7.7

Business Rates income reduction
Council Tax income reduction
Other lost income
Additional staffing costs to reflect increased workload or requirements
around social distancing. At the same time we will take account of any cost
increases and reductions that are arising through revised working
arrangements

In general, it is assumed that on average costs will increase in line with
inflation.
Employee Costs

7.8

The single largest cost to the Council is its employees. In 2020/21 the
Council’s payroll budget is over £6m. A 2% pay award is included in our
budget forecasts.

7.9

Salary budgets are set at mid-point of scale with no vacancy factor.

7.10

The budget includes costs to other organisations – such as NYCC – which
replace direct staffing costs. Estimated costs in 2021/22 are shown below. It
should be noted that in most cases these are not additional costs. The only
area which has been included as a budget pressure is Facilities Management.

Page 244
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 16

14 NOVEMBER 2020

Service
Finance Resource
Legal Resource
HR Resource
Payroll
Revenues Resource
Collection Fund
Cleaning Services
Facilities Management
Procurement
Legal Support
Safeguarding
Housing
Health & Safety

Organisation

Budget
£000s

NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
SBC
SBC
NYCC
NYCC
SBC/NYCC
NYCC
SBC
The York, North Yorkshire &
East Riding Strategic
Housing Partnership
NYCC

Investment
7.11

In addition to increased costs arising from the ongoing impact of the pandemic,
we will also highlight any other capacity issues required to continue to improve
the Council’s performance or deal with regulatory compliance

7.12

A summary of these investments and budget pressures will be included in the
final Strategy and discussed with members prior to that point.

Savings
7.13

A number of savings have been identified and built into the budget. These are
set out below. In some cases, these are reductions which can be applied
without any further action as they reflect an updated spend pattern or have
been planned for some time. In other cases, efficiencies have been linked to
income generation through better marketing and increasing take-up targets.

Fees, Charges and Income Generation
7.14

Fees and charges have generally been increased in line with inflation, by up
to 4%, however there are some specific service areas to highlight the position
for next year’s proposed pricing.

Page 245
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 17

14 NOVEMBER 2020

8. Revenue Summary
8.1

The Final Strategy will set out the proposed revised budget forecast.

8.2

This shows that in 2021/22, the budget will balance, but – based on the
assumptions in this paper – there are still shortfalls in future years which will
have to found with further savings. The final position for those years will not
be known until the outcome of the spending review.

8.3

The Strategy will note the assumptions for the 2021-22 budget on use of
Council Tax New Homes Bonus to fund pressures.

9. Capital Programme
9.1

The Council continues to work on a new capital programme which will take
account of the Council’s priorities and objectives, including any investment in
large scale projects such as the Public Services Hub or Livestock Market.

9.2

In putting this together, new schemes will be reviewed against the Council
priorities plus a detailed assessment of deliverability prior to consideration by
Council. This methodology will be applied to all proposals, regardless of the
source of funding, prior to any decision being made to accept external capital
support such as grant funding, so that the Council can ensure that they form
part of an overall capital investment strategy.

9.3

The Council is committed to seeking out innovative partnership and funding
opportunities in order to deliver the capital strategy and achieve best value.

9.4

The Council will continue to work closely with funding partners. Future projects
will continue to be developed through partnership working more likely with the
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP). The Council also recognises the
importance of increased community engagement and participation as
fundamental to the quality of public services and the health of community life.
The Council will therefore seek to develop major projects with the full
involvement of local communities and ensure appropriate consultation prior to
scheme approval.

9.5

Resources to fund capital spending are provided from central government
grants, with other external grants and contributions sought. Council funding in
the form of capital receipts, use of reserves, borrowing and from revenue
sources make up the balance of resources. However, grants provided by
central government and resources from other external agencies are often
specific to an individual scheme and cannot be used for any other purpose by
the Council. The Council has limited scope to generate significant capital
receipts other than through the sale of major underutilised assets.

9.6

Under the Prudential Regime, which has operated since April 2004, the
Council has the responsibility to demonstrate that its capital investment
programme is affordable, prudent and sustainable. The Prudential Code
requires that this is done by calculating specific indicators for capital
expenditure and financing and by setting borrowing limits.

9.7

The revenue implications of funding the capital programme will be built into
the medium term financial forecasts.

Page 246
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 18

14 NOVEMBER 2020

10.

Impact/Risk Assessment

10.1

This section recognises the challenges and risks that have implications for the
Council’s financial position in the medium term. This assessment of risk is an
essential element of the budget process; it is used to inform decisions about
the appropriate levels of contingencies and reserves that may be required and
to indicate priorities for financial monitoring.

10.2

Managing Risk is an important part of the Financial Strategy. In addition to the
Corporate Risk Register each service maintains its own risk register. The
Corporate Risk Register will be reported to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee during the forthcoming year.

10.3

A key risk is Brexit as it remains unclear what short term impact there will be
on the Council in a post EU environment. There are, however, risks that
suppliers of services with significant exposure to workers from the EU and / or
currency fluctuations will seek to recover additional costs from customers
including the Council. This has been accounted for in the Strategy

10.4

The key risks identified for 2020/21 and in the medium term are listed below,
together with comments on how they will be managed. These compliment the
Council’s Corporate Risk Register

Page 247
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 19

14 NOVEMBER 2020

APPENDIX 2

Suggested Headings in Public Budget Consultation pack

Summary of financial Position, noting:


Like others, the Council has had to take action to ensure that we stay within
budget and it is likely that our funding will reduce further in future years. As we
are limited in how much we can increase Council Tax, we are constantly looking
at ways we can work more efficiently.



Although we are the authority who send you the annual Council Tax bill, we
only keep 11% of the money we collect. The other 89% is split between:
o
o
o



North Yorkshire County Council
North Yorkshire Police
North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service

71%
14%
4%

A comparison2 of the different responsibilities of the County, District and Parish
Councils, as below:

County Councils

District, borough and city Parish, community
councils
town councils

education

rubbish collection

allotments

transport

recycling

public clocks

planning

Council Tax collections

bus shelters

social care

housing

community centres

libraries

trading standards

play
areas
equipment

waste management

and

consultation
neighbourhood planning

and

play

on

They also have the power to
issue fixed penalty fines for
things like:
 litter
 graffiti
 fly posting
 dog offences

2



Where does our money come from?



What is the money spent on?

https://www.gov.uk/understand-how-your-council-works

Page 248
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 20

14 NOVEMBER 2020

Suggested topics for consultation


Council Tax level: does it provide value for money? Do you agree that the
proposed limits are reasonable?



Opinion on various services provided by RDC



Charging for Discretionary Services provided by Ryedale



What can the Council do to help you more – especially as we cope with and
recover from the effects of Coronavirus?

Page 249
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE Page 21

14 NOVEMBER 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11b

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 12 NOVEMBER 2020

6

Recommendations from the Constitution Working Party held on 9 November
2020

Recommendation
Council is recommended to approve the Leader and Deputy Leader elements of the motion,
as amended.
Voting record
5 For
5 Against
Chair’s casting vote – For
Recorded vote
For
Councillors Arnold, Delaney, Duncan, Graham and Mackenzie
Against
Councillors J Andrews, Burr, Clark, Frank and Riby

Council

Page 251

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack
Constitution Working Party
Held on Microsoft Teams
on Monday 9 November 2020
Present
Councillors Clark, Arnold, Burr MBE, Cleary, Duncan (Chairman) and Frank
In Attendance
Ellen Walker and Barry Khan

Minutes
1

Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Cllr Keal.

2

Minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 2020
The minutes of the meeting of the Constitution Working Party held on 12
February 2020 were presented.
Resolved
That the minutes of the meeting of the Constitution Working Party
held on 12 February 2020 be approved and signed by the Chairman
as a correct record.

3

Minutes of the meeting held on 12 March 2020
The minutes of the meeting of the Constitution Working Party held on 12
March 2020 were presented.
Resolved
That the minutes of the meeting of the Constitution Working Party
held on 12 March 2020 be approved and signed by the Chairman as
correct record.

4

Urgent Business
There were no items of urgent business which the Chairman considered
should be dealt with as a matter of urgency, by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b)
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

5

Declarations of Interest
No interests were declared.

Constitution Working Party

1

Page 253

Monday 9 November 2020

6

Motion on Council Governance Arrangements
Members discussed the Lead Members element of the revised motion. It
was agreed that this element would not form part of the recommendation to
Policy and Resources Committee at this time.
It was moved by Cllr Clark and seconded by Cllr Burr that the following
recommendation be made to Policy and Resources Committee:
That Council is recommended not to make changes to the
Constitution at this time.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was lost.
Voting record
3 For
3 Against
Chairman’s casting vote – Against
It was moved by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold that
the following recommendation be made to Policy and Resources
Committee:
That Council is recommended to approve the Leader and Deputy
Leader elements of the motion, as amended.
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was carried.
Recommendation
That Council is recommended to approve the Leader and Deputy Leader
elements of the motion, as amended.
Voting record
3 For
3 Against
Chairman’s casting vote – For

7

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
There being no other business, the meeting closed at 6:55pm.

Constitution Working Party

2

Page 254

Monday 9 November 2020

Minute Annex
APPENDIX 1 – Original motion
Proposed by Councillor Duncan and seconded by Councillor Arnold:
“This council tasks the Head of Paid Service to update and amend the constitution to reflect
the following:
Leader
•
The Annual Council Meeting will appoint a Councillor to be the Leader of the Council
for the Municipal Year
•
The Annual Council Meeting will also appoint the Leader to be a member of the Policy
& Resources Committee and to act as its Chairman
•
The Leader will:
•
be the Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee;
•
provide overall strategic vision and direction to the council;
•
coordinate the work of the council’s committees;
•
work closely with the Head of Paid Service to ensure member priorities are
delivered;
•
act externally as the council’s main political representative;
•
and be the council’s main spokesman in the media
Deputy Leader
•
The Annual Council Meeting will appoint a Councillor to be the Deputy Leader of the
Council
•
The Annual Council Meeting will also appoint the Deputy Leader to be a member of
the Policy& Resources Committee and to act as its Vice Chairman
•
The Deputy Leader will:
•
be Vice Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee;
•
work closely with and support the Leader;
•
act and speak on the Leader’s behalf at meetings and in the media when
required to do so
Lead Members
•
The Leader and Deputy Leader will serve as Lead Members, each with a Lead
Portfolio
•
The Annual Council Meeting will appoint up to three other Lead Members, each with
a Lead Portfolio relating to areas of council policy, for the Municipal Year
•
The Annual Council Meeting will agree the portfolio areas for each Lead Member and
appoint the Lead Members to be members of the Policy & Resources Committee
•
Lead Members will:
•
provide political oversight and leadership of their portfolio area;
•
provide collective oversight and leadership of the authority;
•
act as a public spokesman for their portfolio area;
•
present relevant reports, as required, to the Policy & Resources Committee and
Council;
•
and be answerable to the Policy & Resources Committee and Council for
service performance in their portfolio areas

Page 255
3

•

The “Administration” of the Council, therefore, comprises the Leader, Deputy Leader
and Lead Members, who are drawn from all, or part of, the controlling group’s or
controlling coalition’s membership of the Policy & Resources Committee
Member Champions
•
Subject to the ongoing review into Member Champions, the Annual Council Meeting
may appoint Member Champions responsible for promoting general themes in a nonpartisan manner.
Committees
The council will continue to operate under non-executive arrangements i.e. ‘the committee
system’, with no individual member wielding executive power.
It will have the following committees:
•
Policy & Resources Committee with power to establish an Appeals Sub-Committee
and an Appointments Sub-Committee
•
Overview & Scrutiny Committee
•
Planning Committee
•
Licensing Committee with power to establish a Licensing Sub-Committee
•
Audit, Governance & Standards Committee to carry out the Audit Committee and
Corporate Governance Standards Committee functions currently exercised by the
Overview & Scrutiny Committee
The size of committees shall be determined each year by Annual Council.
Members may be appointed to the membership of on one or more committees of the council,
except members of Policy & Resources Committee cannot sit on Overview & Scrutiny
Committee, and vice versa.
Accountability
•
The Leader will continue to present a written report to each Full Council
•
In addition to questions on notice to the Chairman, Leader and Committee Chairmen
currently allowed, members may also ask a question on notice to a Lead Member on
an issue relating to their Lead Portfolio
The changes should come into effect as of the Annual Meeting of Council 2020, when
council will appoint a Chairman, Vice Chairman, Leader, Deputy Leader, Lead Members,
Committee Chairmen, Committee Vice Chairmen and (if required) Member Champions,
and allocate members to committees in accordance with political proportionality.”

Page
Page
256
4

APPENDIX 2 – Suggested amendments
“This council tasks the Head of Paid Service to update and amend the constitution to reflect
the following:
Leader
•
The Annual Council Meeting will appoint elect a Councillor to be the Leader of the
Council for the Municipal Year, who shall:
•
The Annual Council Meeting will also appoint the Leader to be a member of the Policy
& Resources Committee and to act as its Chairman
•
The Leader will:
•
be the Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee;
•
provide overall political leadership and strategic vision and direction to the
council;
•
coordinate the work of the council’s committees;
•
work closely with the Head of Paid Service to work to ensure member council
priorities are delivered;
•
promote cross-party communication, collective decision-making and the flow of
information to members;
•
act externally as the council’s main political representative;
•
and be the council’s main spokesman in the mediapublic spokesperson;
•
be answerable to council, presenting a written statement to each meeting and
taking questions on that statement
Deputy Leader
•
The Annual Council Meeting will appoint elect a Councillor to be the Deputy Leader
of the Council for the Municipal Year, who shall:
•
The Annual Council Meeting will also appoint the Deputy Leader to be a member of
the Policy& Resources Committee and to act as its Vice Chairman
•
The Deputy Leader will:
•
be Vice Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee;
•
work closely with, and support the Leader, to provide overall political leadership
and strategic vision to the council;
•
work closely with, and support the Leader, to ensure council priorities are
delivered;
•
promote cross-party communication, collective decision-making and the flow of
information to members;
•
act and speak on the Leader’s behalf at meetings and in the media deputise for
the Leader when required to do so

Page 257
5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 258

APPENDIX 3 – Amended motion
“This council tasks the Head of Paid Service to update and amend the constitution to reflect
the following:
Leader
•
The Annual Council Meeting will elect a Councillor to be the Leader of the Council for
the Municipal Year, who shall:
•
be the Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee;
•
provide overall political leadership and strategic vision to the council;
•
work to ensure council priorities are delivered;
•
promote cross-party communication, collective decision-making and the flow of
information to members;
•
act externally as the council’s main political representative;
•
be the council’s main public spokesperson;
•
be answerable to council, presenting a written statement to each meeting and
taking questions on that statement
Deputy Leader
•
The Annual Council Meeting will elect a Councillor to be the Deputy Leader of the
Council for the Municipal Year, who shall:
•
be Vice Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee;
•
work closely with, and support the Leader, to provide overall political leadership
and strategic vision to the council;
•
work closely with, and support the Leader, to ensure council priorities are
delivered;
•
promote cross-party communication, collective decision-making and the flow of
information to members;
•
deputise for the Leader when required to do so”

Page 259
7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 260

Agenda Item 12

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

REPORT OF THE:

DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER
JODIE TOWNSEND

TITLE OF REPORT:

REVISED POLITICAL PROPORTIONALITY OF COUNCIL

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to:
a. confirm the calculations relating to the allocation of seats on Committees
following changes to Political Groups
b. review the political composition of Council Committees in accordance with
proportionality following a request for a review of the political proportionality of
Committees.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS
That Council:
(i)
approves the division of Committee seats between political groups in
accordance with the allocation shown at paragraph 6.8;
(ii)
notes that the appointments made at Annual Council on 8 October
2020, set out in Annex A, comply with this allocation;
(iii)
invites and approves nominations for substitutes from the Independent
for Ryedale Group for the Policy and Resources Committee and from
the Ryedale First Independent Group for the Planning Committee.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

To comply with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local
Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 as amended.

3.2

The Council has been notified of changes to the membership of Political Groups since
the Annual Meeting, these changes are:
i.
Councillor Middleton resigned from the Conservative Group and became an
Ungrouped independent
ii.
Councillors Cussons, Frank and Hope resigned from the Ryedale First
Independent Group
iii.
Councillors Cussons, Frank and Hope established the Independents for Ryedale
Group

Page 261

3.3

A request for a review of the political proportionality of the council was subsequently
received from Councillor Frank.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks related to the recommendations in this report, which seek
to ensure compliance with legal requirements.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

A.

Committees for 2020/21

5.1

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the Council agreed the membership of
its Committees at the Annual Meeting of Full Council held on 8 October 2020. In doing
so it agreed the allocation of seats on Committees between Political Groups.

B.

The Allocation of Seats on Committees between Political Groups and the
Appointment of Members to Committees

5.2

Ryedale District Council is to be treated as being divided into different political groups
for the purposes of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, because at least one
political group has been constituted in the prescribed way.

5.3

The Local Government & Housing Act 1989 and associated regulations, requires the
distribution of seats on Committees and Sub-Committees to be on the basis of political
proportionality so far as it is “reasonably practicable” between the political groups of
the Council unless every Member of the Council agrees that some other basis of
allocation should be used.

5.4

The distribution of Committee places between the groups needs to have regard to
these rules.

5.5

A political group is any group of two or more Councillors who notify the Chief Executive
that it wishes to be considered as a political group. In law it is a “group” only for the
purposes of allocating places on Committees. It is a matter for individual groups to
decide whether to get together for political purposes such as a coalition.

5.6

In making appointments to Committees the Council must be guided by the following
principles:(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

5.7

Not all seats on the Committees can be allocated to one political party;
The majority of seats should be awarded to a group having a majority on the
Council;
Subject to (a) and (b) the total number of places allocated on all Committees
must be proportionate to the political strength on the Council as a whole;
Subject to (c) the places on each Committee must be proportionate to political
strength.

One effect of the rules is that there is no requirement for all political groups to be
represented on all Committees unless the figures justify such representation. If the
Committee size means a smaller group does not get a place, then that is not unlawful.
It is a matter for the Council to decide on the size of Committees and the distribution
of places between the groups, and for the political groups to determine their individual
membership.

Page 262

5.8

The Council, at its Annual General Meeting, agreed to apply political proportionality
rules to the following Committees of the Council:-

1.

COMMITTEE
Policy & Resources Committee

2.
3.

Overview & Scrutiny Committee *
Planning Committee

* The Overview and Scrutiny Committee also acts as the District Council’s Audit
Committee and Corporate Governance Standards Committee.
5.9

The legal obligation to ensure that there is proportionality in the political composition
of Committees extends only to proportionate representation of members of political
groups and does not require ungrouped single members to be proportionally
represented.

5.10

The Head of Corporate Governance and Acting Monitoring Officer discussed political
proportionality and Committee membership with all political Group Leaders in advance
of the Annual Council meeting to clarify the position of the political groups on those
issues as far as is reasonably practicable.

5.11

In terms of appointments of Members to Committees, Council is requested to note the
following constitutional provisions:
1. Each Councillor may only sit on one Committee ;
2. Each political group may have substitutes to cover the absence of members of the
group on the Policy and Resources Committee and the Planning Committee. Most
political groups are entitled to two named substitutes.
3. There are no substitutes on the Overview and Scrutiny and the Licensing
Committee.
4. In relation to choosing substitutes on the Policy and Resources Committee and
the Planning Committee, one named substitute for each political group can be
drawn from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee but the substitute cannot
scrutinise a decision they were part of say on the Policy and Resources
Committee.

5.12

The changes to Political Groups has resulted in a change to the Political Balance of
the council, resulting in the strength of the political groups on the Council of 30
Members being as follows:Conservative
11
(36.67%)
Liberal
5
(16.67%)
Independent
5
(16.67%)
Ryedale First Independent (RFI)
3
(10%)
Independent for Ryedale
3
(10%)
Liberal Democrat
2
(6.67%)
Independent (Ungrouped)
1
(3.33%)

5.13

The impact of the changes to Political Groups on Committee seat allocation based on
the numerical entitlement calculation agreed at Annual Council is as follows:

Page 263

Conservative

Liberal

Independent

11

5

5

Committees

5.14

Ryedale
First
Independent
3

Independent
for Ryedale

Liberal
Democrat

Ungrouped

3

2

1

The impact of the changes on subsequent Committee seat allocation is as follows:

Political Group

Policy & Resources
Committee

Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Planning Committee

Conservative

4

3 (-1)

4

Total:
(30
seats)
11

Liberal

2

2

1

5

Independent

2

1

2

5

Ryedale First
Independent (RFI)
Independent for Ryedale

1 (-1)

1 (-1)

1 (-1)

3

1 (+1)

1 (+1)

1 (+1)

3

Liberal Democrat

0

1

1

2

Ungrouped

0

1 (+1)

0

1

5.15

The current appointed membership to committees, agreed at Annual Council on 8
October 2020, still complies with the revised allocation of seats following changes to
the Political Groups. A copy of this membership is attached as Annex A of the report.

5.16

Where there have been changes to Political Groups, they are invited to put forward
nominations for substitutes for approval where required, namely from the Independent
for Ryedale Group for the Policy and Resources Committee and from the Ryedale First
Independent Group for the Planning Committee.

6.0

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None.
b)

Legal
This report ensures compliance with the Local Government & Housing Act 1989
and associated regulations.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None.

Jodie Townsend
Deputy Monitoring Officer
Author:

Jodie Townsend, Deputy Monitoring Officer

Page 264

Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

01653 600666
jodie.townsend@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None.
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
Not applicable.

Page 265

ANNEX A
RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL
APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO COMMITTEES

POLICY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Conservative
K C Duncan (C)
C W Delaney
C Docwra
S M Graham

Substitutes
N Garbutt Moore
J MacKenzie

Ryedale First Independent
Independent
for Ryedale
S Arnold (VC)
J Frank

Liberal

Substitutes
J A Windress
J Raper

Substitutes
M J Potter

Substitutes

Liberal
Democrat

J S Clark
J Andrews

Independent

Ungrouped

L M Burr
A R Riby

Substitutes

Substitutes
P J Andrews

Substitutes

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE1
Conservative
W R F H Oxley
N Garbutt Moore
R King

Ryedale First Independent Liberal
Independent
for Ryedale
J R Raper (C)
D E Cussons C Brackstone

Liberal
Independent Ungrouped
Democrat
D E Keal
A E Raine
T Middleton
(VC)

C M Wass

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, where a Member of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
has acted as a named substitute at any Policy Committee they may not subsequently scrutinise any
decision in which they have been involved.
1

Page 266

PLANNING COMMITTEE
Conservative

Ryedale First Independent Liberal
Independent for Ryedale
C G Goodrick J A Windress E Hope
M J Potter
(C)
(VC)
M J T Cleary
J MacKenzie
J R Bailey

Substitutes
C Docwra
S M Graham

Substitutes

Substitutes
J Frank
D E Cussons

Liberal
Democrat
S P Mason

Independent

Ungrouped

P J Andrews
S N R Thackray

Substitutes Substitutes Substitutes
J Andrews
D E Keal
L M Burr
J S Clark

Substitutes

LICENSING COMMITTEE
Conservative
C G Goodrick

Ryedale First Independent Liberal
Independent for Ryedale
J A Windress E Hope
M J Potter
(C)

M J T Cleary
(VC)
J MacKenzie
J R Bailey

Liberal
Democrat
S P Mason

Independent
P J Andrews
S N R Thackray

Page 267

Ungrouped

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 16a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 24 SEPTEMBER 2020

148

Shared Housing Initiative

Considered – report of the Programme Director for Economic Development, Business and
Partnerships
Recommendation
That Council approve the recommendations detailed in the report.
Voting record
Unanimous

Council

Page 269

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 271

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 16b

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2020

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 24 SEPTEMBER 2020

149

Development Opportunities and Housing Programme

Considered – report of the Programme Director for Economic Development, Business and
Partnerships
Recommendation
That Council approve the recommendations detailed in the report.
Voting record
6 For
2 Abstentions

Council

Page 281

3 December 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 283

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 293

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 309

This page is intentionally left blank

